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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Hanergy Thin Film
Power Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would like to present the
annual results of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The year 2016 was one in which the Group has
transformed and reincarnated. Faced with the
unprecedented difficulty brought by the suspension of
trading in its shares, the Group actively implemented
its “four transformation measures”,
strategic transformation, business focus, organizational
restructure and open cooperation. Through bold and
decisive adjustments and pragmatic actions, the Group
was able to achieve rapid growth of business and sales.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group achieved a total
revenue of approximately HK$4,483,130,000, representing
an increase of 59% as compared with 2015; gross profit
of approximately HK$2,597,772,000, representing a year-
on-year growth of 89%; and net profit of approximately
HK$251,614,000, representing a turnaround from loss to
profit.

which involved

Meanwhile, the Company has made its best effort
in communicating with the Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC") to clear the concerns of the SFC
and seek resumption of trading of the Company’'s shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, upon
fulfilling the requirements put forward by the SFC, so
as to protect the overall interests of the Company and
its shareholders (including shareholders other than the
controlling shareholders). At present, the SFC has set out
two required conditions for the resumption of trading.
(For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 23 January 2017 with respect to “Inside Information
— Discussion with the Securities and Futures Commission
on Resumption of Trading”). The first of the two required
conditions has already been fulfilled. As for the second
requirement, the Company has been preparing the
Disclosure Document, which will include the appointment
of financial advisers to carry out due diligence on the
Group and the auditors has already completed the audit
on the 2016 consolidated financial statements of the
Company.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

ENERGY TRANSFORMATION AND LOW-
CARBON DEVELOPMENT HAVE BECOME A
GLOBAL CONSENSUS

On 12 December 2015, close to 200 signatories from
around the world at the UN Framework Convention
on Climate Change reached consensus on the Paris
Agreement. All parties will step up their efforts in response
to the threat of climate change by meeting the target of
reducing greenhouse gas emission as soon as possible,
thereby achieving net zero greenhouse gas emission in
the second half of this century. The agreement went into
effect on 4 November 2016.

China, as a responsible developing country, is an active
participant in global climate governance. China integrates
its actions in response to climate change into its medium
to long term planning of the nation’s socio-economic
development. Development concepts such as innovation,
coordination, transparency and mutual benefits will be
transformed into a series of policies and measures in
optimising the structure of industries, building low carbon
energy systems, developing green buildings and low-carbon
transportation and establishing a national carbon emission
trade market. In its document of “Intended Nationally
Determined Contributions”, China proposed to peak its
emission of CO2 at around 2030 and strive to achieve the
target earlier if possible, lower the ratio of GDP to carbon
dioxide emission by 60%-65% in 2030 as compared with
2005 and raise the use of non-fossil energy to around 20%
of one-off energy consumption. The new energy industry
which is represented mainly by solar energy is ushering in
an unprecedented development opportunity.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

THE PROSPECT OF SOLAR ENERGY
MARKET CONTINUES TO BE OPTIMISTIC
WITH RAPID GROWTH PERIOD EXPECTED
FOR DISTRIBUTED PHOTOVOLTAICS

Solar energy is rich in resources, with ample supply,
inexhaustible and pollution-free. It is an ideal energy for the
mankind. Solar energy power generation, as a direct, clean
and efficient way of using solar energy, has experienced
rapid growth in recent years due to the strong advocacy
and support from countries around the world.

According to the statistics of IHS, the newly installed
photovoltaic power generation capacity in 2016 reached
77GW globally, representing a year-on-year growth of
34% and two consecutive years of growth over 30%. At
this point, the accumulated installed photovoltaic power
generation capacity is in excess of 310GW globally.

According to the statistics of China’s National Energy
Board, China’'s newly installed photovoltaic power
generation capacity in 2016 was 34.54GW, representing a
year-on-year increase of 129%. The accumulative installed
capacity was 77.42GW. Both newly installed capacity
and accumulative capacity were ranked as the world’'s
number one. In particular, the newly installed distributed
photovoltaic power capacity was 4.24GW, exhibiting an
explosive growth of 200% increase year-on-year.

According to the “13th Five-Year Plan” for Electric Power
Development issued by the National Energy Administration
on 7 November 2016, installed solar energy power
generation capacity was expected to exceed 110GW, with
distributed photovoltaic power capacity to exceed 60GW
by 2020. Accordingly, it is expected that the average
annual installed capacity for distributed photovoltaic
power generation in China between 2017 and 2020 should
exceed 12GW, a number which is even higher than the
accumulative installed distributed photovoltaic power
generation capacity of 10.32GW in 2016, and it is expected
that distributed photovoltaics will enter a stage of high
growth period.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

A GREAT POTENTIAL FOR THE MARKET OF
THIN FILM SOLAR TECHNOLOGY AS THE
FUTURE OF SOLAR ENERGY LIES IN THIN
FILM

The thin film solar energy technology has the advantages
of low consumption of materials, high conversion
rate and highly integrated processes. Thin film can be
manufactured into translucent, coloured, flexible and light-
weight components, which can be used in a wide range
of applications. It has a unique advantage in the areas of
distributed applications and mobile energy, and therefore
presents a great market potential.

Governments in Europe, the United States, Japan and
others have included thin film solar power technology as
the focus of development and support in the area of solar
energy. The Chinese government has also introduced a
series of policies recently in support of the technology.
In 2016, a number of government bodies including the
Chinese State Council, the National Development and
Reform Commission, the Energy Bureau and the Ministry
of Science and Technology promulgated a number of
documents including the “Action Plan for Energy Technical
Reform and Innovation (2016-2030)" ({(REJREMT E s Al #
TE)ETE1(2016-20304 ) )), the"Catalogue of Key Products
in Strategic Emerging Industries” ((B B§ | 37 S &= % & 2
B #)), “Made in China 2025" ((# B & 3%2025)),
“13th Five-Year Information Science and Technology Plan”
(CFT=ZH"EXRBFEAIFRED), “Guide to Key Common
Technological Development for the Industries ({E %% H
MRTESE SR )). It was clearly stated in these documents
that efforts should be made in the development of the
highly efficient thin film technologies such as CIGS and
GaAs, and a complete set of equipment and production
lines with independent intellectual rights should be
established with financial and other preferential policies.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

SUPPORT THE NATIONAL STRATEGIES,
FOCUS ON THIN FILM SOLAR ENERGY
AND ESTABLISH THE ECOSYSTEM OF THIN
FILM SOLAR ENERGY INDUSTRY

In the area of thin film solar energy, the Group has taken
early actions to optimise its structure. Through global
acquisition of technologies, the Group has acquired the
globally advanced CIGS and GaAs technologies, as well as
the design, integration and delivery capabilities of related
equipment and production lines, which contributed to
the Group’s core competitiveness. On this foundation,
the Group has maintained its leading position in the
world's CIGS and GaAs technologies through continuous
investments as well as research and development,
which have become the primary impetus for the Group's
competitive advantage. Meanwhile, the Group has made
huge investments in terms of resources and efforts in the
area of downstream photovoltaic applications and achieved
good results. As of today, the Group’s business model for
the various downstream sectors have been established,
and the unique distribution model and system are
preliminary ready. We base ourselves on the continuous
innovation of thin film solar technology. On the one hand,
we deliver “turnkey solutions” for high-end equipment
and production lines as one of the fronts, and on the other
hand, we provide distributed energy and mobile energy
“one-stop” solutions as the other front. This “One Base
and Two Fronts” strategic deployment is basically in place.
These together have laid a solid foundation for the Group’s
future development.

Looking back at 2016, we have been more focused on thin
film solar energy, upstream equipment and production lines
as well as downstream distributed and mobile applications.
We were committed to establishing a thin film solar energy
industry ecosystem, and we have successfully completed
our transformation while at the same time achieved rapid
growth of our business:
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

Technology development and innovation: During
the year, the Group made a series of breakthrough
in CIGS and GaAs technologies, with further
advancements along various developmental paths and
achievement of higher efficiency in mass production,
thus maintaining its global leadership position in
thin film solar energy technology. In particular, The
R&D efficiency of MiaSolé's chips reaches 19.4%,
while the efficiency of the winner module from the
U.S. new generation process reaches 18%. This
currently represents the highest efficiency globally for
sputtering CIGS flexible modules. Solibro’s top mass
production modules have an efficiency of 16.97%
(with 17.92% of effective area), which set the world
record for mass production of co-evaporation CIGS
modules. Alta Devices’ mass production modules
have an efficiency reaching 24.8%, and passed
the NREL verification in November 2016. Now Alta
Devices holds three world records on conversion
efficiency for GaAs single knot cells, double knots
cells and modules.

Upstream equipment and production lines:
Through continuous development and integration of
the six major product lines, namely Solibro, MiaSolé,
GSE, GaAs, HIT and Silicon Germanium, preliminary
economies of scale and synergy have been achieved,
and equipment manufacturing and delivery capabilities
have been strengthened for the Group, which now
has the annual delivery capabilities in GWs and has
achieved domestic production of core equipment.
Meanwhile, the Group has substantially strengthened
its third-party sales of equipment and production
lines. By attempting to provide thin film solar energy
equipment and “turnkey” solutions of production lines
to major customers such as local governments with
intention to transform, large state-owned enterprises
and major overseas customers under the “Belt and
Road Initiative”, the Group aims at achieving a rapid
growth of upstream equipment and production lines
business in the future. In 2016, the Group's upstream
equipment and production lines business achieved
sales revenue of HK$3,028,182,000, representing an
increase of 53% as compared with 2015.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

Downstream distributed and mobile energy
applications: By capitalising on its advanced
thin film solar energy technology and products,
and adopting the “Double-wheel” strategy (with
Household Business driven by distribution channels,
and Commercial/BIPV/Agricultural business driven
by direct sales to major customers), the Group was
able to achieve the best results ever. During the
year, the focus on Household Business was changed
from recruitment of distributors to support of existing
distributors. After optimisation and change, explosive
growth was achieved, with accumulative number of
distributors of approximately one thousand and two
hundred, sales revenue increased 3.4 times year-
on-year and the annual installations reached thirty
thousand sets. The Commercial Business has fully
established its business model and was successful
in launching a number of commercial demonstration
projects. The number of contracted projects and
reserve projects have achieved their scales initially.
Full coverage of different photovoltaic applications,
including photovoltaic curtain walls, photovoltaic
lighting roofs, photovoltaic roofing, photovoltaic
sun visors and other forms of applications, were
accomplished in BIPV Business. The development
and trial production of Solibro BIPV components
were completed with significantly improved power
generation efficiency in the products. The Agricultural
Applications Business completed the development
photovoltaic agricultural solutions. Cooperation

and market launch of product series of
with the country’s authorities in scientific research
was also carried out on issues of photovoltaic
agriculture, which provided important conclusions
that the Group’s modules for photovoltaic agriculture
applications would not affect the cultivation of crops
underneath. Mobile Energy Business continued to
cooperate with a number of world-class strategic
customers, and its production could hardly keep up
with the demand. In the area of poverty alleviation,
we responded to the call of the nation to carry
out the precision photovoltaic poverty alleviation
programme. Currently, we have business coverage
all over the country, benefiting many identified poor
families.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

STRENGTH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AND INITIATE CHANGE OF CORPORATE
CULTURE

To further strengthen corporate governance, the Company
has made adjustments during the year to the appointments
of the chairman of the Board and the executive Directors.
The development path and management philosophy is
characterised as market oriented, technology centred and
management based. A flat organisation structure is made
up of production and sales functions of the business
units, with the combination of sufficient authorisation and
rigorous assessment. Systems and processes are reviewed
and optimised such that there are rules to follow when
performing tasks. At the same time, the Company has
launched changes to the corporate culture and established
the core values of “customer orientation and provision of
the best products and services to the customers”. The
“customer culture”, “Innovative culture” and “reflective
culture” have been fully implemented.

Looking forward to 2017, we will continue to invest in
research and development of the thin film solar energy
technology and maintain the Group’s global leadership
position in the area of thin film solar energy technology.
We will make the best effort in pushing forward full
domestic manufacturing of the Group’s thin film solar
energy equipment and production lines, so as to lower
costs substantially and enhance competitiveness. We will
continue to implement the “Double-wheel” strategy in the
downstream business with distributed and mobile energy
applications. While developing the existing sales network,
we will also step up the development and management of
major customers, especially those with strategic values.
We firmly believe that 2017 will be an important year in
which the thin film solar energy industry and mobile energy
industry can achieve explosive growth.
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Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to all the
shareholders and business partners for their support, and
to all the staff for their contributions during the year!

Yuan Yabin
Chairman

30 March 2017

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS MODEL

Hanergy Thin Film Power Group Limited is a high-tech
energy enterprise listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
Its principal activities include (i) the development and
design of turnkey production lines for thin film power
generation, as well as (ii) the development, operation and
sales of downstream thin film power generation projects
and application products.

Since entering into the thin film power generation
industry in 2009, the Group has been actively involved
in the investment and research of the most advanced
thin film solar energy technology which was adopted as
the Group’s core business. Through continual acquisition
of overseas thin film technologies, including Solibro in
Germany, MiaSolé in the U.S., Global Solar Energy in the
U.S., and Alta Devices in the U.S., the Group has acquired
copper indium gallium selenium (“CIGS"”) and gallium
arsenide (“GaAs"”) technologies which are currently the
most advanced in the world, and at the same time has
mastered the globally advanced equipment production line
manufacturing technology and its R&D capabilities. These
technologies have become the main sources of competitive
advantage for the Group. Meanwhile, the Group deploys
teams of scientists at various locations around the globe,
including Beijing and Sichuan in China, the United States,
Germany and Sweden, etc, for continuous improvement in
the performance of thin film power generation technology,
which enables the Group to provide customers with
the most advanced, cost effective solutions in turnkey
production lines.
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BHBLZHEAELEZEBIINERERRN  BEE
Bl Solibrox A+ % EMiaSolé X 7+ &
B Global Solar Energy’a & & & BlAlta
Devices A al " AEBDER T 2HKEEL
) 8R40 45 70 (CIGS) AN B 1L 85 (GaAs) 51T - [
RLERTERBENEEERRERTR
HfBeEh  KATEERFEZHNEER
B AR AEENNEREKERE
BEFHRLER - @) ER ZEEKHS
L BERABRZERMNRE  ARF
REGEEBEAENAELNBEEERR
SRR ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS MODEL (continued)

Apart from manufacturing in the upstream production lines,
the Group has committed enormous resources and energy
to the area of downstream photovoltaic applications in
recent years, and has now achieved satisfactory results.
The unique end-to-end business model of dealership
developed by the Group is becoming mature. During the
year, after rounds of optimization and screening, the Group
has already accumulated approximately one thousand and
two hundred distributors and achieved market coverage
at the city and county levels nationwide, laying a solid
foundation for the Group's development.

For the Group's strategy on future development, we
will continue to maintain our position as the world’s
most advanced thin film power generation and high-
tech energy enterprise and adopt the “One Base and
Two Fronts” as our long term strategic deployment. That
is, we base ourselves on the continuous innovation of
thin film solar technology. On the one hand, we deliver
“turnkey solutions” for high-end equipment and production
lines as one of the fronts, and on the other hand, we
provide distributed energy and mobile energy “one-stop”
solutions as the other front. The upstream equipment
production line business will be maintained as our core,
and the downstream distributed energy business will be
our strategic direction, with an aim to vigorously fostering
mobile energy as the Group’'s main direction.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
recorded a revenue of HK$4,483,130,000, representing
a sharp increase of approximately 59% as compared
with HK$2,814,668,000 in 2015. Gross profit increased
to HK$2,597,772,000, representing an increase of
approximately 89% as compared with previous year's
HK$1,373,229,000.

EBEX 2

BRT L EERBEZIN  ARBIUEFRT
HRRER ZEE - RATEARNERMA
B BRICKRETRENKR  BAERERN
ELE2TE BAKEHKHPHEADS
R RER - EBELEE - AEBE R
REFMBREN T AR ZXTH2ED
FAEATMENESZ  REENERIT I TEE
HEAE o

HRARBRREROBE - HAIBEER
FRERRREGREESHRERA RN
E -U—EWMEIRREMS  DRIAER
KGREBRMHFENSER  USHEHE
RERNIZXBRIBRTRR/RELE - U
REREBBERN —uX IBRATERA
B UEHREBEREBRZL - NhEDM
AEREBREE T A BEBEBHDER
EREBEMARTT@ e

Bt ¥ Bl R

HE-_T—XRNF+-_A=1+—ALHKSF
& ANEBRBUA 4,483,130,0008 7T © &
—T—F4F72814,668,0008 LA L
59% : FE A1 0= 2,697,772,00078 7T &
FFEZ1,373,229,000 8 7T EF4I89% °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

The Group has successfully turned from loss to profit
for the year with annual profit of HK$251,614,000,
representing a great improvement over the loss of
HK$12,233,542,000 recorded in the financial year ended 31
December 2015. There are a number of factors contributing
to the turn from loss to profit, including but not limited to
the following:

1. Due to the success of the Household Power
Generation Unit through dealer channels,
approximately thirty thousand sets of household
photovoltaic system were sold during the period.
Sales revenue for the year recorded a strong surge,
which increased sharply from HK$280,694,000 in
2015 to HK$1,234,999,000; and

2. The revenue for the Group's delivered production
lines business under the manufacturing business
increased to HK$2,995,599,000 during the period,
representing approximately 55% increase as
compared with the revenue of HK$1,934,115,000 in
the same period last year.

In regard of the Group’'s receivables due from Hanergy
Holding's affiliates, as at 31 December 2016, total
contracted work receivables amounted to approximately
HK$745,928,000, while trade receivables amounted
to approximately HK$3,913,807,000, among which
approximately HK$2.52 billion was overdue. On 10 March
2017, the Group received RMB1.5 billion (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,692,449,000) from Hanergy Holding
and its affiliates for the repayment of trade receivables.

During the period, the Group sold production line
equipments and provided services to Shandong
Macrolink which brought to the Group a revenue
of HK$2,091,900,000. As at 31 December 2016,
trade receivables due from Shandong Macrolink was
HK$2,536,745,000, all of which was overdue. From January
to March 2017, Shandong Macrolink has repaid RMBG650
million (equivalent to approximately HK$734,685,000) to
the Group.

Bt FS BB (&)

AEBEAFERNMEBLRR - FE 5T
7#%251,614,0008 70 - HEBE_T—HF
T A=+ RALUBRFEMBEZER
12,233,5642,000 BT K BN E - NFEHE
AEBRZERAME - 2FETRR :

1. BERBRFAZESEREBLEHD
REDBAY  REASHEI=BE
PRXKRELG  HEKAB-_T—H
#2280,694,000 B T=AEAFEZ
1,234,999,000/8 7T + ££15 % S FHIR ¢
&

2. AEEBEHREGEER CEGRTERK
A b FZE2,995,599,000% 7T © #H &
FRHW A 1,934,115,0008 T R4
55% °

HRAEBEERITREBRB QR 2 BUKK
B BEZZT-XF+ZA=1+—8" HE
WA R T2 4% 4 A745,928,0008 T ' &
5 FE W K18 49 53,913,807,000/8 70 © H ek
Wb 2 @B ABIHEKIE -RZT—+
F=ZA+H AKEREZERITRKELBEE
ARIHE SHEKFEEEARK 1I5ELT(HE
1,692,449,00087T) °

AEERBAHELEERSEREERE T
Iy BT EEEE - R AR & B %5 2K 2,091,900,000
BRAZWA - HE-_ZT—RF+_A=+—
H BRILRFER CBEIERAKRER
2,5636,745,000% 7T - 2 & & & & 2 E K
HE -RZE—tF—HAZ=ZA%H ' WHE
FEBYAEBEEEARKeET(NE
734,685,000 7T) °
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A.

Connected Transactions with Hanergy Holding
Group — New Connected Transaction During the
Period

In January 2016, Apollo Precision (Fujian) Limited
entered into a procurement contract of automated
integrated production lines for CIGS thin film solar
panels with Shandong Zibo Hanergy PV Company
Limited, a subsidiary to Hanergy Holding. Shandong
Zibo has made an advance payment of RMB380
million (about HK$452 million) to Apollo Precision
(Fujian) in January 2016, and the recognised after
tax income, calculated according to the percentage
of completion, was HK$395 million (the tax-inclusive
amount was HK$437,748,267). Since the amount of
advance payment exceeded the recognised income,
the balance of the receivables was not increased by
this connected transaction.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

EBOE

EEREREECEERS — HAH
HREXS

A.

ZTE—ARF—A - REOBBIRESR
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AE T ANFHRRBIERKAAS.95
B8 (& B & & /437,748,267 %
L) c ARTERN RS BARERKA -
Bt R R A TERER S
BFTEM -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

B. Delivery of Production Lines to Hanergy Holding
Group

The Group entered into two master sales contracts
with Hanergy Holding for the sale of equipment and
turnkey production lines for the manufacture of thin
film solar photovoltaic modules to Hanergy Holding
in 2010 and 2011, respectively. The table below
shows an analysis of the related purchase capacity
committed and contract revenue recognized in the
Group's financial statements:

¥FEOEE)
B. MEHEZEREBMITLEES

AEBCEHZEERNDIN_Z—ZF
ﬁ:;——ﬁﬁiﬁﬁiﬁ%éﬂ'u
MRREIE IR SHE BN RIS E IR KFZ AL
RAGRBEREBELES - TRET T
EHCRAHEERERCEAEENH
HRPERNE RWAB DT -

2010 2011
Sales Sales
Contracts Contracts
—E-2F =—B——F
HESHE HESR
1. Total purchase capacity as stipulated $HEARTFE THIEHE ERL 3,000MW 7,000MW
in the sales contracts
2. Purchase capacity of module HE_Z—XRF+_A=+—1,300MW 7,000MW
equipment and production lines B ZEgeERe AR EREAR
committed by Hanergy Holding as SR EERERE
at 31/12/2016
HK$ ' mil HK$ mil
HE5T H&E5T
3. Total contract sum AREBEERE 25,800 61,270
4. To the extent purchase capacity BRI B AL
committed by Hanergy Holding: FREBEERE -
(i)  Contract sum attributed to the (i) CEAENREEELEN 25,800 61,270
purchase capacity committed aFReRE
(i)  Total cumulative down payment (i) #HE-Z— /\E‘?’ ﬁ 1,922 1,560
made by Hanergy Holding as at =+—8 ' EREER
31/12/2016 HEHB R IENE
(i) Contract revenue (net of (ii) éﬁﬂé{)\(ﬂ%ﬂﬁ%i@ﬁ
VAT and relevant taxation) MABRATE IR ) R
recognized in:
Year ended 31/12/2010 HE-_ZT-ZTF+=AH 2,310 0
= Elu:if
Year ended 31/12/2011 HE-_ZT—F+=A 1,446 1,009
—+—HIFE
Year ended 31/12/2012 BE-_ZE——%+=-A 0 2,756
=+—HItFE
Year ended 31/12/2013 BE_ZE—=F+_H 0 3,243
=+—HItFE
Year ended 31/12/2014 HE-_ZT—MNF&+-A 3,102 2,853
=+—HIFE
Year ended 31/12/2015 HE-_Z—RF+=A 134 (68)
=t—HIFE
Year ended 31/12/2016 HE_Z—X"F+=-A 39 865
=t+—HItFE
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BEEEFWRE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

B.

Delivery of Production Lines to Hanergy Holding
Group (continued)

Pursuant to the two master sale contracts, production
lines delivered by the Group to Hanergy Holding will
undergo several phases for move-in and installation,
followed by the Start of Production (“SOP"”) and then
the End of Ramping ("EOR"), before the production
lines can begin mass production.

During the period under review, the production lines
delivered to Hanergy Holding did not undergo SOP or
EOR.

Solar Modules Supply Agreement

In 2014, pursuant to the master agreement in relation
to the supply of solar modules from 2012 to 2014,
the Company’s subsidiary entered into a number of
new solar modules ancillary purchase agreements
with Hanergy Affiliates to purchase photovoltaic
modules, with total production capacity of 558MW,
for developing downstream photovoltaic power
generation projects. Pursuant to the terms of such
ancillary agreements, the Company’s subsidiary had
settled approximately 50% of the contract sum when
placing the order in 2014. In 2016, Hanergy Affiliates
had delivered photovoltaic modules with total
production capacity of 136MW. The capacity of the
undelivered photovoltatic modules is 228MW.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

ENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

¥iKoEEE)

B.

EEREREEXNEER(E)

REMOHIHEEAR - FIEEZERRMN
ZEERBD BERBEBRARLZE - K
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REEAR - FERIER S 2 £ ER
AR TR RSB -

PN R R Y

RZE—NF  BE-FT——-FE2=-F
—FE ARG B AE T 2 B HE
T NRBEIZH B AR EZEEEE AR
RINEOFMAREHBEENE RS - B
B BEREBS58MW I IR - BR
ERTRHAREEIERE - BREZSZME
WBEZIER - ARRIZHMBARIERZ
T-NFETEIERINERBSEY
50% c RZT—NFE - EREIERE
DB XA ERE L 136MW Z Y R4 15
MR 2 EEBE R 228MW o



BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

D.

Group Structure

To facilitate the Group’'s business development,
the Group carried out organizational restructuring
during the period. After the restructuring, there are
in total 13 business units covering the upstream and
downstream core businesses, including:

(i) Six upstream business units:
1) Equipment Business Unit
2)  Flexible Industrial Applications Business
Unit
3)  Flexible Consumer Applications Business
Unit

4)  Solibro Business Unit
5)  Mobile Energy Business Unit
6)  HIT Business Unit

(i)  Seven downstream business units:

1) Household Power Generation Business Unit

2)  Commercial Power Generation Business
Unit

3)  BIPV Business Unit

4)  Agricultural Applications Business Unit

5)  Overseas Sales Business Unit

6) Ground-mounted Power Station Business
Unit

7)  E-commerce Business Unit

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

NT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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1) KEFEXR
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

D.

Group Structure (continued)

Nomination Committee

REEESE

Audit Committee

¥ OEE)
D. EEE#EE)

The Board
EFEE

Global Application Products
Development Centre

2 IRAEF E M@ E RO

EREES

Remuneration Committee

FHEEE

Hanergy Thin Film
Power Group Limited
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Global Supply Chain
Management Centre
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Management Centre
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Global Customer
Service Centre
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MANAG

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

D.

Group Structure (continued)

Upstream Business Units

(1)

Equipment Business Unit

The unit is mainly engaged in the design and
manufacture of turnkey production lines for
large-scale thin film solar cells, and the provision
of assembling, installation and testing services
for production lines, including the independently
developed plasma-enhanced chemical vapor
deposition (PECVD) equipment which is used
for producing silicon-based thin film cells, and
the physical vapor deposition (PVD) equipment.
Since 2011, the Equipment Business Unit has
provided in total more than 2GW (2 million
KW) silicon-based thin film solar cell production
lines, and will gradually realize self-design and
manufacturing of CIGS and HIT production lines.
As a platform company, the Equipment Business
Unit provides three sets of services for other
business units, including Original Equipment
Manufacturing (OEM), Original Design
Manufacturing (ODM), and Onsite Field Services
(OFS). Leveraged on the worldly advanced thin
film solar cell technologies, the Equipment
Business Unit will independently self-develop
and continue to innovate, so as to promote the
domestic development and manufacturing of
solar cell manufacturing equipment and hence
gradually realise the landing of advanced thin
film solar energy turnkey production lines in
China.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

NT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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XK EREE)

D. HEEBH
EHEEN
(1) ZHELY

TERERAAMBERRRERK
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KM ZEFRRS - B8 EH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFWRE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

D.

Group Structure (continued)

Upstream Business Units (continued)

(2)

Flexible Industrial Applications Business Unit
(MiaSolé)

Based on MiaSolé's magnetron sputtering
technology, the unit focused on the
development of CIGS flexible thin film solar
cell turnkey production lines and set up the
MiaSolé Hi-Tech R&D Center in Silicon Valley,
the U.S. The business unit adopts the “One
Base and Two Fronts” as business model, fully
utilizing MiaSolé’'s advantages on equipment
R&D and delivery: adopting production line
R&D, manufacture, sales and delivery as its
foundation business; adopting the development
and sales of CIGS target and core raw material
as the one of the business fronts, and adopting
the development and sales of high-end flexible
CIGS application system as the business for
another front; based on the basic business,
both fronts jointly support the business unit's
development. The advantage of MiaSolé’'s
flexible CIGS technology are its stable, reliable
production process and high production
efficiency. It has lower energy consumption and
does not produce any heavy metal wastewater
when compared with the traditional production
of crystalline silicon cells. It is regarded by
a number of foreign institutions as the next
generation large-scale application products in
the photovoltaic industry. This technology is also
important for the mobilization and civilianization
of photovoltaic.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

¥ OEE)
D. EME#EE
LEHEE(E)
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T T 2 pEAFZE (MiaSolé)

AMiaSolé BT il AE - &
FCIGSFRIEERAIG LB MELR
HERRABIIE  RERWAKR
MiaSolé Hi-Tech FflTAfFEE A L o
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NT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmEDI

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

D.

Group Structure (continued)

Upstream Business Units (continued)

(3)

(4)

Flexible Consumer Applications Business Unit
(GSE)

The unit is engaged in the product R&D,
production, sales and delivery of photovoltaic
equipment by use of the flexible co-evaporation
CIGS technology from Global Solar Energy
(GSE) based in Arizona, the U.S.. It possesses
advanced flexible product packaging technology
which is widely applicable to a variety of civilian
mobile energy markets. The GSE production line
covers 6 out of the 7 major strategic emerging
industries, including energy efficiency and
environmental protection, high-end equipment,
new energies, new materials, new energy
vehicles and information technology.

Solibro Business Unit

The unit is mainly engaged in the delivery of
CIGS solar energy modules production lines
which are based on Solibro technology, as well
as the provision of engineering and technical
support for turnkey projects. Today, the 21.1%
efficiency rate for the laboratory chip and the
16.97% efficiency rate for the champion module
achieved by the business unit's Sweden R&D
centre, are at the top rank globally and enjoying
technical advantage in the industry.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

D.

Group Structure (continued)

Upstream Business Units (continued)

(5)

Mobile Energy Business Unit (Alta Devices)

Based on the technology of the U.S. subsidiary
Alta Devices, the unit is mainly engaged in
the R&D and industrialization of the gallium
arsenide (“GaAs") thin film cell technology and
equipment. Currently, Alta Devices is one of
the very few photovoltaic enterprises in the
industry which considers the mobile energy
as its major target market, and the conversion
efficiency rates of the GaAs thin film single
junction cell and double junction cell produced
by Alta Devices have both broken the world
record. In addition, the product’'s unique and
excellent characteristics, including its flexibility,
lightness, high performance under weak light
condition, and good temperature functionality,
making it the ideal material for the mobile
energy application. It can be applied to the high
value-added market, like the Aerospace (high-
altitude and long-endurance (HALE) unmanned
aerial vehicles, low earth orbit satellite etc),
ground transportation (new energy vehicle),
drone and daily application (internet-of-things,
wearable devices, e-commerce) etc. Apart from
that, the major strategic clients of this business
unit are mainly enterprises producing high
altitude long-endurance aerial vehicles, with
significant gross margin. The products produced
by the Mobile Energy Business Unit are flexible,
which is precisely the distinctive nature of GaAs
products. The Group will capitalize firmly on the
current advantages in these fields, expand the
production scale and application fields so as to
meet the anticipated explosive growth of the
market.

¥EOEE)
EEEE(E
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

D.

Group Structure (continued)

Upstream Business Units (continued)

(6)

HIT Business Unit

As a newly established department, the
business unit is engaged in the production
of Hetero-junction with Intrinsic Thin-layer
(HIT) solar cells turnkey production lines.
According to the “Guidelines from the State
Council on Encouraging Healthy Solar Industry
Developments” (B %% b Bl B0 (2 3 A E E 2 R
ERERMETER)), it was proposed that new
photovoltaic manufacturing projects should
fulfill the industry requirement in which a-Silicon
photovoltaic cells should achieve a conversion
efficiency rate not less than 20%. Today, only
three technological paths can achieve the
efficiency of more than 20% conversion rate and
at the same time are suitable for commercial
mass production. These are the Interdigitated
Back Contact (IBC) Cell, the Passivated
Emitter Rear Cell (PERC) and the HIT Cell.
Compared with the first two technologies, HIT
technology has better product controllability,
lower production cost and brighter development
prospect, and will become the best photovoltaic
product for distributed and household solar
power station.

Compared with the ordinary crystalline silicon
solar cell modules, HIT solar cell module's
unit area has 20% more power generation
capacity. Because of the HIT cell module’s
lower temperature coefficient, its reduction of
efficiency and output power is comparatively
less, and hence it is capable to generate 8% to
10% more electricity than ordinary crystalline
silicon solar cell modules per day. As such, the
adoption of the highly efficient HIT solar cell
module can fully conserve land and rooftop
resources.

¥ OEEe)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

D.

Group Structure (continued)

Downstream Business Units

(1)

2)

Household Power Generation Business Unit

The business unit focuses on household solar
power generation system and small-scale
industrial and commercial distributed power
generation projects. It realized over HK$1
billion sales revenue in 2016, positioning itself
comfortably at the top of the household market.
After development of more than two years,
the Group has developed a huge network of
channel distributors, a system of product series
and a complete after-sales services system. It
is planned that the service can cover more than
90% of 2,000 franchise distributors across cities,
regions and counties in 2017, hence establishing
an integrated service system of sales, installation
and after-sales services, and forging a top brand
in household power generation in China.

Commercial Power Generation Business Unit

The Commercial Power Generation Business Unit
is a new energy solution provider encapsulating
large- to middle-scale power station projects in
development, sales of power stations, investment
and financing, construction and operation. While
it focuses on the five major sectors including
industrial and commercial distributed power
generation, centralized power station, county-
level photovoltaic poverty alleviation, new energy
city and special solar energy equipment, etc.
Currently the Commercial Power Generation
Business Unit is divided into six regional sales
departments and four industry sales departments,
basically covering all regions across the nation
and major industry markets. In 2017 the unit will
enter a joint venture and cooperate with major
clients and major partners to build a new energy
project development company which focuses on
China’s major domestic new energy market and
actively explores in new energy projects under
the “Belt and Road’ initiative. It is expected
that the industrial and commercial distributed
generation projects will demonstrate a fast

growth trend in 2017.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

D. Group Structure (continued)

Downstream Business Units (continued)

(3)

BIPV Business Unit

This business unit is a system solution provider
mainly for construction-related photovoltaic
power generation products and services. lts
scope of products and services include the
provision of construction-related products and
services such as photovoltaic building materials
and photovoltaic module system, in particular,
photovoltaic curtain wall, skylight, photovoltaic
sunshade panel system, etc., for clients of
public structures, large-scale industrial and
commercial structures and high-end urban
gardens. Currently, the Group’s BIPV products
possess multiple functions including light
permeation, power generation under weak light
condition, UV reduction, soundproof and thermal
insulation, etc. The business unit is involved in a
wide range of businesses, including photovoltaic
curtain wall, skylight, sun-shading wing and
car shed etc., with a complete coverage on
a variety of applications in building-integrated
photovoltaics.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

D.

Group Structure (continued)

Downstream Business Units (continued)

(4)

Agricultural Applications Business Unit

Agricultural Applications Business Unit is mainly
engaged in the development and construction of
agricultural photovoltaic applications, providing
quality agricultural power generation products
and thin film solar greenhouse system solutions,
quality photovoltaic agricultural products and
agricultural park solutions to the customers. The
products integrate perfectly with agricultural
facilities without affecting the growth of
agricultural produce underneath the greenhouse
panels. The target markets include photovoltaic
agricultural greenhouses, photovoltaic
agricultural parks and photovoltaic agricultural
poverty alleviation, etc. In 2017, the Agricultural
Application Business Unit plans to upgrade the
existing solutions for photovoltaic agricultural
greenhouses, reducing the overall costs and
difficulties in installation of the systems,
as well as to develop high-efficiency light
permeating modules and application products
like standardized photovoltaic pest control light,
etc. Through the Public-Private Partnership
(PPP)
platform model, the Agricultural Business Unit

regional investment and financing
has established jointly with the government a
PPP investment and financing platform as the
regional marketing center, initiated and set up
the Agricultural Photovoltaic Industrial Fund
and Photovoltaic Poverty Alleviation Special
Program Fund to undertake regional projects
on photovoltaic poverty alleviation projects and
agricultural parks projects, and develop small
to medium scale distributed and agricultural
greenhouse projects through the professional
partnership model.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

D.

Group Structure (continued)

Downstream Business Units (continued)

(5)

(6)

Overseas Sales Business Unit

The business unit is engaged in the provision
of directional development, design, finance,
construction, grid connection, sale of one-stop
exclusive energy total solutions, and flexible
forms of supporting sales for overseas clients.
Through establishing a stable cooperation
mechanism for overseas sale channels and
constructing an overseas sales terminal
platform, the business unit has also laid a solid
development foundation for the deployment of
Hanergy's global strategy. The business unit's
current businesses cover regions including
America, Europe, Asia-Pacific, and the Middle
East. Through cooperation with industry partners
like local project developers, installers, EPC etc.,
the business unit has established a network for
sales and installation services, and developed
a cooperation mechanism for the sales of solar
PV metal rooftop and new power generation
building materials, in an effort to increase sales
by the expansion of sales channels in new
product developers.

E-commerce Business Unit

The business unit is mainly engaged in online
sales of Hanergy consumer solar products, such
as thin film solar charging paper, charging pack,
thin film solar cell backpack, etc. The target
customers are outdoor groups in general, for
whom solutions are provided to help handle
charging of mobile phones and small electronic
devices when they are going outdoors. Through
online and 020 sales channels, the unit has
set up the official Hanergy Shop, Tmall Flagship
Store, JD Flagship Store, Chinese and English
webpages in Alibaba, and it is planning to set up
Amazon store and Suning store as well.

¥FEOEE)
EEEEE
TR B ()

D.

(5)

(6)

SN EFERES

BOIRREINEFRIERRRE -
REF-RME- I HE - #HE
— A EEERERERTRELE
EREEES TN WEBELR
EHBIMNEEEEAIEHKS - 52
BINEIRIHE Y G - RfEEER
REBR B EERENERE
o EXHENEHEEIMN
M B PREME - RBEE
IR B MR - ZKE - EPCET
EBHAFE  BUHEPKERTE
NEREEMEETHES RS
MBI EMFAERHEEEEREKR
HE -

EBHFEXL

TEAERHEERERBAGRE
o IEERER  RER - ER
BHERE TEBREFPHRES
R PINENEE - BOREPINEDR
MFERNEEFREFREME -
BEERHEERO20REHE -
BATERREEE T A - RIHE
BE - RIS - MEEEHR
Xuh - WatBIFARDEHEE MEFE
JE o

29



30

BEEEFWRE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

D. Group Structure (continued)

Downstream Business Units (continued)

(7)

Ground-mounted Power Station Business Unit

The business unit is engaged mainly in the
management of the Group’'s ground-mounted
power stations. With the Group's strategic
adjustment and shift of business focus, ground-
mounted power station is not the current
focus of the Group's business development.
The business unit is focused on identifying
buyers for the existing ground-mounted power
stations so that the sales proceeds can be used
in supporting the development of other core
businesses.

E. Information On Key Projects For The Year

Upstream Business:

(1)

Delivery of Production Lines to Shandong
Macrolink

During the year, the Group's production lines
business of the upstream manufacturing
business was a key source of revenue for the
Group. The total revenue of approximately
HK$2,092 million from the transaction with
Shandong Macrolink, calculated based on the
percentage of completion, was recognized. Of
which, HK$137 million was derived from the
first production line and HK$1,955 million from
the second production line. Macrolink Group is
mainly engaged in various industries including
real estate, mining, petroleum, chemical and
finance, and has become our customer and
embarked on solar energy business since 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

E. Information On Key Projects For The Year (continued)

Downstream Business:

(1)

(2)

The Largest Commercial Rooftop in Netherlands
— Plantion Flowers Trading Center

With the cooperation with Rooftop Energy, the
Group installed a total of 2.3MW of Solibro thin-
film power generation modules on the rooftop of
Plantion, the largest national flowers and plants
trading center in Ede in central Netherlands.
Netherlands is a major greenhouse country with
greenhouse gross floor area of approximately
110 million square meters, accounting for one
quarter of total glass greenhouse area in the
world. The agricultural PV market has enormous
capacity, and is believed to have considerable
marketing potential. 37% of the electricity
demand of the trading center will be provided
in Phase | of the Plantion project, which
ingeniously utilizes the non-lighting space of the
building, and represents a demonstration for the
prospective agricultural photovoltaic consumer
groups.

Solar Bicycle Path in Krommenie, Netherlands

The project used the Group's PowerFlex
modules of GSE, which were laid in the solar
bicycle path in Krommenie, the Netherlands.
PowerFlex modules are characterized by high
conversion rate, lightness, super-thinness and
flexibility, and are very suitable for the marine
climate of the Netherlands. This modules
which absorbs solar energy in the daytime and
emits light for the bicycle path during night
time is considered a groundbreaking attempt
in the application of thin film power generation
technology in daily life.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

E. Information On Key Projects For The Year (continued)

Downstream Business: (continued)

(3)

(4)

The 1.2MW Ground Power Station in Portugal

With the close cooperation between Hanergy's
European Company and well-known companies
in Portugal, another lighthouse project was
completed in southern Europe. The project
has applied Solibro’s CIGS thin film modules.
Hanergy provided a series of services from
signing the contract to final completion, including
supply of modules, engineering design and
process delivery, establishing a good example
for Hanergy's brand building in the southern
European market.

The Complete Solar Powered Boat Contributing
to the Development of the Amazon Basin

The project was jointly developed by KARA
SOLAR in Ecuador and the Company. Hanergy's
flexible CIGS thin film solar modules is used
in this complete solar-powered boat by laying
flexible solar modules on the rooftop of boat
shed. It was completed and successfully
launched in The Amazon River in South America.
[t is a boat fully powered by solar modules
for batteries charging, characterized by its
environmental friendly, light-weight, flexible,
wind-proofed, heat resistant, humidity resistant
and stable power generating features. The solar
powered boat has a daily power generation
capacity of 19 kWh, and its estimated power
generation per year is up to approximately 7,000
kWh, which satisfies the requirements for a boat
to travel in the waters for 67 km, servicing 9
local districts.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

E. Information On Key Projects For The Year (continued)

Downstream Business: (continued)

(5)

(6)

Provision of Clean Electricity for the World Cup
in Qatar

MiaSolé, a subsidiary of the Group in the United
States, entered into a cooperation agreement
with ClearWorld, pursuant to which, it became
the exclusive supplier of flexible thin film power
generation modules for the ClearWorld RetroFlex
LED lighting system. ClearWorld is a supplier of
renewable energy systems solutions and will be
the official supplier of 2022 World Cup in Qatar.
According to the company’'s design for the
World Cup in Qatar, the ClearWorld RetroFlex
system will provide upward lighting for palm
trees surrounding the football field.

Installation of MiaSolé Flexible Cells on the
Truck Roofs for Logistics Vendors

The Group benefited from the regulations
promulgated by 23 states in the United States
that the ignition must be turned off when a
diesel powered vehicle is parked. As such,
some well-known logistics vendors have their
trucks installed with MiaSolé flexible cells on
roof tops to provide electricity, instead of diesel,
for refrigeration trucks, cold chain logistics and
cold stores when the trucks are parked, thereby
reducing operating costs. In October 2016, the
Group entered into an installation contract for
more than 30 trucks with a logistics vendor as
a pilot project. If the results are satisfactory,
formal agreements will be signed, which will
expand the sources of revenue of the Group for
the coming year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

E. Information On Key Projects For The Year (continued)

Downstream Business: (continued)

(7)

(8)

The 1.2MW Solar Photovoltaic Ranch in
Bangkok, Thailand

The Group cooperated with a local EPC company
in Thailand, to provide an overall design of solar
PV solution for a ranch in Bangkok, Thailand,
and to supply the 1.2MW Oerlikon modules.
The PV project’'s successful completion and
connection to grid within a short period of time
helped enhance the awareness of Hanergy's
thin film products in Thailand and Southeast Asia
markets.

The 90MW Distributed PV Poverty Alleviation
Power Generation Project in Qitaihe City,
Heilongjiang Province

In response to the National Poverty Alleviation
Program, the Group provided suitable modules
according to the local conditions, sunshine
conditions and building structures. During the
year, it undertook the 90MW distributed PV
poverty alleviation generation project in Qitaihe,
Heilongjiang Province, the largest government
PV poverty alleviation project in the province,
by providing EPC service for the installation of
12MW distributed power generation modules in
the first phase of the project. The contract value
amounted to approximately RMB66 million. The
project will help the local poor community get
rid of poverty and increase their income as well
as uplifting revenue of the Group, thus achieving
a win-win result.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

E. Information On Key Projects For The Year (continued)

Downstream Business: (continued)

(9)

(10)

Sales of the 1TO0MW PV Power Generation
System to Tianjin Yipu Electric

The PRC government strongly encourages
enterprises to use new energy sources to
mitigate the intensifying pollution issues. During
the year, Tianjin Yipu Electric Co., Ltd. entered
into an agreement with the Group in relation
to the sales of PV system, with the contract
amount of approximately RMB34 million for
the projects of agriculture and solar power
integration and poverty alleviation, respectively.

The 3MW Distributed Thin Film Solar Power
Plant in Zoucheng Industrial Park in Shandong
Province

The Group installed a distributed copper indium
gallium selenide (CIGS) thin film solar power
plant in Zoucheng Industrial Park, Shandong
Province, which was successfully connected
to the grid during the year. The project has
installed capacity of 3 MW and applied more
than 20,000 pieces of Solibro’s CIGS thin film
modules, featureing high conversion rate,
excellent performance under high temperature
and low light conditions, easy installation and
easy maintenance. It is expected that the annual
power generation capacity of the power plant
will exceed 4 million kWh.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

E. Information On Key Projects For The Year (continued)

Downstream Business: (continued)

(11)

(12)

The TMW Rooftop Thin Film Power Station
for a Pesticide Company in Yancheng, Jiangsu
Province

The Group successfully installed a TMW rooftop
thin film power station within two months in the
facilities of Huifeng Agrochemical Co., Ltd. (}E2
EBDAEBAT), a pesticide company located
in Dafeng District, Yancheng City, Jiangsu
Province. Solibro’s thin-film power generation
technology of Hanergy was used in this project.
It serves to cut the high electricity bill for the
customer and at the same time represents a
response to the call for use of environmental
friendly energies. After the successful grid
connection of the project, the customer was
satisfied with the Group’s technical ability,
execution, professionalism and after-sales
service, and showed the intention to further
invest in building larger PV power stations for its
remaining facilities.

The Extensive Mobile Energy Market

The Group designs and manufactures a series
of portable thin-film solar products based on
MiaSolé's thin film chips, providing quality
products for mobile energy usage solutions
in the areas such as mobile communications,
outdoor sports, tourism, photography,
professional scientific research, field operations
and emergency rescue. By bringing flexible thin
film solar energy power generation technology
into life, the Group will provide users with
mobile power usage experience which is more
portable and satisfactory.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

A.

Global Solar PV Market

Over the past few years, the global solar PV market
saw an explosive growth. In 2016, the demand in the
international photovoltaic power generation market
continued to rise, which was led by China, Japan
and the United States. According to the estimates of
Bloomberg New Energy Finance, the newly installed
capacity of global PV market is likely to reach 75GW
in 2016, and is expected to reach 80.6GW in 2017.
Looking forward to the next few years, the global PV
market will continue to increase year by year, and
China, Japan, the United States and India will be the
major markets with the most significant growth in the
world, followed by other emerging markets, which
will also occupy higher market share.
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A.

TURE OUTLOOK (continued)
Global Solar PV Market (continued)

According to the analysis and forecast of China
Photovoltaic Industry Association (CPIA), the
implementation of the Paris Agreement, a global
climate agreement, and the declining LCOE
(Levelized Cost of Electricity) will facilitate the further
development of global solar PV market and expand
the areas and regions for photovoltaic applications.
By consolidating data from various major research
institutions and taking the minimum value as a
conservative estimate and the maximum value as an
optimistic estimate, it is expected that the global PV
market will continue to grow at a CAGR of 9% from
2016 to 2020.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK (continued)

A.

Global Solar PV Market (continued)
Solar PV Market in China

In 2016, the newly installed capacity of PV power
generation in China maintained a strong momentum,
reaching 34.54GW, not only contributed to almost
half of the global PV annual new installations, but also
ranked as the first in the world for four consecutive
years. The cumulative installed capacity amounted to
77.42GW. The newly installed and cumulative capacity
was both ranked as the first in the world. According
to CPIA’s forecast, the constructions for confirmed
targets of ordinary power stations, PV pioneers’ bases
and PV poverty alleviation quota identified in 2017
have been completed basically. With conservative
estimation, newly installed capacity can reach 20GW.
However, due to a possible adjustment to PV on-
grid tariffs in 2017, it is possible that there will be
a repeated occurrence of rush installations which
will push up the installed capacity. Accordingly, the
optimistic estimation for newly installed capacity is
expected to reach approximately 30GW in 2017. Under
the “13th Five-Year Plan” in China, the target for
cumulative installed capacity of PV power generation is
at 110-150GW. In the next few years, as the capacity
for distributed power generation keeps on the rise,
the domestic market is likely to remain at an average
growth of approximately 20GW per annum.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK (continued)

A.

Global Solar PV Market (continued)
Solar PV Market in China (continued)

The installed capacity of distributed PV power
generation grew at an accelerated rate, with 4.24GW
of newly installed capacity in 2016, representing an
increase of 200% over that in 2015, and 12% of
PV market share. The cumulative installed capacity
of distributed PV amounted to 10.32GW (Source:
National Energy Administration of China). In 2017,
with the construction of PV poverty alleviation
power stations and the possible introduction of the
favourable policy on tariff adjustment, the installed
capacity of distributed PV is expected to reach 6GW
or above, accounting for a proportion of more than
20%. From 2018 onward, under the guidance of
relevant national policies and plans, the proportion of
distributed power stations will continue to increase
rapidly. Distributed power generation is a market
tapped in early by the Group and is the focus of
the Group's business development. It is also an
application area that is particularly suitable for thin-
film cell products. In the next few years, we will,
by taking the market opportunities, seek for a larger
market share in distributed power generation.
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A. Global Solar PV Market (continued) A, ERKBEEXRTEE)
Solar PV Market in China (continued) HE ARG BEX R T 45 (42)
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Chart 3 The Market Trend of Different Types of PV Applications from 2016 to 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FUTURE OUTLOOK (continued)

B.

Policy Support from the Chinese Government

The photovoltaic industry, especially the new thin-
film solar technology as the focus of development,
is encouraged by Chinese national policies. In
addition to those encouraging policies, appropriate
policies are also being established to guide the
sustainable development of photovoltaic industry
towards a direction which is orderly and of high-
quality. Following the general direction of the national
photovoltaic policies, the local governments in the
country have also introduced various supporting
policies specific for the local photovoltaic industries,
in order to encourage the development of the industry
in an orderly and rapid manner.

On 29 February 2016, the National Energy
Administration of the PRC issued the "“Guidance on
the Induction System for Establishment of Targets
for Development and Utilization of Renewable Energy
Resources of National Energy Administration” ({E
R RPERBEYABARRFAZENABZEH
E K1 EZ B )), which encouraged the promotion
of renewable energy resources development and
utilization, and urged the achievement of energy
development strategic targets of non-fossil energies
consumption as a percentage of primary energy
consumption to reach 15% and 20% of the primary
energy consumption by 2020 and 2030, respectively.
The Guidance also gives the opinions on the
establishment of specific targets for development
and utilization of renewable energy resources, the
development of scientific plans, clear responsibilities
and obligations, the establishment of monitoring and
evaluation systems as well as on studies in relation
to improvements of the system and mechanisms of
renewable energy resources.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

FUTURE OUTLOOK (continued)

B.

Policy Support from the Chinese Government
(continued)

On 28 March 2016, in order to address the power
curtailment issues which had been hindering the
development of photovoltaic industry, the National
Development and Reform Commission of the PRC
issued the “"Management Measures on Protective
Entire Acquisition of Renewable Energy Power” ({A]
BARREREXHEREMEREEIRIE)), to ensure
that renewable energy power such as solar energy is
given full protection and acquired in its entirety, thus
protecting the interests of the investors and promoting
new energy production in a consumption revolution.

Thin film solar panels as a strategic focus

In June 2016, the NDRC, MIIT and Energy
Administration of the PRC jointly issued the “Made
in China 2025 — Energy Equipment Implementation
Program"” ({fF B &3 2025—REREBEE A E)), in
which the “Technical Breakthrough Section” stated
that “thin film and other new PV cells and modules:
research and development effort should be focused
on new solar cells that are available for mass
production, such as cadmium telluride thin film cells
with conversion efficiency exceeding 20%, CIGS thin-
film cells with conversion efficiency exceeding 21%,
three-five family compound cells, perovskite cells, dye-
sensitized cells, organic solar cells, quantum dot cells,
laminated cells and high-efficiency gallium arsenide
cells” with conversion efficiency exceeding 43%.

In July 2016, the NDRC of the PRC issued the 2016
working draft of “Guiding Catalogue of Key Products and
Services in Strategic Emerging Industries” (&8R4 ¥
WMEXSREDMREIEERH)), stated in “5.3.2 Solar
Manufacturing Equipment” that “photovoltaic equipment,
includes high purity, low energy consumption solar
energy class polysilicon production equipment, mono-
crystalline silicon drawing equipment, polycrystalline
silicon ingot equipment, multiline cutting equipment,
high efficiency battery pack and module manufacturing
equipment, thin film solar cells manufacturing equipment,
new solar cell such as condensed, flexible solar cells
manufacturing equipment.”
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FUTURE OUTLOOK (continued)

B.

Policy Support from the Chinese Government
(continued)

Thin film solar panels as a strategic focus (continued)

In July 2016, the State Council issued the “13th Five-
Year National Scientific and Technological Innovation
Plan”, stated in “lIl. Develop intelligent green
service manufacturing technology under Column 6
Advanced Manufacturing Technologies” that “4. Key
optoelectronic manufacturing equipment. Conduct
research and development of key manufacturing
equipment in the emerging industries including
new optical communication devices, semiconductor
lighting, efficient photovoltaic cells..., and enhance
the independent research and development
capabilities of key equipment in the emerging
sectors.”

In October 2016, the NDRC issued the “Notice on
Application for the Third Batch of Special Construction
Funds to Enhance Core Competitiveness of
Manufacturing and for Technological Reform in 2016"
KR MF 2016 FE=HBHEERESEBRBEEZD
FRF N R EACGETE B BRI TERRAT)), stated in “V.
The Development of Key New Materials” that “(B)
4. The industrialized application of thin film solar cell
materials (GaAs, CdTe, CIGS, etc.), vanadium cells
and large-scale energy storage technologies”.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

FUTURE OUTLOOK (continued)

B.

Policy Support from the Chinese Government
(continued)

Strong support for distributed photovoltaic power
generation

Currently, both national and local governments
in China are strongly encouraging and supporting
distributed power generation projects, by
introducing a series of national and local policies
to encourage the distributed PV industry, which
clearly demonstrated the long-term support for the
development of distributed PV industry. On 3 June
2016, the National Energy Administration issued the
“Notice on Implementation of Photovoltaic Power
Generation Project Construction in 2016 of National
Energy Administration " ((BReEEBHBEN TE2016
FHRRBEEERERTERNMBA)), stated that a
distributed photovoltaic power generation project was
not subject to limitations on scale of construction;
that the regional energy authorities would accept
registration of projects at any time; that power grid
enterprises should conduct connection procedures in
a timely manner; and that projects would be included
in the scope of subsidies once completed. Under
the latest subsidy policies released in late 2016, the
electricity subsidy to a national distributed power
project is maintained at the original level, that is,
RMBO0.42/kWh, with no cap on the construction scale
of household projects. In addition, a large number of
local governments, including Beijing, Hebei and Anhui,
also introduced separate electricity subsidy policies
for distributed power generation projects lasting for
different periods of years in order to promote the
construction of distributed power generation projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

FUTURE OUTLOOK (continued)

B.

Policy Support from the Chinese Government
(continued)

Strong support for distributed photovoltaic power
generation (continued)

By eliminating the obstacles restricting the
development of distributed photovoltaic power
generation and introducing a more regulated market,
it is believed that distributed photovoltaic power
generation will usher in more significant growth
in China. This is very beneficial to the Group's
distributed power generation business. The Group
will take advantage of this opportunity to improve
the construction of channel network and explore the
potentials of channels in a timely manner, so as to
further consolidate its current market position and
expand the scale of existing sales volume.

According to the trend of the current national
and local government policies, it is expected that
further policies will be introduced to promote the
development of photovoltaic industry, which will
have a positive effect on the industry. Driven by the
national supportive policies as well as the market, the
photovoltaic industry in China will continue to flourish
in the next few years. With the gradual saturation of
ground-mounted power stations in the northwestern
region of China, and the maturing conditions of grid
parity for PV power, the distributed photovoltaic
power generation will enter a stage of rapid
development in near future. With further improvement
of the energy storage technology, it is expected that
the construction of distributed solar power stations
will become popular in the densely populated, eastern
and southern regions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

FUTURE OUTLOOK (continued)

C.

Implementation of the Sales-oriented Strategy of
“One Base Two Fronts”

Through continuous corporate restructuring and
governance improvement, the Group has established
a clearer governance structure, efficient business
processes and customer-oriented sales culture, and
has further clarified its vision of becoming a leading
global provider of thin film power generation equipment
and photovoltaic application solutions. The Group has
adopted the strategic deployment of “One Base Two
Fronts"”, that is, based on the continuous innovation of
thin-film solar technology, and with “turnkey” solutions
for high-end equipment and production lines on the left
front, and “One-stop” solutions for distributed energies
and mobile energies on the right front. The Group
will focus on the upstream business of equipment
production lines, and the downstream businesses of
distributed and mobile energies.

By targeting the Asia-Pacific market and through direct
sales to major customers, the Group’'s upstream
business provides the major customers with integrated
“turnkey” solutions for thin film solar equipment and
production lines. The downstream business provides
“one-stop” services and solutions by targeting the
emerging markets in Asia-Pacific and the Americas,
through a “Double-Wheel” Strategy driven by
distributors/channel partners and direct sales to major
customers. Meanwhile, the Group is also actively
exploring the PPP model, to facilitate its upstream and
downstream businesses development.

The Group has put huge resources and efforts in the
downstream photovoltaic applications and achieved
good results. At present, the business model of the
Group’s downstream business has been established,
and the unique household system dealership model and
system are preliminarily mature, with more than one
thousand and two hundred distributors after rounds
of shuffling and optimization, covering basically all the
markets at city and county level across the nation.
These have laid the foundation for further development
of the Group.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK (continued)

D.

Continue to Upgrade Technologies and Speed Up
the Construction of New Bases

Over the past year, various technology paths of the
Group achieved new highs in terms of research and
development and mass production efficiencies. In
particular, Alta Devices' mass production modules
have an efficiency reaching 24.8%, and passed the
NREL verification in November. Now Alta Devices
holds three world records on conversion efficiency
for GaAs single knot cells, double knots cells and
modules. The R&D efficiency of MiaSolé's chips
reaches 19.4%, while the efficiency of the winner
module from the new generation process reaches
18%. This currently represents the highest efficiency
globally for sputtering CIGS flexible modules.
Solibro’s top mass production modules have an
efficiency of 16.97% (with 17.92% of effective area),
which set the world record for mass production of
co-evaporation CIGS modules. The R&D efficiency for
GSE's chips is 18.7%, while the average efficiency of
mass production modules is 15.6%, and the efficiency
of top mass production modules is 16.2%. HIT's cells
have a R&D efficiency reaching 23%.

The Group will continue to develop the thin-film solar
technology aggressively as a core competitiveness
of the Group, to further enhance the conversion
efficiencies of CIGS solar cells and GaAs solar cells
through continuous investment and research and
development, and will continue to improve its R&D
and manufacturing capabilities in the equipment
production line technologies of CIGS and GaAs. Such
technologies and capabilities constitute a crucial part
of the Group's competitive advantage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

FUTURE OUTLOOK (continued)

D.

Continue to Upgrade Technologies and Speed Up
the Construction of New Bases (continued)

To promote the localization and mass production of
these advanced technologies, one of the Group's
priorities in the future is to establish production
bases for CIGS and GaAs as soon as possible, and
to build up mass production capabilities in flexible
and efficient thin-film cells in the future. Due to
the ever-changing technologies, the expectations
of and support for new energy technologies, the
future demand for mobile and wearable solar PV
applications will increase significantly. Therefore, the
Group will focus on Alta Devices, MiaSolé and GSE
in the coming years and rapidly proceed with the
implementation of advanced thin film technologies
and constructions of production bases.

2016 was a year of breakthrough and growth for
the Group admist extreme adversity. Faced with
various difficulties due to the lingering effect of
trading suspension, the Group has been able to
tackle the difficulties with full enthusiasm and
strong determination, by aggressively carrying out
organization and system reforms, establishing an
organizational structure and mechanism that responds
to the market in a more timely and efficient manner,
constantly promoting technological innovation
and upgrading by making use of its technological
advantages. While actively exploring localization and
mass production of advanced thin film technologies,
the Group consistently implements the customer-
based sales culture, and focuses on promoting sales
operations, including downstream household power
generation, distributed power generation, agricultural
BIPV and photovoltaic

poverty alleviation projects, in order to develop more

photovoltaic applications,

applications suitable for thin film power generation
technologies. Adhering to the mission of
the World with Thin Film Power”
continue to move forward, with an aim to fostering a

“Changing
, the Group will

broader and brighter prospect for the thin film power
generation technology.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group have interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings of HK$1,050,635,000
(31 December 2015: HK$1,182,958,000) while the
cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
HK$248,674,000 (31 December 2015: approximately
HK$447,826,000).

Gearing ratio (total debt less cash and cash equivalent, tax
payable, deferred income, other non-current liabilities and
deferred tax liabilities (“Net Debt”) over adjusted capital
and net debt) as at 31 December 2016 was 36.43% (31
December 2015: 31.91%).

TREASURY POLICIES AND EXCHANGE &
OTHER EXPOSURES

The Group's monetary transactions and deposits continued
to be in the form of US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. The Group expected that the exposure to exchange
rates fluctuation was not significant and therefore had not
engaged in any hedging activities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: Nil).

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the
Group's subsidiaries have charged assets as security for
the bank borrowings (The details are set out in note 26
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings).

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, information on
sales and purchases relating to the major customers and
suppliers is summarized as follows:

FEEFRMER
BEe—_2—X"F+-_A=+—HI&FE " &
BEXrERFPRMEERZIHE RFEER S
(I

Sales (Percentage over total sales)

The largest customer SN
Five largest customers AAREP

Purchases (Percentage over total
purchases)

The largest supplier BAHER
Five largest suppliers hARHER

At 31 December 2016, Shandong Macrolink New
Resources Technology Limited was the Group’s largest
customer. All transactions between the Group and
the customer concerned were carried out on normal
commercial terms.

Other than Hanergy Holding and its affiliates (collectively
"Hanergy Affiliates”), none of the directors of the Company
(the "Director”), their associates, or any shareholder of
the Company which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital
had a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers or five largest suppliers for the year ended 31
December 2016.

PERSONNEL

The number of employees of the Group as at 31 December
2016 was 3,162 (31 December 2015: 2,881) of whom 511
(31 December 2015: 300) were office administration staff.

Remuneration of employees and directors are determined
according to individual performance and the prevailing
trends in different areas and reviewed on an annual basis.
The Group has also contributed mandatory provident fund,
retirement funds and provided medical insurance to its
employees.

Bonuses are awarded based on individual performance
and overall Group performance, and are made to certain
employees of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the Company's shares has been halted with
effect from 10:40 a.m. on 20 May 2015.

The Company received a letter from the SFC dated 15 July
2015 in relation to the Rule 8(1) directive of the Securities
and Futures (Stock Market Listing) Rules (Chapter 571V
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the "SMLR"), in which SFC
directed the Stock Exchange to suspend trading in the
securities of the Company.

The shares of the Company have been suspended
from trading for nearly two years, during which it
experienced numerous hardships. The Company has
been communicating with the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC") to seek resumption of
trading of the Company's shares on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) with the
view to protecting the interests of the Company and
its shareholders (including shareholders apart from the
controlling shareholder) as a whole. Finally, The SFC sets
out two requirements for the resumption. One requirement
is that Mr. Li Hejun (“Mr. Li", an executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company from 15 May 2014 to 20
May 2016) and the four existing independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs"”) agree not to contest liability and the
court orders sought by the SFC in the civil proceedings
commenced by the SFC under section 214 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) against them (“Section 214 Proceedings”).
The other requirement is the publication of a disclosure
document by the Company (the “Disclosure Document”)
which will provide detailed information on the Company’'s
activities, business, assets, liabilities, financial performance
and prospects. The Disclosure Document will need to be
submitted to the SFC for it to consider the Company’s
request for resumption under section 9 of the SMLR. The
powers of the SFC under section 9 of SMLR may only be
exercised by a meeting of the SFC and are not delegable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

SUSPENSION OF TRADING (continued)

On 23 January 2017, the SFC has commenced the Section
214 Proceedings to seek disqualification orders against Mr.
Li and the four INEDs (namely, Ms. Zhao Lan, Mr. Wang
Tongbo, Professor Xu Zheng and Dr. Wang Wenjing). The
disqualification orders, if given by the Court, will disallow
the five persons from being a director or being involved,
directly or indirectly, in the management of any corporation
for a certain period in Hong Kong. The SFC also seeks a
court order requiring Mr. Li to (a) procure Hanergy Holding
Group Limited (“Hanergy Holding”) and/or certain of its
subsidiaries (“Hanergy Affiliates”) to pay outstanding
receivables due to the Company and its subsidiaries under
the sales contracts entered into between Hanergy Holding
and a subsidiary of the Company in 2010 and 2011 within
2 years from the date of the order; and (b) execute a
contract of guarantee to secure the above-mentioned due
payment of all outstanding receivables by Hanergy Holding
and Hanergy Affiliates. Mr. Li and the four INEDs do not
intend to contest the Section 214 Proceedings.

As to the second requirement, the Company has been
preparing the Disclosure Document. The Company has also
engaged a financial adviser to conduct due diligence on
the Group and engaged auditors to conduct an audit on the
consolidated financial statements of the Company.

The Company has used and will continue to use its best
endeavours to fulfill the above-mentioned requirements for
resumption and will seek to resume trading of its shares
on the Stock Exchange as soon as possible. The Company
will make further announcement(s) on the progress of the
fulfillment of the two abovementioned requirements in due
course.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual
report together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. During the year under review, the Group’s revenue
and operating profit were derived principally from the
manufacture of equipment and turnkey production lines
for the manufacture of both amorphous silicon based and
CIGS thin film solar photovoltaic modules and sale of solar
power stations and rooftop power stations.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of operating segment information of the Group
during the year are set out in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 and the state of the Group's affairs as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 113 to 278.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend to declare a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND
CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To ascertain the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM to be held on Thursday, 8 June 2017, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
5 June 2017 to Thursday, 8 June 2017 (both dates
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the AGM, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 2
June 2017.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and
share options during the year are set out in notes 28 and
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’'s listed securities
for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the Annual Report 2015 (on pages 55-
58), continuing connected transactions of the Company
included: (1) Transfer of Assets and Leases and Operational
Support; and (2) Engineering Trial Run Agreement. The
parties to these agreements are Solibro Hi-Tech, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Solibro, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hanergy Holding Company Limited
(“Hanergy Holding”). The Company received a notice
from Hanergy Holding and was advised that the entire
equity interest of Solibro was disposed of to a third party
independent of and not connected with the Company and
its connected persons on 25 November 2015. Therefore
the above transactions no longer constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company in 2016.

In accordance with the reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the
Group had the following continuing connected transactions
during the year:

()  Supplemental agreements with Sichuan Hanergy
Photovoltaic Limited ("Sichuan Hanergy")

On 17 March 2014, Apollo Precision (Fujian)
Limited (“Fujian Apollo”) entered into supplemental
agreements to the original agreements with Sichuan
Hanergy. The entering into the Supplemental
Agreements constitutes a continuing connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of the Supplemental Agreements are disclosed
below:

(i) Supplemental Tenancy Agreements

Pursuant to the terms of the three Supplemental
Tenancy Agreements, Fujian Apollo shall rent the
Office Premises, the Factory Premises and the
Staff Dormitory owned by Sichuan Hanergy for a
term of three years commencing from 17 March
2014 to 9 March 2017. The monthly rent for the
Office Premises shall be RMB19,680 per month.
The monthly rent for the Factory Premises shall
be RMB314,280 per month. The monthly rent
for the Staff Dormitory shall be RMB10,800 per
month. The monthly rent is determined after
mutual agreement with reference to the monthly
rental of other similar premises in Shuangliu
County, Sichuan Province, the PRC.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

()  Supplemental agreements with Sichuan Hanergy
(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Supplemental Equipment Lease Agreement

Pursuant to the terms of the Supplemental
Equipment Lease Agreement, Sichuan Hanergy
shall lease the Production Line located in the
Factory Premises with equipments associated
with the Production Line to Fujian Apollo for a
term of three year commencing from 17 March
2014 to 9 March 2017. The monthly rent for the
Production Line and the equipments associated
thereto shall be RMB1,376,986.40 per month.
The monthly rent is determined after mutual
agreement with reference to the monthly rental
costs of other similar equipments used in the
Production Line in the PRC.

Supplemental Technology Agreement

Pursuant to the terms of the Supplemental
Technology Agreement, Sichuan Hanergy shall
upon the request of Fujian Apollo to provide
relevant equipments, material and facilities to
allow Fujian Apollo to carry out research on thin
film solar energy technology development. In
particular, Sichuan Hanergy shall upon request
of Fujian Apollo to provide PECVD furnaces
for research to be conducted by Fujian Apollo.
The term of the Supplemental Technology
Agreement shall commence from 17 March 2014
to 9 March 2017. The consideration payable
by Fujian Apollo to Sichuan Hanergy shall be
at RMB12,000 per PECVD furnace. Assuming
that the maximum number of PECVD furnaces
to be utilised by Fujian Apollo shall be 2,600,
the maximum aggregate consideration payable
by Fujian Apollo to Sichuan Hanergy under the
Supplemental Technology Agreement shall be
RMB31,200,000. The consideration payable by
Fujian Apollo to Sichuan Hanergy is determined
after mutual agreement with reference to the
costs and expenses to be borne by Sichuan
Hanergy in respect of each PECVD furnace.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(1

(1)

Supplemental agreements with Sichuan Hanergy
(continued)

(iii) Supplemental Technology Agreement
(continued)

Based on the monthly rental payment under
the Supplemental Tenancy Agreements and
Supplemental Equipment Lease Agreement
and the maximum anticipated consideration
payable under the Supplemental Technology
Agreement, the maximum aggregate annual
amount payable by the Group under the
Supplemental Agreements will be approximately
RMB51,860,952.

The details of the above transactions from (i) to
(iii) were set out in an announcement dated 18
March 2014.

Sales of Spare Parts

On 2 April 2014, Fujian Apollo entered into a Spare
Parts Sales Agreement with Hanergy Holding for
the sales of Spare Parts by Fujian Apollo to Hanergy
Holding (including any of its subsidiaries). Pursuant to
the Spare Parts Sales Agreement, Hanergy Holding
has agreed to purchase from Fujian Apollo, and
Fujian Apollo has agreed to sell to Hanergy Holding
(including any of its subsidiaries), the Spare Parts.

The selling price and payment terms for the sales of
Spare Parts are to be separately negotiated for each
Purchase Order by Fujian Apollo and Hanergy Holding.
The selling price and payment terms will be arrived
at after mutual agreement between Fujian Apollo and
Hanergy Holding.

Pursuant to the Spare Parts Sales Agreement, the
price of the Spare Parts cannot be higher than the
prevailing market price of spare parts.

Pursuant to the Spare Parts Sales Agreement, the
total consideration for the sales of Spare Parts by
Fujian Apollo to Hanergy Holding (including any of
its subsidiaries) for each of the three financial years
ended 31 December 2014, 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2016 shall not exceed RMB60 million,
RMB120 million and RMB120 million respectively
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(1

(1

Sales of Spare Parts (continued)

The Spare Parts Sales Agreement shall be effective
from the date on which the Spare Parts Sales
Agreement is signed and sealed by both parties up to
31 December 2016 (both dates inclusive), after which
it may be renewed on mutual agreement subject to
compliance with the Listing Rules requirements.

The details of the transactions were set out in an
announcement dated 3 April 2014.

Charter Flights Agreement

On 22 July 2014, Beijing Hanergy, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Charter
Flight Agreement with Hanergy Civil Aviation
Company Limited (“Hanergy Aviation”), pursuant to
which, Hanergy Aviation agreed to provide charter
flights and related services to Beijing Hanergy for
a term of three years from 23 July 2014 to 22 July

2017 (both dates inclusive).

The details of the transactions were set out in an
announcement dated 23 July 2014.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(IV) MiaSolé Service Agreement

On 7 March 2016, MiaSolé Hi-Tech Corp. (“MiaSolé
Hi-Tech"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and MiaSolé, a wholly owned subsidiary of Hanergy
Holding, entered into a service agreement (the
“Service Agreement”) pursuant to which MiaSolé
Hi-Tech agreed to provide to MiaSolé business and
commercial management, accounting and finance,
legal, purchasing/procurement, and other general
administrative services necessary for the operation
of MiaSolé's business as a purchasing agent for
transacting product and direct material sales between
the customer and vendor base.

Pursuant to the Service Agreement, MiaSolé shall pay

to MiaSolé Hi-Tech a monthly fixed fee of US$67,500
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

The details of the transactions were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 8 March 2016.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
had reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
(I) — (IV) and confirmed the transaction had been entered
into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(2) either on normal commercial terms or, if there were
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they were on normal commercial terms, on
terms no less favourable to the Company than terms
available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company's auditors, were engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740
Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst &
Young have issued their unqualified letter containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’'s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

SHARE OPTION

(1

Share Option Scheme
Principal terms of Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the terms of the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 28 August 2007 (the
“Share Option Scheme”), the Company may grant
option to (i) any director, employee or consultant of
the Group or a company in which the Group holds
an equity interest or a subsidiary of such company
("Affiliate”); or (ii) any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include any director, employee
or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or (iii)
a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate;
(iv) any customer, supplier or adviser whose service
to the Group or business with the Group contributes
or is expected to contribute to the business or
operation of the Group as may be determined by
the Directors from time to time to subscribe for the
shares of the Company.

The Share Option Scheme is set up for the purpose
of attracting and retaining quality personnel and other
persons and providing incentive to them to contribute
to the business and operation of the Group. To this
end, the Directors may specify the minimum period,
if any, for which an option must be held or the
performance targets, if any, that must be achieved
before the option can be exercised.

Share options may be granted without any initial
payment for the share options at an exercise price
(subject to adjustments as provided therein) equal
to the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares;
(ii) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the
grant of the share option; and (iii) the average closing
price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
share option.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

SHARE OPTION (continued)

(1)

Share Option Scheme (continued)
Principal terms of Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the company shall not exceed
10% of the share capital of the Company in issue
on 28 August 2007, the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme, unless a refresh approval of
the shareholders is obtained. At a special general
meeting of the Company held on 11 June 2010,
the shareholders of the Company have approved to
refresh the 10% limit. As at the date of this report,
the total number of shares available for issue upon
the exercise of all options granted or to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is 461,224,947
(representing 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of passing the resolution to
refresh the 10% limit).

The maximum number of the shares (issued and to
be issued) in respect of which share options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme to any one
grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
last date of such 12-month period unless approval of
the shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Share Option Scheme was approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 28 August 2007
and has a life of 10 years until 27 August 2017. The
exercise period of an option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall not be more than ten years
from its date of grant and may include the minimum
period, if any, for which such option must be held
before it can be exercised.
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SHARE OPTION (continued)

(I)  Share Option Scheme (continued)

Principal terms of Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercisable period of the share options granted
was determined by the directors of the Company
each time when the options were granted. Holders

BRER)

() BERmESTE(E)
RSB EEKN(E)

PR ENTTEREANARESE
BRRHBRERORE - RIZBARERT
FEFLBRENFTBARTE NITT

of share options granted under the Share Option R TIF H BB AAE
Scheme may only exercise their options during the
exercisable periods as follows:
Maximum
percentage of
exercisable
Date of grant Exercisable period share options
ATEBREZ
RHEBH 1THEH EREDL
27/10/2014 27/10/2014 31/10/2015 10%
—NE+AZ++H —AFt+AZt+ttHEE-—RAF+A=1+—H
1/11/2015 31/10/2016 10%
—E—RAFt+—HA—HBE_Z—XFt+tA=+—H
1/11/2016-31/10/2017 10%
—E—XFt+—HA—HBE_ZTZ—+%+A=+—H
1/11/2017-31/10/2018 10%
—F—+F+—A—HBz_ZZ—)/\&+A=+—H
1/11/2018-31/10/2019 60%
—E-N\F+—F—HEZZE-hF+A=+—H
30/1/2015 30/1/2015 29/1/2016 10%
E—hFE—H=1H —hAF—A=+HE=ZE—RF—HA=+NH
30/1/2016 29/1/2017 10%
—E-RF—A=+BHE=_ZE—+F—A=-+A1H
30/1/2017-29/1/2018 10%
—E—+F—-A=+AE-ZT—-/\E—A=-t+AhA8
30/1/2018-29/1/2019 10%
—E- ) \F—A=t+RAE-ZT—-NF—A=-t+AhA8
30/1/2019-29/1/2020 60%
—E-NEF-A=ZtTHEZEZEF—-A=+NH
16/4/2015 16/4/2015-15/4/2016 10%
—E-RAFMA+H —E-RAFNA+NEE_E—XFNA+EHAH
16/4/2016-15/4/2017 10%
—RNFNA+NBE=Z—+FMNA+AHH
16/4/2017-15/4/2018 10%
—tFHA+ANBE=ZE-N\FMNA+AHH
16/4/2018-15/4/2019 10%
—E-N\FEHA+ABEE-NFHEA+RA
16/4/2019-15/4/2020 60%

—E-NAFNA+ABE-_ZE-_EFNA+HEHA
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SHARE OPTION (continued)

(1

Share Option Scheme (continued)
Movements of share options

Details of the movements in the share options

B2
() EERESTEI(4)
BRELD

ERRBERESEEHERE 2D

granted under the Share Option Scheme during the EWT
year are as follows:
Movement of
share options
Qutstanding s~ during the year  Qutstanding as
Exercise at EREREZEE at
Eligible persons Date of grant price  Exercise period 112016 Lapsed 311212016
RZB-AF RZB-%E
-f-H TZAZt-8
SERAL RiLAH %8 &8 HAITE BAN HAITE
(HKS)
(B1)
Director
s
Dr. Lam Yat Ming Eddie 2711012014 1.716° 27/10/2014-31/10/2019 1,800,000 200,000) 1,600,000
M-t ZE-MEHAZTEA “E-RE+A-TLAEZE-NETAZT-H
Other employees 27/10/2014 1716 27/10/2014-31/10/2019 43,920,000 10,480,000) 33,440,000
EES ZE-METAZ TR “3-RE+A-TtAE-F-NETAZT-A
3012015 361 30/1/2015-2912020 16,735,000 (715,000) 16,020,000
“3-1%5-A=1R TB-RE-AZtAE-E-FE-A-tAR
16/4/2015 6.91 16/4/2015-15/4/2020 23,600,000 (7,580,000) 16,020,000
“E-REMmATAR ZE-RFMATARECECEFRATRRA
86,055,000 (18,975,000) 67,080,000
ANNUAL REPORT 2016 R -RFFR
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SHARE OPTION (continued)

(1

Other Options

The Company has also granted other options to
certain consultants upon completion of acquisition
of Apollo Precision Ltd. and its subsidiaries (“Solar
Business”) in November 2009 as incentive of their
contribution to the development of Solar Business
(the “Other Options 1”). The Other Options | were not
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

Principal terms of the Other Options |

The Other Options | entitled the consultants to
subscribe for an aggregate of 320,000,000 shares of
the Company as adjusted after the share subdivision
effective from 5 November 2009 at an exercise price
of HK$0.25 after the share subdivision effective from
5 November 2009 for a period of 5 years from the
date of granting of the Other Options |. The vesting
period was 1 year from the date of grant. Details of
the Other Options | are set out in the circular dated
29 October 2009. The Other Options | was expired on
24 November 2014.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

SHARE OPTION (continued)

(1)

Other Options (continued)
Principal terms of the Other Options Il

On 18 September 2011, the Company entered into
the 2011 Option Agreements with each of Hanergy
Holding and Apollo Management respectively
pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed
to grant the 2011 Options to Hanergy Holding (or
its designated individuals or entities) and Apollo
Management (the "“Other Options [I”) . On 16
December 2011 (the “Date of Grant”), after fulfilment
of the conditions precedent to each of the 2011
Options Agreements, the Company had granted
the Other Options Il to Hanergy Option Limited
(Hanergy Holding’'s designated entities) and Apollo
Management. The Other Options Il were not granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

The Other Options Il entitled Hanergy Option Limited
(Hanergy Holding's designated entities) and Apollo
Management to subscribe for an aggregate of 1.3
billion shares and 100 million shares of the Company
at an exercise price of HK$0.1664 respectively. They
will lapse upon the fifth anniversary of the Date of
Grant. For the Other Options Il granted to Hanergy
Option Limited on 16 December 2011, the exercise
periods are as follows:

()  Options to subscribe for 610 million shares of
the Company are exercisable during the period
commencing on the Date of Grant and ending on
the day immediately prior to the fifth anniversary
of the Date of Grant;

B
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Hivfg i (2)
HtIERE 2 EZHFH7

RZFE——FNA+N\B " AR2FH
PR EREIEREAGEEES AL
“E-—FERERE B AQ
BlEBKGREREREER(GEETE
ZATHEB)RABERERL -F
—— FERETEMBREN] K=
T——FF+ZA+ABUELRE]D -
ER-_T——FERERRSELR
& 1% » N2 8] & M Hanergy Option
Limited CEREIERIEE 2 B8 ) K5
ERERE AR - AR I
W IR IR AR M AT BB o

H 4 B A% #1118 T Hanergy Option
Limited CEREIERIE T 2 B8 ) K5
BB IRITEE0.1664 BT 5l
REBAHL13ER M VERAQTRS -
ERESNEEABHAAFLRK - B
—E——F+ = A+/XHBE FHanergy
Option Limited Z E fth 8R4 1| 2 1T
HAGDT -
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SHARE OPTION (continued)

(1

Other Options (continued)

Principal terms of the Other Options Il (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Options to subscribe for 310 million shares of
the Company are exercisable during the period
commencing on the first anniversary of the Date
of Grant and ending on the day immediately prior
to the fifth anniversary of the Date of Grant;

Options to subscribe for 310 million shares
of the Company are exercisable during the
period commencing on the second anniversary
of the Date of Grant and ending on the day
immediately prior to the fifth anniversary of the
Date of Grant;

Options to subscribe for 10 million shares of
the Company are exercisable during the period
commencing on the third anniversary of the Date
of Grant and ending on the day immediately prior
to the fifth anniversary of the Date of Grant; and

Options to subscribe for 60 million shares of
the Company are exercisable during the period
commencing on the fourth anniversary of the
Date of Grant and ending on the day immediately
prior to the fifth anniversary of the Date of
Grant.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION (continued)

(1

Other Options (continued)

Principal terms of the Other Options Il (continued)

BR
(I

HtiEREI =B (&)
BTG ERE  HMBEEIZ1TE

For the Other Options Il granted to Apollo

Management, the exercise periods are as follows:

From the Date
of Grant and

From the first
anniversary
of the Date

of Grant and

)
Hin B (&)

B R ¢

Exercise periods

e

From the
second
anniversary
of the Date
of Grant and

From

From the third the fourth
anniversary anniversary
of the Date of the Date

of Grantand  of Grant and

ending on ending on ending on ending on ending on
the day the day the day the day the day
immediately ~ immediately  immediately ~ immediately  immediately
prior to prior to prior to prior to prior to
the fifth the fifth the fifth the fifth the fifth
anniversary of  anniversary of  anniversary of anniversary of anniversary of
the Date of the Date of the Date of the Date of the Date of
Grant Grant Grant Grant Grant Total
mEH HELAS HELAS mELHAS HELAH
RHEE -BERE WREFEE ZRFEE mAFEE
SERLAE PERUPE PERYUPE ZERLEE  ZERLED
Name of grantees ~ ABEAES TEFACAL EH@EEFACAL DEFMZAL DEEMZAL DEFHZAL &it
Mr. Frank Mingfang Dai  Frank Mingfang Dai
ped 2,800,000 2,800,000 2,800,000 2,800,000 16,800,000 28,000,000
Mr. Hui Ka Wah, TRERE
Ronnie J.P. A T4t 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,400,000 14,400,000 24,000,000
Dr. Li Yuan-min FIREL 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 7,200,000 12,000,000
Dr. Xu Xixiang BEABL 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 7,200,000 12,000,000
Dr. Shan Hongging ~ EREEL 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 7,200,000 12,000,000
Mr. Li Guangmin FERRE 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 3,600,000 6,000,000
Mr. Xu Xiaohua BEERE 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 3,600,000 6,000,000
Total &5t 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 60,000,000 100,000,000

Details of the Other Options Il are set out in the
circular dated 14 November 2011. The Other Options
Il was expired on 15 December 2016.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

SHARE OPTION (continued)

(1)

Other Options (continued)
Principal terms of the Other Options Il

On 6 September 2012 (after the trading hours), the
Company and Hanergy Holding entered into the
Option Agreement, pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to grant Hanergy Holding
(or such person(s) at its direction) the Options to
subscribe for an aggregate of 600,000,000 Option
Shares at the exercise price of HK$0.25 per Option
Share (the “Other Options Il1"). On 31 December
2012 (the "“Grant Date”), after fulfilment of the
conditions precedent to Option Agreement, the
Company had granted the Other Options Il to
Hanergy Investment Limited (Hanergy Holding's
designated entities). The Other Options Ill were not
granted under the Share Option Scheme. They will
lapse upon the fifth anniversary of the Grant Date.

For the Other Options IlIl granted to Hanergy
Investment Limited on 31 December 2012, the
exercise periods are as follows:

() 300,000,000 Option Shares are exercisable
during the period commencing from the Grant
Date to the day immediately prior to the fifth
anniversary of the Grant Date;

(i) 150,000,000 Option Shares are exercisable
during the period commencing from the first
anniversary of the Grant Date to the day
immediately prior to the fifth anniversary of the
Grant Date; and

(ii) 150,000,000 Option Shares are exercisable
during the period commencing from the second
anniversary of the Grant Date to the day
immediately prior to the fifth anniversary of the
Grant Date.
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(1

SHARE OPTION (continued) BikEE)
Other Options (continued) () HitnlEmREE)
Movements of Other Options BmBERELZE
Details of the movements in the Other Options FARTFREEZENEMBREZ S
granted to the participants during the year are as (=N
follows:
Outstanding Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Exercise as at during during as at
Name Date of grant price  Exercise period 11/2016 the year the year 311212016
RZB-AE RZE-AE
-B-A TZR=1-H
£B RHAE ke &8 HRITE FRfR ERkH HRITE
(HK9)
(A1)
Other Options Il granted to ~ 16/12/2011 0.1664  16/12/2011-15/12/2016 65,800,000 (41,800,000 (24,000,000} S
Apollo Management
RTHGEREL —3—-f “E——F4+-A+/RZ
EftERE TZA+#H 2 ETZATER
QOther Options Il granted to  16/12/2011 01664 16/12/2011-15/12/2016 70,121,640 (70,120,000) (1,640) =
Hanergy Option Limited
1% Hanergy Option 5% “F——F+-B1/RZ
Limited 2 £t R tZA+RA ZE-ETZATHRA
Other Options Ill granted ~ 31/12/2012 025 31112/2012-30/12/2017 286,655,400 (30,000) — 286,625,400
to Hanergy Investment
Limited
¥ Hanergy Investment 3% “E-—E+-f=+-H%
Limited 2 &R t-A=+-H ZE-tFTZA=tH

The consideration received from issued of shares
upon exercise of other options is approximately

HK$18,630,988 during the year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

T NEER

FAREBREEITHEMEITRMDU
Bz (B4 418,630,988 T °

71



72

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the consolidated financial statements set out on
pages 117 and 118.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution to shareholders at 31 December
2016 were as below:

B
AEE FERFRZEDERERE 117 E
RENSEGAHBRETGARRED X
WO

EERL ARAR-E—AE+=A
S+ RAESETREZ EEOT

2016 2015

—E-RF —T—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

Contributed surplus B A% 33,132 33,132

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the carrying value of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in prior years and reorganisation during the year ended 31
December 2009 which, under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), is available for distribution to
the shareholders of the Company. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out
of contributed surplus if:

(i) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be

less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium account.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws (“Bye-laws”) although there is no
statutory restriction against such rights under the laws in
Bermuda.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Details of the borrowings of the Group outstanding at 31
December 2016 is set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements. There is no capitialised interest in
2016.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’'s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2016 are set out in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five year financial summary is shown on pages 279 and
280.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuan Yabin (Chairman)
(Appointed on 20 May 2016)
Dr. Lam Yat Ming Eddie (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiong (Vice Chairman)
(Appointed on 1 November 2016)
Mr. Si Haijian (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Songchun (Financial Controller)
Mr. Xu Xiaohua (Appointed on 20 May 2016)
Mr. Zhang Bin (Appointed on 1 October 2016)
Mr. Li Hejun (Chairman) (Resigned on 20 May 2016)

Mr. Frank Mingfang Dai
(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on 20 May 2016)

Dr. Feng Dianbo (Deputy Chairman)
(Resigned on 20 May 2016)

Mr. Chen Li (Executive Vice-President)
(Resigned on 20 May 2016)

Mr. Zhang Bo (Resigned on 15 July 2016)

Mr. Lin Qi (Appointed on 17 July 2016 and
resigned on 1 October 2016)

Mr. Liu Jianjun (Appointed on 20 May 2016 and
resigned on 1 November 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhao Lan

Mr. Wang Tongbo
Professor Xu Zheng
Dr. Wang Wenjing

In accordance with the bye-law 86(2) of the Company’'s
Bye-Laws, Mr. Yuan Yabin, Mr. Wang Xiong, Mr. Xu
Xiaohua and Mr. Zhang Bin will hold office until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with the bye-law 87(1) of the Company’'s
Bye-Laws, Dr. Lam Yat Ming Eddie, Mr. Si Haijian and Mr.
Huang Songchun will retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the directors or the chief
executive of the Company had interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as
follows:

underlying shares
under derivatives

EEzRER

RZEBE-—XRE+ZA=+—8B XRAES
FEBTHRABEARASKEMEE(ER
REmREGREI(TES PR RG D EXV
BB Z By ~ BB K E S A E AR
RARRIRIERE 7 R AEGHIF 362 (FAFE
ZERMzERIRR  IARBEFEBAR
SRAERRRES EHARRNT MR DM
BTAE EMBTABFETESRXSH
SETA(MRETADANEARRRER
BMEXZAARAR(THAA ) 2 #aEIR
REIIAT

Number of
Percentage of
issued share

Number equity/share capital

Name of Director Capacity held of shares options Total interests (%)

fTETEER HERT

BT 2RBRG/ RAEDH

BEfZ BEEH RB8AE BREHE AES (%)

Mr. YUAN Yabin Beneficial owner 20,220,000(L) = 20,220,000(L) 0.048
REWEE ERBRA

Dr. LAM Yat Ming Eddie  Beneficial owner — 1,600,000(L) 1,600,000(L) 0.004
H—BET EafBA

Mr. HUANG Songchun Beneficial owner 1,162,500(L) 418,500(L) 1,681,000(L) 0.004
BRELE ERfAA

Mr. SI Haijian Beneficial owner — 1,500,000(L) 1,500,000(L) 0.004
ki 5 e ERBEA

Mr. XU Xiaohua Beneficial owner 6,000,000(L) — 6,000,000(L) 0.014
RREELE ERBRA

L — Long positions 4 &
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ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none
of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
had registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” in
the report of the Directors and note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed Share Option
above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management
or administration of the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year
without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the Group's retirement scheme are shown in
note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's retirement scheme contributions charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year amounted to
approximately HK$31,567,000 (2015: HK$59,714,000).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO shows that other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of certain directors and chief
executives of the Company, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued
share capital of the Company.

BT E

AEE 2 RINGEFBRHNGRE B RERW
F$2.4 -0

AFEE EHRABEEREME2EmEREIRNDG
ZAREERNEE ZH K4 A31,667,0008
TT(ZE—F%F : 59,714,000/87T) °

FERR

RZF-—ARE+-A=1t—8  X2ARE
B MEEGRPIE 336 IRFEZ EERRAM
BR BREXFREAHEETEERART
FBITRABZESSI - THEREBAAN
RAFARHARBERITIRAZ HRER -

Number of Percentage of

underlying shares issued share

Number of  under derivatives Total capital

Name of shareholder Capacity Shares equity interests (%)

fIETERHEET HER

RREH BRftE RAEE ZEBRAEE BRER TRFE

Mr. Li He Jun Interest of controlled corporation  31,057,190,297(L) 150,588,000(L)  31,207,778,297(L) 74.75
FUERE AR 2 s (Note 1)
(Bt 1)

3,122,000,000(S) 3,122,000,000(S) 7.46

TREHSHEFERAT  Interest of controlled corporation  29,995,830,297(L) 150,588,000(L)  30,146,418,297(L) 72.02
FrEHIAE s (Note 1)
(Wit1)

2,822,000,000(5) 2,822,000,000(S) 6.74

T RERENREBRLT  Interest of controlled corporation  29,995,830,297(L) 150,588,000(L)  30,146,418,297(L) 72.02
FEsIAE s (Note 1)
(Hizt1)

2,822,000,000(5) 2,822,000,000(S) 6.74

Hanergy Holding Beneficial owner & Interest of 29,995,830,297(L) 150,588,000(L)  30,146,418,297(L) 72.21
Ea controlled corporation (Note 1)
BRlR ARMEHEE 2R (Wit 1)

2,822,000,000(S) 2,822,000,000(S) 6.76
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

FERRE)

Number of
underlying shares

Percentage of

issued share

Number of  under derivatives Total capital
Name of shareholder Capacity Shares equity interests (%)
fIETARSEET HE®
RRE® ERftE RAEE ZERRGEE BRER TRAEA
EXHIENHLERAT  Interest of controlled corporation  29,926,418,297(L) 150,588,000(L)  30,146,418,297(L) 72.02
FriEslAE s (Note 1)
(Hz1)
2,822,000,000(S) 2,822,000,000(S) 6.74
Hanergy Investment Beneficial owner & Interest of 19,654,500,921(L) 150,588,000(L)  19,805,088,921(L) 47.44
Limited controlled corporation 2,822,000,000(S) 2,822,000,000(S) 6.76
ERBE ARFEHEE s
Hanergy Option Limited ~ Beneficial owner 2,966,785,603(L) — 2,966,785,603(L) 7.1
EREEA
GL Wind Farm Investment Beneficial owner 1,973,684,104(L) — 1,973,684,104(L) 4.73
Limited ExBA 400,000,000(S) - 400,000,000(S) 0.96
China Genco Investment  Beneficial owner 1,917,937,219(L) - 1,917,937,.219(L) 4.61
Limited ERHEA 982,000,000(S) 982,000,000(S) 2.36
BIREATNMERRE  Interest of controlled corporation  1,061,360,000(L) —  1,061,360,000(L) 2.54
ERERAT gt e 3 300,000,000(S) 300,000,000(S) 0.72
TRESERRFEBLF  Interest of controlled corporation  1,061,360,000(L) — 1,061,360,000(L) 2.54
FrnslzE 2 s 300,000,000(S) 300,000,000(S) 0.72
ERARRRERAR Beneficial owner 1,061,360,000(L) —  1,067,360,000(L) 254
EaEAA 300,000,000(S) 300,000,000(S) 0.72

L — Long positions &
S — Short positions K&

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Note:

1. These shares comprise the Second Tranche of
1,473,458,688 Subscription Shares at the Subscription Price
of HK$0.12 per Subscription Share and the Third Tranche
of 1,473,458,688 Subscription Shares at the Subscription
Price of HK$0.10 per Subscription Share will be issued and
allotted pursuant to Subscription Agreement dated 20 May
2010 and the subsequent Supplementary Agreement.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified any interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO
as at 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the corporate governance practices of the
Company is set out on pages 81 to 94 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

CHANGE OF PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

The Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
has been relocated to Room 2403A, 24/F, World Trade
Centre, 280 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
with effect from 13 September 2016.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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AUDITORS

Ernst & Young was appointed by the Directors to conduct
audit on the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2016. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
reappoint Ernst & Young as the auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yuan Yabin
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC, 30 March 2017

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is dedicated to provide effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders.

The Board has established the following committees to
oversee different areas of the Company’'s affairs. The
composition of the Board and the committees are given
below and their respective responsibilities are discussed
later in this report. The terms of references of these
committees adopted by the Board are published on the
Company’s website (www.hanergythinfilmpower.com).

As at 31 December 2016, the members of the Board and
the committees are as follows:

Board -

Independent non-executive Directors B IEHITES

Ms. Zhao Lan R+
Mr. Wang Tongbo FREE A
Professor Xu Zheng BUEHIR
Dr. Wang Wenjing X EEL

e Chairperson of the committee Z8 & X &

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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TRERBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(continued)

The Board sets the Group's objectives and strategies
and monitors its performance. The Board also decides
on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments, dividend and
accounting policies. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility of managing and overseeing the Group's
day to day operations to the Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Directors of the Company and respective
directors of principal subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Yuan Yabin is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Si
Haijian is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
There are clear divisions among their responsibilities with
a view to achieving a balance of power and authority. The
Chairman provides leadership to the Board in terms of
formulating policies and strategies. The Chief Executive
Officer of the Company has the overall responsibility
of implementing the decisions, policies and strategies
approved by the Board, and overseeing the Group's
business and operations.

The Company had received annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive directors as regards
their independence to the Company and based on the
contents of such confirmations, considers that each of the
independent non-executive Directors is independent to the
Company.

The company secretary of the Company assists the
Chairman in setting the agenda of board meetings and
each Director is invited to present any businesses that they
wish to discuss or propose at the meetings. All Directors
have timely access to all relevant information of the
meetings and may take professional advice if necessary.
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THE BOARD

GOVERNANCE REPORT

Exg

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Board meeting #HE-ZT— X "F+_A=+—HIFEGHHE
and general meeting were held with details of the fTEEeeZLABREAS  E=LHFEFBLO

Directors’ attendance set out below: T
Attendance/No. of meetings
HERE ERRH
Board meeting General meeting

Directors = Exged BEAE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yuan Yabin ROWEE

(Appointed on 20 May 2016) (RZFE—NFAAZ+HEZF) 3/3 N/A
Dr. Lam Yat Ming Eddie M—IBEL 4/4 171
Mr. Wang Xiong THESE

(Appointed on 1 November 2016)  (R=F—~F+—H—HEZ(T) 171 N/A
Mr. Si Haijian AEREE 4/4 Al
Mr. Huang Songchun HINFEE 4/4 171
Mr. Xu Xiachua RBEELE

(Appointed on 20 May 2016) (R=ZF—NFRAZTHEZ) 2/3 N/A
Mr. Zhang Bin R

(Appointed on 1 October 2016) (R=ZF—NF+HA—HEZH) 171 N/A
Mr. Li Hejun TUELEE

(Resigned on 20 May 2016) (R=F—NFRA-+HET) 2/2 A
Mr. Frank Mingfang Dai Frank Mingfang Dai %t 4

(Resigned on 20 May 2016) (R=ZF—NEAZH=1ABT) 2/2 A
Dr. Feng Dianbo HERIE L

(Resigned on 20 May 2016) (R=ZF—~FARA=FHFE) 2/2 171
Mr. Chen Li BRA%E

(Resigned on 20 May 2016) (R=F—NFRA-+HET) 2/2 A
Mr. Zhang Bo FRTE

(Resigned on 15 July 2016) (R=ZF—NF+ A+ HAFTF) 2/2 A
Mr. Lin Qi MRS &

(Appointed on 17 July 2016 and (R=ZFB—NF+HAT+HEZE

resigned on 1 October 2016) PRZF—NF+H—HEHE) 171 N/A
Mr. Liu Jianjun BlEERE

(Appointed on 20 May 2016 and (REZBE—NFAAZ+HEZ(E

resigned on 1 November 2016) PR=ZF—NF+—A—HFE) 2/2 N/A
Independent non-executive BUFHTES

Directors
Ms. Zhao Lan Fiz)lee 4/4 7
Mr. Wang Tongbo TRBEE 4/4 11
Professor Xu Zheng TRIEHIX 4/4 Al
Dr. Wang Wenjing TXEHFEL 4/4 11
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TRERBE

THE BOARD (continued)

Under the Bye-laws, all Directors are currently required to
offer themselves for re-election by rotation at least once
every three years. All Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to election at the first general
meeting after their appointment.

The independent non-executive Directors were not
appointed for a specific term but their directorship were
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws"”) and the Listing Rules. Under the Bye-laws, one-third
of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting. According to the Listing Rules,
every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

The Directors will continuously review and improve the
corporate governance practices and standards of the
Company to ensure that business activities and decision
making process are regulated in a proper and prudent
manner.

During the year, the Chairman had at least annually held
meetings with all independent non-executive directors
without the executive directors present.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 20
May 2016, the chairman of the Board and the members of
all board committees, together with the external auditor
of the Company were present to be available to answer
any question to ensure effective communication with
shareholders of the Company.

Every newly appointed director of the Company had
received a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on appointment. Subsequently any briefing or continuous
professional development will be provided to ensure that
Director has a proper understanding of the Company’'s
operations and business and is fully aware of his
responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing
Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the
Company’s business and governance policies.
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THE BOARD (continued)

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. During the year, in-house seminar
was conducted covering the topics on insider dealing,
false trading, price rigging, disclosure of information about
prohibited transactions, disclosure of false or misleading
information inducing transactions, and stock market
manipulation. Directors participated in the following

trainings:

Directors 2=
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yuan Yabin REWEE
Dr. Lam Yat Ming Eddie M—IStE L
Mr. Wang Xiong FERA
Mr. Si Haijian AR EAE
Mr. Huang Songchun HINELE
Mr. Xu Xiaohua fRBEEERL
Mr. Zhang Bin R A
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Ms. Zhao Lan HEZ T
Mr. Wang Tongbo TRZEE
Professor Xu Zheng BRAEHR
Dr. Wang Wenjing F XL

S: Attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums
relating to directors’ duties

R: Reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the
economy, general business or directors’ duties, etc.
Induction training provided by lawyer on new appointment

To the best of knowledge of the Company, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships among members of the Board.

Appropriate insurance to cover against liability of the

Directors and officers of the Company was arranged and
will be renewed annually.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company was established to
review the Group's financial reporting, risk management,
internal controls and corporate governance issues and
make relevant recommendations to the Board. As at 31
December 2016, the Audit Committee comprised four
independent non-executive Directors. The chairman of
the Audit Committee possesses appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules. Please refer
to biography section of Directors for further details of the
committee members.

The Audit Committee may elect to ask the external
auditors to attend its meetings. During the year, the Audit
Committee has met with the external auditors with no
executive Directors present.

Ms. Zhao Lan (Chairperson) WEZT(EE)
Mr. Wang Tongbo TR LA
Professor Xu Zheng BRAEBUR

Dr. Wang Wenjing F XL

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The services provided by Ernst & Young and other audit
firms and the fees thereof for the year ended 31 December
2016 and 2015, respectively, were as follows:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BEREEE

RARRzEREZEG K INERNAEER 2
MBHRER RRERE  AFEEREEER
EH UHESSREIBEAZZ NZ2F
—A"F+ZA=+—H BEZZECEEN
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%V%Eﬁ*T IERRINERBEMLEREE
cRAFE  BRZBEC HBINEZHE
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No. of meetings attended

HESZXH

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2

BT =

X RHEN R TRE M E A E ISP AL
E_T-REFR-_FT-AF+-_A=1+—H
IFEFEEDRIRMEZ R R EERERDT

2016 2015

—E-ARF —_T—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

Statutory Annual EEFE FET FEIT

Ernst & Young LKA B AT

— Agreed upon procedure — MEEF 5,263 2,242

— Annual audit and special audit — FEEZRFREZ 23,352 12,458

— Other service — HAtbfR% — 74
Other audit firms for the audit and other ~ Efh & AT EK Az Tz M EH

related service A AR 2,652 1,484

31,267 16,258

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company was
established to review the remuneration of Directors and
the Group's salary policy. A majority of members are
independent non-executive Directors. To minimize any
conflict of interest, any member who is interested in
any given proposed motion is required to abstain from
voting on such motion. During the year under review, the
Remuneration Committee had reviewed the Group's policy
and structure for all remuneration of Directors, and the
remuneration of new Directors on appointment.

Ms. Zhao Lan (Chairperson) HEZLE(EE)
Mr. Wang Tongbo FRE LA
Professor Xu Zheng EXNE 5

Dr. Wang Wenjing TEE L

With reference to the respective duties and responsibilities
of Directors in the Group as well as the prevailing market
condition, the monthly remuneration (including salary and
director’s fee) of the following Directors were adjusted as

'E GOVERNANCE REPORT

FMEES

ARBIZHFMEEERIINERNESHE &
AEBEH MK - KEBD KB /BT
Ex - ARV EERRERE  EAKEN
RATRN 2 MBI @ET EE#EZD - AR
HPEMERRE - REBEFE  FHEZES
EEHNASEEECMAFTHBRRRRE
IANRFTEZEES 2 Hb -

No. of meetings attended

HESBERE

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2

REZEEZANAKBEZBERBENAR
ERTRE  UTEFZEANS(BREFE
REEHRE)VRBAT

follows:
Monthly Remuneration
(Including Salary and
Director Effective Date Director’s Fee)
BAME
BE L g=h i (BEHFSRESHS)
HK$
T
Dr. Lam Yat Ming Eddie 20 May 2016 348,000
M—Ig1E L —E-XFRA=+H
Mr. Si Haijian 20 May 2016 153,846.15
AERRL A —E-XFRA=+H

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

—T-REER

87



88

CORPO
EEER|E

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company was
established with specific written terms of reference to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board
at least annually, to make recommendations on the
procedures and criteria for appointment of Directors and
to implement those that are adopted by the Board. All
members are independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has a Board Diversity Policy to enhance
the quality of its performance. With a view to achieving
a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing
the Board's composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Mr. Wang Tongbo (Chairman) TRBEE(EE)
Ms. Zhao Lan i) e
Professor Xu Zheng AP

Dr. Wang Wenjing TEE L

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed and made recommendations to the Board for
the appointment of new Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties with its written terms of reference as
set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’'s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to review the Company's compliance with the code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the corporate governance report has been reviewed
by the Board in discharge of its corporate governance
function.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The annual and interim results announcement of the
Company are published in a timely manner and within
three months and two months respectively of the year end
and interim periods.

The responsibility of Directors in relation to the financial
statements is set out below. It should be read in
conjunction with, but distinguished from, the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 100 to 112 which acknowledges
the reporting responsibility of the Group’s Auditor.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the annual report and financial statements
of the Company to ensure that these financial statements
give a true and fair presentation in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
in accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose the financial
position of the Group upon which financial statements
of the Group could be prepared in accordance with
the Group's accounting policies while monthly updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Company’'s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail had been provided to all Directors.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within
the Group.

Going Concern

The Directors, after due and careful enquiries and by
performing the necessary due diligence work to assess
the credibility and the capacity of the Hanergy Affiliates,
are of the view that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
and that, for this reason, it is appropriate for the Group to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has an overall responsibility for maintaining a
sound and effective risk management and internal control
system (the “System”) of the Group. The System is
designed not only to achieve the Group’s objectives with
facilitating an effective and efficient business operation
to ensure a reliable financial reporting and compliance
with applicable rules and regulations, but also to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance on preventing
material misstatement or loss as well as managing and
minimizing risks of failure in operational system. The risk
management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management measures and risk control and
review.

The Group’s business, financial conditions and results
may be affected by risk and uncertainties pertaining to
the Group’s business. Certain significant risks have been
identified through the process of risk identification and
assessment.

The Board should at least annually conduct a review on the
effectiveness of the System including all relevant financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions.

The Directors, through the Audit Committee and the
internal audit department, have continued to review the
effectiveness of the System. The System is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. Controls are monitored by management review and
by a programme of internal audits.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, save for the followings:

The independent non-executive Directors were not
appointed for a specific term but their directorship were
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws") and the Listing Rules. Under the Bye-laws, one-third
of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting. According to the Listing Rules,
every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

The Directors will continuously review and improve the
corporate governance practices and standards of the
Company to ensure that business activities and decision
making process are regulated in a proper and prudent
manner.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (the “Model
Code"”) regarding securities transactions by the Directors
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, the Directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-law 58, a special general meeting
may be convened by the Board upon requisition by any
shareholder holding not less than one-tenth of the issued
share capital of the Company and the securities being held
carrying the right of voting at any general meetings of the
Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company
at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding information of
the shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal
regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

The Board shall arrange to hold such general meeting
within two (2) months after the receipt of such written
requisition. The Company shall serve requisite notice of the
general meeting, including the time, place of meeting and
particulars of resolutions to be considered at the meeting
and the general nature of the business.

If within twenty-one (21) days of the receipt of such
written requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such special general meeting, the shareholder shall do
so pursuant to the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Companies Act of Bermuda.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary of the Company at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong,
specifying the shareholding information of the shareholder,
his/her contact details and the proposal he/she intends to
put forward at general meeting regarding any specified
transaction/business and its supporting documents.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
Making Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries, either by post,
by facsimiles or by email, together with his/her contact
details, such as postal address, email or fax, addressing to
Board of the Company at the following address or facsimile
number or via email:

Room 2403A, 24/F, World Trade Centre,

280 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong,
Fax: (852) 2635 1337

Email: ir@hanergythinfilmpower.com

All enquiries shall be collected by the Company Secretary
who shall report to the Executive Directors periodically
on the enquiries collected. The Executive Directors shall
review the enquiries and assign different kinds of enquiries
to appropriate division head/manager for answering. After
receiving the answers of all enquiries from the relevant
division head/manager, the Company Secretary will collect
the answers for the Executive Directors’ review and
approval.

Shareholders Communication Policy

The Company's shareholders communication policy aims
to enhance the corporate communication effectively
between the shareholders, and the Board and the
senior management of the Company through various
official channels so that the shareholders can access the
Company’s public information equally in a timely manner.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuan, Yabin (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 48, was appointed
as an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board
on 20 May 2016. Mr. Yuan obtained a bachelor degree in
engineering from Harbin Institute of Technology in 1990
and a master degree in business administration from
Tsinghua University in 2003. Mr. Yuan joined Hanergy
Holding Group in 2013 and currently acts as the President
of Hanergy Holding Group and President of Alta Devices,
Inc. Prior to joining Hanergy Holding Group, Mr. Yuan
has worked in CPPCC National Committee and Capital
Aerospace Machinery Corporation.

Dr. Lam, Yat Ming Eddie (“Dr. Lam”), aged 48, joined
the Board as an executive Director on 15 May 2014 and
was appointed as the Vice Chairman of the Board on 20
May 2016. Dr. Lam has years of experience in banking
and financing. Dr. Lam is a post-doctorate in Financial
Engineering from the Shanghai Jiaotong University and
holds a doctor of philosophy degree in Finance from the
Hong Kong Chinese University. Dr. Lam is also a Chartered
Financial Analyst, Certified Financial Planner and Fellow of
The Institute of Financial Accountants. Dr. Lam has worked
at various financial institutions, including CITIC Securities
International, China CITIC Bank International, BCT, Hong
Kong Mortgage Corporation, and Standard Chartered Bank.

Mr. Wang Xiong (“Mr. Wang”), aged 50, was appointed
as an executive Director and the Vice Chairman of the
Board on 1 November 2016. Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor
degree in engineering from the Harbin Engineering
University in the PRC in 1987 and obtained a master
degree in engineering from Tokai University of Japan
in 1993. Mr. Wang has over 20 years of experience
in investment management, corporate finance and
international marketing. He was an executive director of
China Success Finance Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 3623), a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”), from July 2016 to October 2016 and was
responsible for capital management of the Company. He
was an executive director and the vice chairman of Carnival
Group International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 996), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
from March 2013 to October 2014 and was responsible
for coordinating relationship with the government and
monitoring the implementation of strategies.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Si Haijian (“Mr. Si”), aged 38, joined the Board as
an executive Director on 21 December 2015 and was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
on 20 May 2016. Mr. Si obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in accounting from Shandong College of Economics (Il
WAL E BT )in 2002 and an MBA degree from Beijing
Jiaotong University (3t R A 2 )in 2008. Mr. Si is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a Certified Internal Auditor and a Certified
Public Accountant of the PRC. Mr. Si has extensive
experiences in financial management. He joined Hanergy
Holding in April 2014 and worked for Hanergy Global Solar
Power & Applications Group as chief executive officer.

Mr. Huang Songchun (“Mr. Huang”), aged 51, was
appointed as an executive Director and the Financial
Controller of the Company on 21 December 2015. Mr.
Huang also acts as legal representatives of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Huang obtained a
bachelor's degree in economics from Northern Jiatong
University (1t 7 & 38 K & ) (currently known as Beijing
Jiatong University 4t = &2 i K &) in 1988. Mr. Huang
worked in Guangshen Railway Company (E#F#42AF])
(currently known as Guangzhou Railway (Group) Company
NS (528) 2 A]) from 1988 to 2004 and joined Hanergy
Holding in 2004. Mr. Hunag currently serves as the
management in Hanergy Holding and certain subsidiaries,
including (i) the supervisor of BE X F@MEANEEHR
2 @l (Ningxia Tianjing Shenzhou Wind Power Co., Ltd*);
and (i) the supervisor of T REZREEER K IGEER A A
(Zhejiang Changxing Hanergy Film Solar Power Co., Ltd*).

Mr. Xu, Xiaohua (“Mr. Xu”), aged 38, was appointed as
an executive Director on 20 May 2016. Mr. Xu obtained
a master degree in microelectronics and solid-state
electronics from Institute of Semiconductors, Chinese
Academy of Sciences in 2004. Mr. Xu joined Apollo
Precision (Fujian) Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) in 2010 and currently acts as management
personnel of the Company. Mr. Xu currently serves as
the Executive President of Flexible Industrial Applications
Business Unit and responsible for the operation of China.
He also serves as the Chief Executive Officer of HIT
Business Unit and responsible for the operation of the
business unit.

*  For identification purpose only
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Zhang Bin (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 52, was appointed
as an executive Director on 1 October 2016. Mr. Zhang
obtained a master degree in engineering from the
Beihang University in 2009. Mr. Zhang has over 20 years’
experience in corporate brand and sales management. For
the past five years, Mr. Zhang was the Vice President of
Jomoo Kitchen & Bathroom Appliances Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhang
is currently the Senior Vice President of Hanergy Holding
Group Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Ms. Zhao Lan (“Ms. Zhao"), aged 53, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director, the chairperson of
each of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Company on 23 August 2011 and a member of
Nomination Committee of the Company on 29 March
2012. Ms. Zhao obtained the Bachelor of Economics
from Renmin University of China, the People's Republic
of China (“PRC"), in 1996. Ms. Zhao is a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Beijing City Certified Tax Agents Association. Ms. Zhao
is experienced in auditing, accounting and corporate
management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wang Tongbo (“Mr. Wang”), aged 66, has years of
experience in foreign import and export. He was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director, a member of
each of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Company on 12 December 2011 and Chairman of
Nomination Committee of the Company on 15 May 2014.
He obtained a master degree in Economics from Liaoning
University (3 2 X 2 )in 1995. Mr. Wang is currently a
partner of £E — HEIKKES (American-China Growth
Fund*). Before joining American-China Growth Fund, Mr.
Wang has worked in XB{EZi#E5H A7 (Etech Securities,
Inc*) as an executive director from 2005 to 2009; &[54
M &E% (Shenyang Wilke Medicine*) as a director from
2003 to 2004; &M BUNEERB#t = (Shenyang Municipal
Government Offices*) as a chief representative of the
United States of America from 1996 to 2002; &5 ¥4k
&EE 5% 8 € (Shenyang Foreign Economic and Trade
Commission*) as deputy chief from 1990 to 1996; & T
SHRE®EH O/A 58 (Shenyang Metals and Minerals Import
and Export Corporation*) as general manager from 1988 to
1990; and FEAELMEX L O/A5] (China National Metals
and Minerals Import and Export Corporation*) Shenyang
branch office as general manager from 1985 to 1988.

Professor Xu, Zheng (“Professor Xu”), aged 58, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
member of each of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company
on 15 May 2014. Professor Xu has years of experience
in research and development. Professor Xu is a post-
doctorate in Optical Engineering of Tianjin University holds
a doctor of science degree in Solid State Physics from the
Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Sciences and is
currently professor of Beijing Jiaotong University.

*  For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Dr. Wang Wenjing (“Dr. Wang”), aged 57, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director, member of
each of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company on 13 August
2014. Dr. Wang has years of experience in research and
development. Dr. Wang is a post-doctorate of the Institute
of Chemistry at the Chinese Academy of Sciences. Dr.
Wang was a director of Beijing Sunda Solar Energy
Technology Co., Ltd. between 2002 to 2005 (it = AR5
BERTFTFTARR A A)). Dr. Wang currently is the head of PV
research group in the Institute of Electrical Engineering at
the Chinese Academy of Sciences.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYZHMBRES

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

EY zx

To the shareholders of Hanergy Thin Film Power Group
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hanergy Thin Film Power Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 113
to 278, which comprise the consolidated statement
December 2016, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

of financial position as at 31

comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the
matter described in the Basis for qualified opinion section
of our report, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

RAKEHEIEKET  Tel E5%: +852 2846 9888
EBHBREE1% Fax BE: +852 2868 4432
HiEXRE221 ey.com
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As at 31 December 2016, the amounts due from Hanergy
Holding Group Limited (“Hanergy Holding”) and its
affiliates (collectively referred to as “Hanergy Affiliates”)
included in trade receivables, other receivables and
gross amount due from contract customers amounted
to HK$3,913,807,000 (2015: HK$2,596,781,000),
HK$197,441,000 (2015: HK$200,835,000) and
HK$745,928,000 (2015: HK$2,031,902,000) respectively.
The Group also made prepayments to Hanergy Affiliates for
the purchase of photovoltaic modules and the prepayments
made to Hanergy Affiliates outstanding as at 31 December
2016 were HK$405,991,000 (2015: HK$663,943,000). Also
included in the Group’s trade receivables and the gross
amount due from contract customers as at 31 December
2016 were amounts due from a third-party customer
amounting to HK$2,536,745,000 (2015: HK$995,194,000)
and HK$796,204,000 (2015: HK$898,934,000) respectively.
Subsequent to 31 December 2016, the Group received
HK$1,692,449,000 and HK$734,685,000 from Hanergy
Affiliates and the aforesaid third-party customer,
respectively. We were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence about the recoverability of the
Group's remaining trade receivables and gross amount
due from contract customers for contract works due from
Hanergy Affiliates and the aforesaid third-party customer of
HK$5,565,550,000, the other receivables due from Hanergy
Affiliates of HK$197,441,000 and prepayments made to
Hanergy Affiliates of HK$405,991,000. Consequently, we
were unable to determine whether any provisions are
required for these amounts. Any provision for recoverability
of these balances would reduce the net assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 and decrease the Group's
net profit for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. In addition to the matters described in the
Basis for qualified opinion section of our report, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

As at 31 December
2016, property, plant and
equipment (“PP&E") of
HK$606 million contributed
a significant portion
(80.0%) of the Group's
total non-current assets.
During the year, certain
entities in the Group
that have large amount
of PP&E were in loss
positions.

Management identified these
entities as different cash
generating units (“CGUs")
and performed impairment
assessment on their PP&E.
Determining whether

an impairment indicator
exists and estimating the
recoverable amount requires
management'’s significant
judgements and estimates
including estimation of

sales volume, selling prices,
manufacturing and other
operating costs, terminal
value and the discount rate.
Actual cash flows are likely
to be different from those
estimated or forecast since
anticipated events sometimes
do not occur as expected
and unforeseen events may
arise, and their impact on
estimates and forecasts may
be material.

We discussed with
management about

the business situation
and business plan of
each CGU, including
reading of current sales
agreements or sales
orders of such CGUs, to
assess management'’s
identification of
impairment indicators.
We assessed the key
assumptions adopted

in the impairment
assessment, such as

the sales volume, selling
prices and manufacturing
and other operating
costs by comparing with
historical trends and
referencing to the signed
sales contracts and
evaluating management’s
adjustments in the future
by referencing to available
market information. We
also involved our internal
valuation specialist to
assess the methodology
and discount rate applied
in the model. We reviewed
the adequacy of disclosure
made in the Group’s
consolidated financial
statements in respect of
the impairment of PP&E.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(continued)

The accounting policy,

significant accounting

judgements and estimates

and disclosures about

the balance of PP&E are

included in notes 2.4, 3

and 14 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Key audit matter

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

Impairment of inventories
Inventories of the Group are
classified into raw materials,
photovoltaic (“PV") power
generation projects to be sold,
PV modules and PV application
products. The total amount

of inventories (before any
inventory provision) as at 31
December 2016 was HK$1,888
million and the inventory
provision provided was HK$240
million (12.7% of inventory
balance before any inventory
provision). The carrying amount
of inventories contributed a
significant part (13.3%) of the
Group's total current assets as
at 31 December 2016.

The estimation of the net
realisable value (“NRV") of
these inventories requires
management to make
judgements based on

these inventories’ ages,
obsolescence, future usage
plan, estimated net selling
prices as well as inventory
disposal plans and other
economic conditions including
selling prices of similar
products with appropriate
adjustments. Actual sales

or usages are likely to be
different from those estimated
or forecast since anticipated
events sometimes do not occur
as expected and unforeseen
events may arise, and their
impact on estimates and
forecasts may be material.

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

We obtained and understood
the progress of new projects
implemented in 2017 and
reviewed the subsequent usage
and sales of inventories in 2017
together with management s
plan for the years after. We
reviewed the NRV calculation
provided by management and
involved our internal valuation
specialist to review the
methodology, key assumptions
and parameters used. We
compared the price estimated
in the future sales with the
Group’ s historical data,
subsequent sales contracts and
also that of its industry peers.
We also reviewed the adequacy
of disclosure made in the
Group’ s consolidated financial
statements in respect of the
impairment of inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Impairment of inventories (continued)

The accounting policy,
significant accounting
judgements and estimates and
disclosures about the amount
of provision and the balance
of inventories are included

in notes 2.4, 3, 8 and 17 to
the consolidated financial
statements.

Revenue recognition on contract work using percentage of
completion method (the “POC” method)

The Group conducted several
construction contracts both

in Manufacturing segment

to deliver turnkey production
lines for the manufacturing

of amorphous silicon based
and CIGS thin-film solar
photovoltaic modules and
Downstream segment to
construct a series of house-
hold rooftop solar systems to
certain small to medium-sized
enterprises. Revenue from
these fixed price construction
contracts was recognised
using the POC method,
measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred

to date of the estimated total
cost of the relevant contract.
Revenue recognised using the
POC method during the year
amounted to HK$3,025 million,
which contributed a significant
part (67.5%) of the total
revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

We obtained and understood
the terms of the construction
contracts that the Group
entered with its customers. We
assessed the POC calculated
by management, including
assessing the total cost
budgeted by comparing with
its historical data for similar
contracts and test checked the
actual cost incurred to date to
relevant equipment purchase
contracts, goods delivery
notes and allocated labour
costs for service rendered. We
performed physical stocktaking
to a selected samples of
production lines and house-
hold rooftop solar systems. We
also assessed the adequacy

of disclosure made in the
Group' s consolidated financial
statements about the revenue
recognition on contract work
using the POC method.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

Revenue recognition on contract
work is dependent on the
estimation of the total outcome
of the construction contract, as
well as the work performed to
date. Significant judgements

are required to estimate the
total contract costs, comprising
direct materials, the costs of
subcontracting, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed construction
overheads. Actual outcomes in
terms of total contract costs may
be higher or lower than those
estimated at the end of the
reporting period, which would
affect the revenue recognised

in the current period and in the
future periods.

The accounting policy and
significant accounting judgements
and estimates related to
construction contracts and
disclosures of contract revenue
are included in notes 2.4, 3, and
5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Revenue recognition on contract work using percentage of
completion method (the “POC” method) (continued)
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
Management Discussion and Analysis in pages 13 to
53, the Report of the Directors in pages 54 to 80, the
Corporate Governance Report in pages 81 to 94 and the
Biographical Details of Directors in pages 95 to 99, which
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’'s report, and
the other sections of the Annual Report, not including the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon, (“the Other Sections”), which are expected to be
made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

When we read the Other Sections of the Annual Report, if
we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to the Audit
Committee.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
Sso.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR™S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYZHMBRES

EY zx

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheong Ming Yik.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

RERaRkEMEEIER

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZE—"F+-A=1+—HILFE)

2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
REVENUE A 4,483,130 2,814,668
Cost of sales SHE KA (1,885,358) (1,441,439)
Gross profit EF 2,597,772 1,373,229
Other income and gains E AU A R e 77,204 362,675
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HERBATE
a subsidiary (E#E) 62,623 (11,499)
Selling and distribution expenses pak =l (404,769) (629,129)
Administrative expenses THHAX (882,280) (1,843,873)
Research and development costs 2R AN (567,165) (825,427)
Impairment of goodwill e RE — (7,915,318)
Impairment of property, plant and VI - R RS
equipment RIE — (770,022)
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE — (969,727)
Other expenses HEr (175,123) (786,259)
Finance costs BT B AR (49,867) (72,063)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BADRF, (BR) 658,395 (12,087,413)
Income tax expense FriS Rt 5 > (406,781) (146,129)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FTEEBR,(FHE) 251,614 (12,233,542)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS REZHBEHRIE
TO BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT EZEZzHMEE
OR LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT B8 -
PERIODS:
Exchange differences on translation B EINER Z[EH
of foreign operations = (408,183) (523,533)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AEEFEHMEE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX BB HKRBiE (408,183) (523,533)
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CONSOL

ATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LO

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

mEBEsEkAEMEZEKERE)

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=—Z—"F+=-A=+—HILFE)

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—ARF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AEERHEEBARE
FOR THE YEAR (156,569) (12,757,075)
Profit/(loss) for the year FE(E AR FE i F
attributable to: /(Es18)
Owners of the parent SARERA 251,620 (12,233,564)
Non-controlling interests IR (6) 22
251,614 (12,233,542)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE(SANEE 2 HEEIR
attributable to: 4as
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZWN (156,563)  (12,757,097)
Non-controlling interests IR i (6) 22
(156,569) (12,757,075)
HK cents HK cents
Bl JBEN
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE FATEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS EhER
OF THE PARENT BF(BR) 12
Basic HAR 0.60 (29.3)
Diluted BE 0.59 (29.3)

Details of the dividends for the year are disclosed in note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B RS AR L R

(As at 31 December 2016 R=—Z— X FE+-_A=+—8)

2016 2015
—E-RE “ET—RF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% -~ B K 14 606,111 342,707
Goodwill EES 15 — —
Intangible assets | EE 16 12,685 16,597
Deposits paid for acquisition of items YEEWE « BE MR
of property, plant and equipment HIEE 2ENEE 28 30
Deferred tax assets IREFIE & = 27 — —
Restricted cash SRR IR & 23 1,878 6,071
Other non-current assets HEMIEmEEE 137,685 245,059
Total non-current assets EMBEERRR 758,387 610,464
CURRENT ASSETS nBEE
Inventories FE 17 1,648,717 2,358,290
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 18 6,813,364 3,695,639
Tax recoverable AT Ug B 7 IR 2,571 6,303
Gross amount due from contract JEREREF 4Rz
customers 19 1,547,405 2,930,836
Other receivables o Ath fE Y 5K IE 20 703,550 518,989
Bills receivable EWEE 21 11,850 2,805
Deposits and prepayments %o RIBNFEIE 22 1,391,403 1,688,108
Restricted cash SR HIRE 23 36,179 212,438
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 23 248,674 447,826
12,403,713 11,861,234
Assets of a disposal group classified DEAFEZ HER
as held for sale EEE 10 32,225 —
Total current assets mENEEERE 12,435,938 11,861,234
CURRENT LIABILITIES G A=RE
Trade and bills payables B 5 Kk EREMNFIE 24 1,295,630 1,110,827
Other payables and H A A FRIE K AT
accruals =93¢ 25 2,108,503 1,606,923
Interest-bearing bank and other SR1T M E A FfT B
borrowings B 26 465,880 279,385
Tax payable FEIHLIR 927,593 647,611
Deferred income PEIE YA 51,610 18,780
Finance lease payables FERNREREHIE — 8,147
4,849,216 3,671,673
Liabilities directly associated with the EESiEAGFELER
assets classified as held for sale BEBEzaE 10 13,850 =
Total current liabilities mEIBEER 4,863,066 3,671,673
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 7,572,872 8,189,561
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEATER
LIABILITIES REBEE 8,331,259 8,800,025
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CONSO
(continued)

mEMBRRRE)

ATED STATEMENT

(As at 31 December 2016 R=—Z—"&E+=-A=+—8)

OF FINANCI

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—ARF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ok FET FEIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FELEHIHA R 27 401,220 417,406
Interest-bearing bank and other $R1T R E AR BB K
borrowings 26 584,755 903,573
Finance lease payables FEfT R AR S RIR — 28,769
Other non-current liabilities HEM3EmBaE 4,262 2,675
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERE 990,237 1,352,423
Net assets BESE 7,341,022 7,447,602
EQUITY &=
Equity attributable to the owners BAREEA
of the parent FEfhfER
Issued capital B EITIRA 28 104,647 104,367
Reserves ] 30 7,235,772 7,342,626
7,340,419 7,446,993
Non-controlling interests FERER 603 609
Total equity Wz B ER 7,341,022 7,447,602

Si Haijian
gk

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

HITEERBEEHITE

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

Huang Songchun

BENE

Executive Director and Financial Controller

BITEERY BHEE

EREREEEEER AR



SEERBER

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

ATEMENT OF CHANG

ES

NETZH=+HILFE)

Attributable to owners of the parent

Bl
Share Capital Share Retained profits/ Non-
[ssued premium— redemption Reserve  Contrbuted Exchange option~ (Accumulated controling
capital account* reserve* funds* surplus* reserve* reserve* losses)* Sub-total interests Total
B/
BEARE  RbREE: EAEEEE GRS EMEM  ERBE  ERERE  (2nEE): Wt HRER a8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL AL .13 13 7#r 13 AT 7T FAT FAL AT
At 1 January 2015 RZF-1§-A-A 104084 11417583 7,600 52,03 150,290 325,625 19,839 8407.9% 20,485,051 587 20485638
Loss forthe year KEREE - - - - - - — (1203564 (12233564 0 (12335
Other comprehensive loss for the year FERARREER
Exchange differences related to foreign EENERIHEL
operations (353 - - - - - 523,533 - - (523,533 - (523,533
Total comprehensive loss for the year FERRERELE = = - - - [523,533) — (1223864 (12,757,097) 0 (1275707
Appropriation of reserve funds ROGES - - - 69,031 - - - 169,031) - - -
Repurchase of own shares BERSRA B (2306 8 - - - - - (243,083 - (243,063
Exercise of share options fiieRikiE %7 814 - - - - [3,696) - 39815 - 39815
Share aption expense ERiERR - - - - - - 19,280 = 1980 = 1928
Deemed contrbution fom the then BleAteERRRLE
shareholder of Alta - - - - 19,254 - - - 19.25¢ - 19,254
Deemed distrbution to the then BmALEERRAR
shareholder of Alta = = = = [116,249) = = = (116,249) = (116,249)
At 31 December 2015 RZF-1%
tZR=1-A 104367 11,217,664 7,684 121,066 5329 197,908) 35425 (3,894,600} 7,446,993 609 1,447,602

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(continued)

RERBEBR(E)

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=—Z—"F+=-A=+—HILFE)

Attributable to owners of the parent

BLTER \EG
Share Capital Share Retained profits/ Non-
Issued premium ~ redemption Reserve  Contributed Exchange option ~ (Accumulated controlling
capital account® reserve* funds* surplus* reserve* reserve* losses)* Sub-total interests Total
ik
BR{RA EXREER* BRe:  REEM  ENRR  BEERET  (RRER): Nt FERER ae
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK§000 HKS 000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
74 FET fi ; 7E &1 & 7T
At1 January 2016 RZF-7E-A-A 104367 11,217,664 7,684 121,066 53,295 197,908) 35425 3,894,600) 7,446,993 609 1,447,602
Proft for the year HERRT - - - - - - - 251,620 261,620 (6) 251,614
Other comprehensive loss for the year TEREH2ERE
Exchange differences related to foreign HENFHARL
operations (353 - - - - - (408,183) - - (408,183) - [408,183)
Total comprehensive loss for the year TERRAERNEE - - - - - (408,183) - 251,620 (156,563) (6) [156,569)
Appropriation of reserve funds ROGES - - - 14023 - - - (14,023) - - -
Exercise of share options (note 28() iR 2296) 280 26,97 - - - - (8,606 - 18631 - 18631
Share aption expense (note 29) BRERR 7 29) - - - - - - 31,358 - 31,368 - 31,358
At 31 December 2016 RIE-1E
T2A=t-8 104,647 11,244,621 7,684 135,089 53,295 606,091) 58177 3,657,003 7340419 603 7,341,022
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * RERBEEERPEEAMBRRARZES
of HK$7,235,772,000 (2015: HK$7,342,626,000) in the fi& 1%7,235,772,0007% o(= T — 7 F:
consolidated statement of financial position. 7,342,626,000 %8 7T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERERK

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z2—_ZF— F+_HA=+—HILFE)

2016 2015
ZE-AE RS
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KEFHHEESHRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BADEF, (E18) 658,395 (12,087,413
Adjustments for: FEE
Finance costs R IR 7 49,867 72,063
Interest income from banks, interest RITH S - ErE
income on overdue trade receivables BB m A E 5 e
from Hanergy Affiliates and other interest W IE 2 A B A K
income from third parties FE=F2HMFEWA 6 (14,946) (258,103)
Amortisation of intangible assets B A =R 8 1,885 158,956
Impairment of goodwill EERE 8 — 7,915,318
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 4% - BiE MR ERE 8 - 770,022
Impairment of intangible assets | EERE 8 — 969,727
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 REWGIERE 8 18,211 202,817
Impairment of other receivables A WK IRRE 8 — 247,454
Impairment of prepayments AN FIERE 8 20,231 —
Depreciation of items of property, Y% - RENMEEEE 2
plant and equipment e 8 40,827 156,867
Write-down of inventories to net realisable  1F&EHURE Al #18 ;%#E
value 8 142,921 218,265
Reversal of inventory provision FEREREE 8 (22,180) —
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables 2 ZEWHE ZHERERE 8 (28,830) —
Reversal of impairment of other receivables HhEWIE 7 BERRE 8 (110,188) —
Write-off of leasehold improvements to HEMEREMAZEER
profit or loss included in administrative T AITE R
expenses 8 — 115,506
Write-off of finance lease payables to profit FEffREETE RIBMHIRE
or loss included in other expenses B AEMAX (28,787) —
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant HEWE « HE k&
and equipment BE BB 8 4,516 6,837
(Gain)/loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBAR(UKE)
i 8 (62,623) 11,499
Product warranty provision EmRERE 8 37,188 —
Equity-settled share option expenses VAR 25 45 B RO R (9 HA 4
Fsx 8 31,358 19,282
737,845 (1,480,903)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERL /(32m) 404,120 (2,031,189)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables B S REMIE ()R (2,168,351) 2,166,826
Increase in other receivables H i U SRIAIE hn (119,576) (195,198)
(Increase)/decrease in bills receivable PR =R (38 0) R > (9,045) 94,606
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and B RENFIERD
prepayments (3Eh0) 192,437 (157,988)
Decrease in restricted cash ZIRHI13E 2 55,421 5,791
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 RERERNFRIAE M 269,463 719,992
Increase in other payables Hi R ZIE R ETTER
and accruals 0 300,789 212,434
Cash used in operations SRRz RS (336,897) (665,629)
Interest paid EATHILE (27,005) (73,787)
Income taxes paid B FTEH (143,156) (433,914)
Net cash flows used in operating activities &EHBEEFEHZES
e HH (507,058)  (1,173,330)
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RERERERR(E

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — R E+_A=+—HILFE)

ATEMENT OF CASH FLO

2015
—T-AF
Notes HK$'000
iz FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REEHRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, plant and HEYE - BERZEER
equipment (899,662)
Decrease in deposits paid for acquisition WEEZ - RE REHEEE
of items of property, plant and equipment AR E-& N 2
Purchase of intangible assets ERETEE (5,728)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — KB AR (3,241)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHMB AR 31 4,784
Interest received B E 63,709
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME¥ - MEKREZEER
plant and equipment ZFT55K1A 35,397
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets HE&E®EFLEE 7 Fri1S508 —
Net cash flows used in investing activities #REFEEAZRESRE
FER (804,739)

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED IERLER



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

RERERERR(E

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —ZF—

RNETZA=+—BILFE

2016 2015
el T AF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HiiF FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BMETHEESARE
ACTIVITIES
Advances from the ultimate holding company FARIEIR A &) 2 3k 3,514 —
Advances from related parties 2] N = 3,609 =
Advances from third parties %’77\72ﬂ?}\ 257,632 —
Proceeds from other borrowings due to Kﬁﬁﬁw/\iZﬁﬁﬂ
related parties FT18 3 11,066 123,446
Repayments of other borrowings due to a 1;5&Eﬁﬂ%§'&%*%@§ 56
related party AL (3,849) (744)
Proceeds from other borrowings due to BRE=F 2 HMER
third parties FT{S 338 98,935 —
Repayments of other borrowings due to EEEMERTE=S
third parties (42,443) (231,491)
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank SBITH BB Z T3 30E
borrowings 4,456 445,449
Repayment of interest-bearing bank BERITH BERK
borrowings (129,431) (469,749)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash /(B 0) SR IR &
A 125,031 (143,539)
Repayment of finance lease payables BEEMNBEMEERE (8,129) (7,974)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon FTT{THXF&??%’%TTHX@}Z
exercise of share options Fris 51 18,631 39,815
Deemed contribution from the then RIE Alta ?-?H—rﬂﬁﬁﬁiéf
shareholder of Alta — 19,254
Deemed distribution to the then shareholder 18{EAlta & KRR 2 % 7
of Alta - (116,249)
Payment for share repurchase & B AR 19 T 5 ;R - (243,063)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing MEEEELS(ER)2
activities ReMmEFHE 339,022 (584,845)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBEEENZ
EQUIVALENTS W (331,900)  (2,562,914)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FzRERFEEEY
of year 447,826 3,056,916
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SN [E R ) 2 /28 132,753 (46,176)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND HFRZzHRERREZEY
OF YEAR 248,679 447,826
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH B RBESZEMEH>
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS o
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in REBRR TSR 2 RE R
the statement of financial position REFEY 23 248,674 447,826
Cash and bank balance attributed to a BiEDBERFEZLE
disposal group classified as held for sale HE 2R e RIRTTHER 10 5 —
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the RIRETRERINEZEE R
statement of cash flow BHEZEY 248,679 447,826
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Hanergy Thin Film Power Group Limited (the
“Company”) is an exempted company with limited
liability incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of
business is located at Room 2403A, 24/F, World
Trade Centre, 280 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were
principally involved in (i) the manufacture of
equipment and turnkey production lines for the
manufacture of amorphous silicon and Copper Indium
Gallium Selenide (“CIGS”) based thin-film power
modules (“Manufacturing”); (ii) the technological
development and production of Gallium Arsenide
("GaAs"”) thin-film power turnkey production lines
(“Manufacturing”); (iii) building ground-mounted
power stations or rooftop power stations for sale and
sale of thin-film power modules (“Downstream”);
(iv) the research, development and sale of thin-film
power application products (“Downstream”); (v) sale
of electricity (“Downstream”); and (vi) providing
engineering service (“Downstream”).

The Company's shares are listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Group’s current operations
are principally based in Hong Kong, the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “Mainland China”),
the Kingdom of Sweden (“Sweden”), the Federal
Republic of Germany (“Germany”), the United States
of America (the “United States”) and the United
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (the
“United Kingdom").

RAREEER
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B RE AR MY

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

On 20 May 2015, the stock price of the Company
plunged 47% to HK$3.91 per share from HK$7.38
per share before a suspension was announced by
the Company on that day. Then on 15 July 2015, the
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC") directed
the Stock Exchange to extend the trading suspension.
As at the date of approval of these financial
statements, the trading of stock of the Company is
still suspended.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate
holding company of the Company is Hanergy
Investment Limited (“Hanergy Investment”), which
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
and the ultimate holding company of the Company is
Hanergy Holding, which is established in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2016, Hanergy Holding and its

concert parties hold 72.21% of the issued share
capital of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

ES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 B =

NETZA=+ HILEER)

1.

RAREEER (@)

Information about subsidiaries N =
Details of the Group's principal subsidiaries are as REBEZEMMBATGEBET :
follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of issued/
registration and registered share capital/paid
business in capital Percentage of equity
Name %%%;i/ 2Rk gﬁgé AMBAEE/ att;istg%?at% %1% %rt%up Prgc%gl activities
g 3
2016 2015
- SV —T-FF
Hanergy Hi-Tech Power International BVI Ordinary US$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited* EBRAEE Lk1,000%T REBR
B R RERROERAA
Henergy Hi-Tech Power (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary US§77,218,880 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading
ER iR (B RIERLA B LE1577,018 8305 of equipment and turnkey
_production lines
REZRREEREREE
Apollo Precision (Fujian) Ltd The PRC/ Registered RMB 148,087,820 100% 100%  Manufacturing of equipment
ERAGRIRERRAR Mainland China HERARE 148,087,820 and turnkey production lines
hE /e R HERBRERLER
Apollo Precision (Beijing) Ltd The PRC/ Registered RMBS,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of equipment
IR ERERRAR Mainland China AR AR 5,000,000 70 and tumkey production lines
hE/ER HERRREELER
Apollo Precision (Kunming) Yuanhong The PRC/ Registered RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of equipment
Limited" Mainland China ~~ HTERARE and turnkey production lines
ERAGREN RN HERAR hE /AR 20,000,007 HERBRERLER
Apollo Precision (Kunming) Yuantong The PRC/ Registered RMB 30,790,918 100% 100%  Manufacturing of equipment
Limited' Mainland China AR ARM 30,790,918 7 and tumkey production lines
ERAGR B AR EERAR hE/RE R HERRREELER
Hanergy Global Solar Power Group BVI Ordinary US$5,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited** EBRAEE L3&1%5,000,000 %7 REBR
EHER B EEERAT
HGSG-NA Land Power 1, LLC The United States Registered US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
X il &750,000 %7 REBRK
Huaibei Qingyuan New Energy The PRC/ Registered RMB25,000,000 100% 100%  Solar power station
Development Limited® Manland China ~~ HTHERARS AGsE
LR EREARAT hE/hE 25,000,00070
Shizong Qingyuan New Energy The PRC/ Registered RMB60,000,000 100% 100%  Solar power station
Development Limited® Mainland China AR ARE KBRS
BrERMERREERAR hE/hE R 60,000,0007C
Beijing Hanergy Equipment Technology ~ The PRC/ Registered USD 1,069,640,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Co,, Ltd Mainland China ~ FEfH&71,069,640,000% T Rk
(formerly known as Beijing Hanergy & /H Bl

Zhengxin Solar Technology Co., Ltd.)

IRERKBNRARAT

(FIRERER LR EARAR)

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

S AL EE I -
ZREEERE

SEERADA



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 3 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

1. REIk&EEER#)

MEBARZER(E)
AEBTZMBARFBENOT : (F)

Principal activities
ERRE

Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of issued/
registration and registered share capital/paid
business in capital Percentage of equity
Name dfAL/BRk  BR(/EMRAEE/ attributable to the Group
£ £y S BhEx ARBELREA A
2016 2015
SE-RE it
Xinjiang Hanergy Thin Film The PRC/ Reg\stered RMB200,000,000 100% 100%
Solar Power Investment L\mned Mainland China AR ARS
TEE AR REARAR R/ HER 200,000,00070
Solibro Research AB Sweden Paid in SEK135,433,813 100% 100%
i BIrA7 135,433,813
Tt
Guangdong Hanergy New Energy The PRC/ Registered RMB300,000,000 100% 100%
Investment Co,, Ltd. * Mainlnd China ~ EMERARE
ER SRR BRERRAA R/ RER 300,000,007
Beijing Hanergy Household Thm Film The PRC/ Registered RMB90,000,000 100% 100%
Power Technology Co., Ltd" Mainland China ~~ SHERARE
(formerly known as Beijng Henergy & /S E ks 90,000,0007C
New Energy Investment Power Co.,
Ltd)
RSP RREENAARAT
(MBSt PR R RREARAA)
Shanghai Hanergy Thin-Film Power The PRC/ Reg\stered RMB50,000,000 100% 100%
Co, Ltd Mainland China BRARE
LSRR EREEARAT R/ RER womowm
S|chuan Hanergy Thin-Film Power Co.,  The PRC/ Registered RMBG0,000,000 100% 100%
Ltd” Mainland China AR ARE
B EREEERAR RE/RERH 60,000,007
Hubei Hanergy Huazhong Thin-Film The PRC/ Registered RMB50,000,000 100% 100%
Power Co, Ltd” Mainland China S ARARR
AR ERYEARA e/ HER 50,000,000 7C
Liaoning Hanergy Thm Film The PRC/ Reg\stered RMB100,000,000 100% 100%
Power Co, Ltd" Manland China ~ FTERARS
RERLERLEERAT R/ HER 100,000,0007C
Guangdong Hanergy Thin-Film Power The PRC/ Registered RMB600,000,000 100% 100%
Investment and Deve\opment Co, Ltd!  Mainland China ~ #EMERARE
ER RN AR EREERAR DA RE/RERH 600,000,000 72
Zunhua Hanergy Yuhua PV Power Limited” The PRC/ Registered RMBG0,000,000 100% 100%
BlLEREE R NITARAT Manland China ~~ HHHERARS
R/ HER 60,000,0007%
Shanxmn Huayu New Energy Power The PRC/ ﬁe%stered RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
ed’ Mainland China M EAARN
M%¥$ﬁ%ﬁ%aﬁEAT R/ HER 10,000,0007C

Investment holding
REER

Provision of research and
development service

REMERRE RS

Investment holding

RERK

Investment and sales of rooftop
power station

RERBERHEERTY

Sale of rooftop power stations
HERRSY

Sale of rooftop power stations
HERESI,

Sale of rooftop power station
HERTREN

Dormant
e

Investment holding

REBR

Solar power station
Bac i

Solar power station
sz %15
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NOTES

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

'FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 B =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZF—

NETZA=+ HILEER)

1. 27

REBEER#)

MEARZER(E)
AEBETZHMBRARFBOT : (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of issued/
registration and registered share capital/paid
business in capital Percentage of equity
Name SRR/ EER B/ HRRAEE/ attributable to the Group Princ%pal activities
4 £BiG LU AREELRERAY  IBER
2016 2015
t SO -0
Beijing Hanergy Solar Investment Co.,  The PRC/ ﬁe%stered RMB50,010,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
o Mainland China ~~ EMERARS e
TRERANRAERAR hE/HER 50,010,007
MiaSolé Hi-Tech Corp. The United States Paid in US$137,294,388 100% 100%  Manufacturing of photovoltaic
e BUEA 137,204 388K products and equipment
HErREnRRE
Hanergy Thin Film Power (UK) Limited  The United Kingdom ﬁeH%jgtered GBP5,000 100% 100%  Sale of rooftop power stations
Ef FH&7k5,000 S5 HEERSM
Global Solar Energy, Inc. The United States Paid in US§32,828,666_ 100% 100%  Manufacturing of photovoltaic
EWER32,808,656 % ‘ %)rodycts and equipment
HEXRERRRE
Savanna Solar Limited Ghana Registered GHC400,000 0% 70%  Construction of photovaltaic
ik FEAiE 7 400,000 MAE S power generation projects
RAREZER
Guangzhou Qiguang Solar Energy The PRC/ ﬁe%stered RMB57,000,000 100% 100%  Investment in rooftop power
Technology Co. Ltd" Mainland China M EAARH57,000,0007C stations
RHECK KRR AR AE/F AR RAEFES
Alta Devices, Inc. The United States Paid in US§75,764,360 100% 100%  Provision of research and
=8 BWEARTS 7643605 development service
RIHE KRS
Beijing Hanergy Thin Film Power Electrical The PRC/ Reﬂgﬂigtered RMB70,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of engineering
Engineering Limited® Mainlend China AR ARE services
VG 70,000,000 RUTERE

IRERERARRENTR
ARLH

Fuhai Hang'rgy Hengyuan Thin Film Power The PRC/Mainland

Hﬁﬂaemd RVB100,000,000 100%
EMERARE

_ Limited” China _

REENERIREEARAR hE/hEh 100,000,007

Jiangmen Qingyuan New Energy Power  The PRC/ ReH%igtered RMB6,000,000 100%

 Investment Limited™** Mainland China S ARARE

IR REERERRAA hE/hE 6,000,000

* Direct subsidiaries of the Company. *

**  Disposal group classified as held for sale of the *%
Company

* Unofficial English transliteration or translations for s

identification purpose only.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

100%  Solar power station
ABREN

100%  Solar power station
ABEAY

KRR ZEEHBAR -
DEBARAFEZHERS -

FFEAEXZEREE - BB

ERBREEEEEARAR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated. Assets
of a disposal group held for sale are stated at the
lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell as further explained in note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
had net cash outflows used in operating activities
of HK$507,058,000 and as at 31 December 2016,
the current assets were in excess of the current
liabilities of HK$7,572,872,000 which, as set out in
notes 18, 19, 20 and 22, included trade receivables,
gross amount due from contract customers and
other receivables due from Hanergy Affiliates and
prepayments made to Hanergy Affiliates with a total
amount of HK$5,263,167,000 and trade receivables
and gross amount due from contract customers
from a third-party customer with a total amount of
HK$3,332,949,000.

2.1

PEAIREBER (#)
HEARZER(E)
AEEXEMBATRBENT : (&)
LRI EER AT EREATE LA
SERAEEE A ZEEFEDD 2 I B
AT BERA  REHMHEBAR Y
FEeSERARTE

fim B ELAE

HEFBRRDIBRER LGNS
(TEEEMAg )EMGZBEME
HEEA(FBMBEREEN] - B
MIBREMBREER - BB SR
(IEEeF R DERE)  BEQR
S RAIRFE ARG 2 ERBEER
E M amsd -

S F MR TIRE LA E RS -
EMBHRRIONBITEY  BREEHER
I BBEANERAEAGFERZR
BT REAMBHRRIE 245
E—FHEGFECHEAGNEERE
REEREAFEMRENEEERHEK
AN

REBEE=ZZE—"F+-_A=+—HIEF
B AEBAEKELEHMAHR M E
7F58507,058,000/87C * MR =ZZF— 7~
F+_A=+—"H "RYEELRD
B EHEE7,572,872,0007%8 7T, © B ¥ K
181920 X 22 NFTH EREEL B A
RIZEBSREWFIE - ERERTFEFIE
4R R E AU GRTE - A R e R B
ANAE BB FKIE - #%85,263,167,000
B AREE=ZFEPZESENR
HREREKREBRERIEHATE B
3,332,949,000 7 7T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The directors of the Company are considering
measures to monitor and improve the cash flows of
the Group, including but not limited to the collection
of trade receivables due from Hanergy Affiliates
and the third-party customers, the expansion to the
downstream business and the execution of other
manufacturing business with individual customers.
The Group received RMB1,500 million from Hanergy
Affiliates for the repayment of trade receivables on
10 March 2017, and received RMB650 million from
the third-party customer during the first quarter of
2017. The Group has also put a lot of resources and
efforts in the downstream photovoltaic applications.
The Group has approximately one thousand and two
hundred distributors, covering most of the markets
at city and county level across Mainland China as at
31 December 2016 and has sold approximately thirty
thousand sets of household photovoltaic systems
during 2016.

In light of the measures of the Group described above
and cash flow forecast prepared by the Company’s
management for the coming 12 months, the directors
of the Company are of the view that the Group is able
to meet with its liabilities as and when they fall due
in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the directors of
the Company consider that it is appropriate to prepare
these financial statements on a going concern basis.

2.1 RBEEE %)

ARRERFERERRBEAEES
EREMREE - 2FETRNKEEE
HBARINE=Z AR RNNE S EI
FIE - EBAETHEGREA@BEFSE
THMBEER - AEER_T—tF
= A+THRKREZREBBAREREARE
1,500,000,0007 2 & 5 FE WK IA + W
RZZ—tFE—FTRIE=ZFATFA
R # 650,000,000 7T K 5K I8 © 78 & B 7R
ERBMAEERRE NER T AAKE
A-#z=Z2—X~"F+=-A=+—8"
AREBAH—T _ARKEHE BEH
BEAMEGEN R —NFAEE T
BN =—BERARKES -

B £ XA AR LA
ARNEEERAK12AARBEORS
REEA - ARAEFRAREEAE
MERIRAOZMEE - G0t - ARR
EERALSUHRRSEEELR
REDBIE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 MBEEE )

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

RERE

HEMBHRREBEARBLENE QT
(BB AEE DBEE_T - F+_HA
=+ —RUEFEZHBEERER -

MEABNARAERKERENZE
BERERER) HMAKEREZ2HE
WIRE R EBMAEFEE B2 @R K
ZEREN  WREAERAEHERETZ
BAZEEMB(ANBFENAEAE
BEEN BRI EEN IR E T < HE
8) UAKEREZER ZIZHE -

HARPEEIBMERPIRELT 2 KR
RAELENREERZH - AIAEE
KA ER T HRRE AR NEE
BFEHEBASERER - 84 :

(a) BEEERESZEMREEFTEAZ
EBRZHE

(o) HtERTHEEZEN Rk

) AKBEZREZRNEBEERZE-

fERABEARRZHBHRRHOBEH
AR - WA — S B RRE - MY
BARZEERASERSENEZA
RitERa AR THRESFEAREZS
ZHIERIE 2 ARSI -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus of deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’'s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

Business combinations under common control are
accounted for using the merger accounting method.
Detailed accounting policy is set out in note 2.4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

NETZA=+ HILEER)

2.1 RBEEE %)

REEE(E)

?EI %&ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂ& 52 B EDTIARE
REEB AN NIFER AR FTELS

EDEEA?H PR ZERRRT - B

SENEEEXREBZRAZRZBHENE

ENBE BE - s AXRBESR
EEEREIHEH -
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ﬁfﬁﬂ o AEBESEHMNERKRES

BREN - RHNBRBAZERERER
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ABAREE KA —HEKB A B R =S -
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B RE AR MY

IAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs for the first
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27

(2011)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

time for the current year's

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs

The adoption of new and revised HKFRSs has had
no significant financial impact on these financial
statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

22 ERfBRRBRBENED

AEBEDRAFEM B IREE RERA
TRETBBUHREER -

BAMBREER
F105 - BE
B 7 R 22 A
F12RRES
SETARIZE 285
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EHIEN
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11 RIEFTA
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ARG EA
ERRA PN

ERGERFE 16 BEHEREHA A
SRBBGREN BEERZE
£ 38RIEFTA

ERGERFE 16 £ LEMEY
SRABSE
ZERIIZE 41 5%

EHIEN

BEEIERE27 BAFBERERZ
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REER  BHGER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 B =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not

yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS
12 included in Annual
improvements 2014-2016
Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1
included in Annual
improvements 2014-2016
Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 28
included in Annual
improvements 2014-2016
Cycle

January 2017
January 2018

January 2019

Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts’

Financial Instruments’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’

Leases’

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

Unrealised Losses'
Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities'

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards’

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

No mandatory effective date yet determined but

available for adoption

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 EMEMEMRERNERBYK

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in
August 2016 that address three main areas: the
effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of
a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment transaction
with net settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-based
payment; and accounting where a modification to
the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash-
settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that
the approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based payments
also applies to cash-settled share-based payments.
The amendments introduce an exception so that
a share-based payment transaction with net share
settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is
classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction when certain conditions
are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction are modified, with the
result that it becomes an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction, the transaction is accounted
for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of
the modification. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2018. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

H£XER(#)

BHZE
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10 325 B 5 BB 1R 1F 9 ABR D3 0R TTE A RS
NIR S HEER RN AT - ZFERT5IA
—EPISMER - ERFEETIRER - &
B EETHEARN XM EEN A
ETERENUBN AR 5B F
HMEERE) BEBRESEANERE
BN - W ZFERTE
B RARSEENRND XN R ZHE
RRAFREBFER] - SERBAER S
BOBRMNXNRS  BZXBEER A
HEERUARREENRH AR - A&
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of
the financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39
and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January
2018. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
the standard.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016, the
HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address
the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus
agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to
help ensure a more consistent application when
entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost
and complexity of applying the standard. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and
is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon
adoption.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 EMEMEMRERNERBYK

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases
— Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form
of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard
includes two recognition exemptions for lessees —
leases of low-value assets and short-term leases.
At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments
(i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing
the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-
of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such
as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under
HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17
and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1
January 2019 and is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16 upon adoption.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will
result in additional disclosure to be provided in the
financial statements. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the
purpose of addressing the recognition of deferred
tax assets for unrealised losses related to debt
instruments measured at fair value, although they also
have a broader application for other situations. The
amendments clarify that an entity, when assessing
whether taxable profits will be available against
which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference,
needs to consider whether tax law restricts the
sources of taxable profits against which it may
make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should determine
future taxable profits and explain the circumstances
in which taxable profit may include the recovery of
some assets for more than their carrying amount.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1
January 2017.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHHEHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

The acquisition of subsidiaries and business under
common control, where applicable, has been
accounted for using merger accounting method. The
financial statements of the businesses under common
control are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting policies.

The merger method of accounting involves
incorporating the financial statement items of the
combining entities or businesses in which the
common control combinations occur as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control
of the controlling shareholder. The net assets of
the combining entities or businesses are combined
using the existing book values from the controlling
shareholder’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or the excess of the acquirers’
interest in the net fair value of acquirees’ identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of investment at the time of common control
combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each
of the combining entities or businesses from the
earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under
common control or since their respective dates of
incorporation/establishment, where this is a shorter
period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions and dividends are eliminated on
consolidation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Business combinations, other than business
combinations under common control, are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair
values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGTTHEBE )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group's previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss
is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGTTHEBE )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, construction contract assets,
financial assets and disposal group held for sale),
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’'s or cash-generating unit's value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to profit or loss of the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss of the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the period in which it arises.
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IAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGTHTHEBE#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entitly, or any member of a group
of which it is a parit, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
When an item of property, plant and equipment is
classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups
held for sale”.The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGTTHEBE )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
profit or loss of the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write-off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

3% — 5%

4% — 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% — 33%

20% — 25%

over the shorter of

Land and buildings
Plant and machinery

Motor vehicles

Leasehold improvements
the lease terms
and 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit
or loss of the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents plant and
machinery under construction, which is stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
installation. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sales transaction
rather than through continuing use. For this to be the
case, the assets or disposal group must be available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for the
sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale
must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities
of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are
reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the
Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FESTBERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale (continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment annually either individually or at
the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets
are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Technology know-how

Purchased technology know-how is stated at cost
less any impairment losses and is amortised on the
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 10
to 19 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss of the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGTTHEBE )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to profit or loss of the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income so
as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over
the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to profit or loss the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating
leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.
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IAL STATEMENTS

E?Jﬁ%#lﬁ% Bﬁ‘I

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and receivables. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case
of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO IAL STATEMENTS
5 75 A B =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESTBERBE#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued) REREMERMEEE)
Subsequent measurement H#rE
The subsequent measurement of financial assets CRMEEZHEBF =R T EHE#ET
depends on their classification as follows: FROTE :
Loans and receivables BMREWSHE
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial ERNEW RIS A B A EFE A #EEN
assets with fixed or determinable payments that R BEEBRMBEREREIIFTES
are not quoted in an active market. After initial BMBE - MTHER  ZSEEHRE
measurement, such assets are subsequently R B BRI AR 8 8 A AN R E (DR (B
measured at amortised cost using the effective BAEET = o B AR TDIRWEE 2 (E T
interest rate method less any allowance for FEYORBEE  WEEBERMNENE
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking Bo 2 BRAIKAR - BREFEHHTA
into account any discount or premium on acquisition BHakEMmembaRPED 2 MU
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of ARMWZEA - BEEEZEENEZE R
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate EmmermlkaRkcBabR WK ER
amortisation is included in other income and gains (BMERM T ) R E A (5l RIE
in profit or loss of the statement of profit or loss =) AR

and other comprehensive income. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in profit or loss of the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in finance costs for loans and in other
expenses for receivables.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group's consolidated statement of financial

position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGTTHEBE )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
and that loss event have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’'s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in profit or loss of the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to other expenses in profit
or loss of the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGTTHEBE )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings. The Group determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’'s financial liabilities include trade and
bills payables, other payables and accruals, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings and other non-
current liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Trade and bills payables and other payables

They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss of the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

The non-current assets of the photovoltaic power
generation projects that are included in the scope
of consolidation and are held for sale are classified
as inventories and are measured in the same way
as other inventories, including the borrowing costs
capitalised until they are ready for use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGTTHEBE )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories (continued)

If a photovoltaic power generation project held for
sale has been in operation for over one year and has
no corresponding purchase commitment, purchase
option or similar agreements, the non-current assets
related thereto are transferred from “Inventories” to
“Property, Plant and Equipment” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and bank balances comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions (continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time
is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the
Group on certain products are recognised based on
sales volume and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGTTHEBE )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.

24 TEETTHEBRE @)

FRS® (&)

ELEHRBEE ZRHERS RS RS
SEITERN - WTBRIEE EHERT
AR AR ERE BB RERAE
2 - Rl T LAMURL - RIER ZELHRIA
BEGNERESHREF MG - £I6E
B 2 SR SR Bk A m] A R U ] 2 B Bk AP
DIRETHIRE ER T AR ©

EXEHBEERBREIRERHFEHR
BEERIEAHER R ER(RHBE
) HERASREEZRNBBEEN
HRER 2 HERAE -

B A =R R I AITHER SRR IR E
EEAAF AR ERE - MELHET
HRA-ERABEELR-—HREERA
B AEERBAEENREEHRBRER
T

BUF AL

R0 75 B 10 78 3 R R TE BE T DAMKCER - BA
REBMBMSEHREER  BAFERE
R BEMMSRAXER - AIAE RS
AR KA EARAE A2 L ER
AWEs - A SHBHER(E 2 A ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that

the economic benefits will flow to the Group and

when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the

following bases:

(a)

from the manufacture of turnkey production
lines and construction of solar power stations
for certain small to medium-sized enterprises,
on the percentage of completion basis, pursuant
to which costs to complete a contract are
estimated and revenue is recognised based
on the estimated progress to completion, as
further explained in the accounting policy for
“Construction contracts” below, depending on

the structure and terms of arrangement;

from sale of goods (including the photovoltaic
power generation projects) are recognised when
the goods have been delivered and title thereto
has been transferred. Sale of photovoltaic power
generation projects whose non-current assets
are classified as inventories are recognised under
“Revenue” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the total price of the shares of the photovoltaic
power generation projects plus the amount of
the net borrowings relating to the facility (total
debt less current assets). At the same time,
the related inventories are derecognised with a
charge to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. The
difference between the two amounts represents
the operating profit or loss obtained from the
sale. Each photovoltaic power generation project
adopts the legal structure of a private limited
liability company, the financial statements of
which are fully consolidated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) from sales to distributors, two identifiable
components of the revenue shall be considered:
(i) sales revenue of delivered rooftop solar
power systems is recognised when the rooftop
solar power systems have been delivered; (ii)
installation service revenue is deferred and then
recognised as revenue when the installation
service is performed;

(d) from sale of electricity, revenue is generally
earned and recognised upon transmission
of electricity to the electricity purchasing
companies or provincial grid companies;

(e) from the rendering of services, when the
services are rendered;

(f)  interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

(g) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract
amount and appropriate amounts from variation
orders, claims and incentive payments. Contract
costs incurred comprise direct materials, the costs
of subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed construction
overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts
is recognised using the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the proportion of
costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of
the relevant contract.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGTTHEBE )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Construction contracts (continued)

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as
they are anticipated by management. Where contract
costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the
surplus is treated as an amount due from contract
customers. Where progress billings exceed contract
costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to contract customers.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group's operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration
in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value
is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 29
to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to profit or loss of the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions
are not taken into account when determining the
grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood
of the conditions being met is assessed as part
of the Group's best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant
date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-
vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognized. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGTTHEBE )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award
is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control
of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss of the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’'s subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute to a certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss of the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognizes
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss of the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
differences on the items whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGTTHEBE )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss of the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and
used for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a
capitalisation rate has been applied to the expenditure
on the individual assets. There is no capitalisation of
interest in 2016 (2015: capitalisation rate of 5.3%).

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

(i) Revenue from sale of photovoltaic power
generation projects

Each photovoltaic power generation project
adopted the legal structure of a private limited
liability company (a “special-purpose entity”),
which was a subsidiary of the Group and
was consolidated in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements since its establishment.
These special-purpose entities were set up
solely for the purpose of constructing solar
power plants for sale. Management intends
to sell these photovoltaic power generation
projects at its initial recognition and construction
of these projects. These photovoltaic power
generation projects under construction with the
intention to sell are therefore determined to be
in the Group's ordinary course of businesses. In
the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
the photovoltaic power generation projects under
construction were accounted for as inventories
held for sale in the ordinary course of business,
while the other assets and liabilities pertaining
to the respective special-purpose entities
were accounted for as assets and liabilities,
respectively, in the Group’'s consolidated
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Judgements (continued)

(i)

Revenue from sale of photovoltaic power
generation projects (continued)

In this regard, management considered that
when the buyer acquired all the equity interest
in a special-purpose entity, it would have
effectively acquired the photovoltaic power
generation project inventories by taking over
all the assets and assuming all the liabilities
associated with the construction of the related
photovoltaic power generation project that
belongs to the special-purpose entity. The
revenue of the sale of photovoltaic power
generation project is then measured at the
fair value of the consideration payable by the
buyer for the photovoltaic power generation
project (i.e., total cash consideration payable
by the buyer plus the amount of net liabilities
(total liabilities less current assets (excluding
inventories))) assumed by the buyers through
the acquisition of the equity interest of the
special-purpose entity. At the same time, the
related inventories are derecognised to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as the cost of
sales of the sales transaction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 3 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Judgements (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred tax liabilities

The Group recognised deferred tax liabilities
for all the foreign-invested subsidiaries’
undistributed earnings of HK$401,220,000 (2015:
HK$409,051,000). Under the prevailing income
tax law of the PRC and its relevant regulations,
dividends paid by PRC enterprises out of
profits earned after 31 December 2007 to non-
PRC tax resident investors are subject to PRC
withholding tax of 10%. A lower withholding
tax rate of 5% may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. The Group in the past was
charged with withholding tax at a rate of 5%
when those PRC subsidiaries distributed profits
to their holding companies outside Mainland
China. Therefore, the Group applied 5% to
provide for withholding taxes on retained profits
distributable by those subsidiaries established in
the PRC in respect of their earnings generated
from 1 January 2008 (note 27).

Operating segment

The Group currently has certain business units
based on their products and services to be
provided to the customers and each business
unit is identified as an operating segment.
Among these operating segments, certain
operating segments have similar economic
characteristics including the nature of the
products and services to be provided, the
nature of the production processes, and etc.
and therefore could be aggregated into a single
operating segment. As at 31 December 2016,
there are two aggregated operating segments
which are Manufacturing segment and
Downstream segment. Each of the aggregated
operating segments meets the quantitative
thresholds to be identified as reportable
segments. Further details are given in note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING i

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below.

(i)  Construction contracts

As further explained in note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements, revenue and
profit recognition on contract work is dependent
on the estimation of the total outcome of the
construction contract, as well as the work
performed to date.

Significant judgements are required to
estimate the total contract costs, comprising
direct materials, the costs of subcontracting,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed construction overheads. Also
significant assumptions are required to estimate
the total contract costs that will affect whether
any provision is required for foreseeable
losses. The estimates are made based on
past experience and knowledge of project
management.

Actual outcomes in terms of total contract costs
may be higher or lower than those estimated
at the end of the reporting period, which would
affect the revenue and profit recognised in
future years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 3 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment assessment on property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets of the Group are reviewed by
management for possible impairment when
events or changes in an operating environment
indicate that the carrying amounts of such
assets may not be fully recoverable. In
determining the recoverable amounts of these
assets, expected cash flows to be generated
by the assets are discounted to their present
values, which involves significant level of
estimates relating to sales volume, selling prices
and manufacturing and other operating cost,
terminal value, growth rates and the discount
rate. When a decline in an asset’'s recoverable
amount has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to its estimated recoverable amount.
Further details are given in notes 14 and 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment assessment on trade receivables
and other receivables

The Group regularly conducts assessments on
possible losses resulting from the inability of
debtors to settle the amounts due to the Group.
The assessment is based, inter alia, on the age
of the debt and the creditworthiness of the
debtors. If the financial condition of the debtors
deteriorates, allowance for doubtful receivables
would be required. Further details are given in
notes 18 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING i
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iv) Impairment assessment and net realisable
value of inventories

Inventories of the Group are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Management
conducts assessments on the net realisable
value of inventories by reference to their age,
obsolescence, future usage plan, estimated net
selling prices, inventory disposal plans and other
economic conditions including selling price of
similar products with appropriate adjustments.
If the actual selling prices of inventories are
substantially less than those expected due to
an adverse market condition or other factors,
an impairment loss on inventories may result.
Further details are given in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(v) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision
in the period in which such determination is
made. Further details are given in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which
related to tax losses and deductible temporary
differences, depends on management’s
expectation of future taxable profits that will
be available against which the tax losses or
the asset can be utilised. The outcome of their
actual utilisation may be different.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the executive
directors for their decisions about resources allocation
to the Group's business components and for their
review of the performance of those components.
The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are
determined according to the Group’s major products
and service lines.

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has two reportable operating segments
as follows:

— manufacture of equipment and turnkey
production lines for the manufacture of both
amorphous silicon based and Copper Indium
Gallium Selenide (“CIGS"”) thin-film solar
photovoltaic modules and the technological
development and production of Gallium Arsenide
(“GaAs"”) thin-film power turnkey production
lines (“Manufacturing”);

— construction of solar farms, rooftop power
stations, household systems, small to medium-
sized enterprises (“SME") commercial systems
etc., and sale of power stations, operation of
rooftop power stations, sale of solar photovoltaic
panels, application products and electricity, and
provision of engineering service (“Downstream”)

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit or loss,
which is a measure of adjusted profit or loss before
tax. The adjusted profit or loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group's profit or loss before
tax except that interest income, finance costs as well
as head office and corporate expenses are excluded
from such measurement.
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AL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets and
other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities
as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales is transacted with reference to

the selling prices used for sales made to third parties
at the then prevailing market prices.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

4, RBEQIER(E)

(continued)
For the year ended HE-Z-RE Manufacturing Downstream Total

31 December 2016 +ZA=+-HILEE BE Tk A&

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FEL

Segment Revenue AHEA
Sales to external customers mINPRPHE 3,028,182 1,454,948 4,483,130
Segment Results PBEE 1,402,869 (584,682) 818,187
Including: B
Interest income HEMA 3,448 11,390 14,838
Finance cost HBER (40,974) (6,577) (47,551)
Research and B A

development cost (566,122) (1,043) (567,165)
Reconciliation of segment PEBREHE -

results:
Segment results DEFE 818,187
Interest income FIEMA 108
Finance costs BHER (2,316)
Unallocated other income A BEMBA RS

and gains 4,689
Corporate and other PEREMRIERZ

unallocated expenses (162,273)
Profit before tax AR H 658,395

As at 31 December 2016

R-B-AF+ZA=t-H

Manufacturing Total
1 j A

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET Y &L

Segment Assets PHEE 12,930,268 3,031,997 15,962,265
Reconciliation: #k
Elimination of intersegment 38D HR R

receivables (2,789,397)
Corporate and other CEREMRDIREE

unallocated assets 21,457
Total assets BERSE 13,194,325
Segment Liabilities FBEE 3,418,722 4,784,134 8,202,856
Reconciliation: £
Elimination of intersegment HHiE P ERE AR

payables (2,789,397
Deferred tax liabilities ERREAE 401,220
Corporate and other unallocated (MERHEMAAEEE

liabilities 38,624
Total liabilities LR 5,853,303

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES
B RE R AR

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

"FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, RBEQHER(#E)

(continued)
For the year ended HE-Z-RF Manufacturing Downstream

31 December 2016 TZAZ+-BLEE R Tl

HK$'000

Other Segment Information HthpHER
Reversal of impairment of trade & S EY A 7 A E

receivables - (28,830 (28,830)
Reversal of impairment of other  E A YA 7 (B A E

receivables - (110,188) (110,188)
Impairment of trade receivables & ZEKFIERE - 18,211 18,211
Impairment of prepayment BNFERE 20,231 - 20,231
Write-down of inventories to net FEMIHZE 2B FE

realisable value 127,757 15,164 142,921
Reversal of inventory provision — Z S E#Em (22,180) - (22,180)
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7& & 4,999 37,243 42,242
Reconciliation: i
Corporate and other unallocated ¥ REMR D EHE R

depreciation and amortisation 470
Total depreciation and TEREHES

amortisation 42,712
Capital expenditure* BREZ 293,605 8,441 302,046
Reconciliation: #
Corporate and other unallocated ¥R EMRDEERFR

capital expenditure 794
Total capital expenditure BARY 8% 302,840
@ Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, @ BARSTBEANAEDE BE R&BE

plant and equipment and intangible assets.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RBEQIER(E)

(continued)
For the year ended HE-Z—1F Manufacturing Downstream Total
31 December 2015 T+ A=T—HIEE S8 Tk At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAT FET FET
Segment Revenue AHYA
Sales to external customers mNFRFEE 1,977,691 836,977 2,814,668
Segment Results ABEE (9,400,801) (2,539,842) (11,940,643)
Including: B
Research and development TRERA
costs (824,199) (1,228) (825,427)
Reconciliation of segment PEREEE
results:
Segment results DEEE (11,940,643)
Interest income FBRA 63,709
Finance costs BB (72,063)
Unallocated other income and KA EEMUA Kz
gains 94
Corporate and other unallocated ~ (ME R EMADEREX
expenses (138,510)
Loss before tax BiAi 8 (12,087,413)
Manufacturing Downstream Total
As at 31 December 2015 R=E-1&F+=-A=1—A S8 T =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET
Segment Assets PBEE 11,945,744 3,412,926 15,358,670
Reconciliation: £
Elimination of intersegment HH5E P EOR R
receivables (2,970,595)
Corporate and other unallocated ¥ RH WAL EE
assets 83,623
Total assets BELR 12,471,698
Segment Liabilities FHEE 2,958,595 4,574,250 7,532,845
Reconciliation: ik -
Elimination of intersegment HED BREERAFUE
payables (2,970,595)
Deferred tax liabilities ERHEAE 417,406
Corporate and other unallocated ¥R EMASEEE
liabilities 44,440
Total liabilities aEeE 5,024,096

T NEER 179
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

"FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E- A tASHALTE)

+= —=

rRESEHER (&)

(continued)
For the year ended HE-Z—1F Manufacturing Downstream Total
31 December 2015 T-A=T—HLFE SUE T it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FET
Other Segment Information Hitrp HER
Impairment losses recognised ~ RERKERMHERE
in the statement of profit or
loss 9,602,009 53,058 9,655,067
Depreciation and amortisation 78 k& $4 236,171 76,357 312,528
Reconciliation: #ik -
Corporate and other unallocated (% R H AP EATE REH
depreciation and amortisation 3,295
Total depreciation and TEREHES
amortisation 315,823
Capital expenditure* BRRZ* 422,400 308,781 731,181
Reconciliation: K
Corporate and other unallocated (¥R EM AT ERHR
capital expenditure 622
Total capital expenditure BRRYEH 731,803
3 Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, & EARTBREAEDE BE KK
plant and equipment and intangible assets, including B EBEREEBREKENBARFMSE
assets from acquisition of subsidiaries. ZBE) -
Geographical information wEER

(a) Revenue from external customers

(a) FKEISFKEFZHKA

2016 2015

TE-XRF s

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Mainland China R A i 4,412,827 2,127,615
United Kingdom HE 4,675 92,671
United States =35 33,055 537,811
Europe M 32,083 47,405
Others HAb 490 9,166
4,483,130 2,814,668

The revenue information above is based on the

locations of the customers.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Geographical information (continued)

(b) Non-current assets

rESEER 2)

HEER(E)
(b) HREBEE

2016 2015
=l — < T
HK$000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Mainland China R A i 337,077 331,431
United States 35T 401,751 259,955
Hong Kong B 963 4,017
United Kingdom [ 14,420 4,430
Others EAb 4,176 10,631
758,387 610,464

The non-current asset information above is
based on the locations of the assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue of HK$2,091,900,000 (2015:
HK$1,868,346,000) was derived from sales by the
Manufacturing segment to Shandong Macrolink
New Resources Technology Limited (“Shandong
Macrolink”).

Revenue of HK$903,659,000 (2015: HK$73,098,000)

was derived from sales by the Manufacturing
segment to Hanergy Affiliates.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 &;

IAL STATEMENTS

=—F=

+= —=

NE+—_A=+—BLEFE)

5. REVENUE 5. WA
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, mainly WA BIRNEEzEXERE  TZRET
represents an appropriate proportion of contract EERNEEHSERBARRAEFHE
revenue of construction contracts and the sale of EAXGreELL - EIEE Y - KB xR
solar power stations, the sale of rooftop power EHERNAERESR  EHAREHET
stations, sale of solar photovoltaic modules and BRI Z WA
photovoltaic application products, electricity and
provision of engineering service to customers.
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZ DT
2016 2015
TE-ARE il
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contract revenue B RYA 3,024,927 1,934,115
Sale of solar power stations SHERIZREE uh 88,203 458,385
Sale of solar photovoltaic panels $HE KFZRE KR E AR 111,883 111,748
Sale of rooftop power stations HERTEE UL 1,234,999 280,694
Sale of photovoltaic application SHE R KERER
products 2,908 5,866
Sale of electricity HEE N 20,210 12,161
Sale of engineering service TRRRBEWA — 11,699

4,483,130 2,814,668

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

6.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. HttW A RUz=
An analysis of other income and gains is as follows: EMBRA R ESITAOT

2016 2015
- I T T F
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET
Government grants* B AL * 17,245 79,403
Bank interest income (note 8) RITFBUA (KT 2E8) 2,444 12,022
Other interest income (note 8) HA R B A (HT7E8) 12,502 51,687
Interest income on overdue trade 160 BR FE WOE BE R B A A
receivables from Hanergy Affiliates B 55382 F B
(note 8, 20) (Bfats, 20) - 194,394
Gain on sales of spare parts SHET M2 s 1,595 1,050
Gain on provision of services AR 2 W 21,376 14,764
Others Hith 22,042 9,355
77,204 362,675
@ Government grants are tax refunds and funds for * BN #A e EEEBERAI 2 AE
the research and innovation works of the Group's (= Ff B A~ | A B 78 K Bl T AE i iR B
subsidiaries to which the related expenses have ZHRHRES o

already been incurred.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

7.

FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

AL STATEMENTS

7. BIBEHRA

MERARZOMET

2016 2015
TE—XRF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest on other borrowings from FEAS B 5 H A a2 FI B
related parties 14,521 13,895
Interest on other borrowings from R ERBEME = T HEMERZ
unrelated third parties 2 20,351 32,689
Interest on bank borrowings RITEERE 13,839 25,768
Interest on finance lease ERRERERE 1,156 1,435
Bills receivable discount charges EREEITZEER - 4,000
49,867 77,787
Less: capitalised interest B BAREFH R — (5,724)
49,867 72,063
HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED B EREEEEER AT



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

8. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 8. BiANEF (EE)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after NEE 2 F Al Hl /ﬁnf' | (B8 )E Mk~
charging/(crediting): (T A)T3IIEE -

2016 2015

—E-RE —Z-9F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Bank interest income (note 6) FARSMANE6) (2,444) (12,022)

Other interest income (note 6) Wﬂ@ﬂw\(//ﬂ}*ﬁ) (12,502) (61,687)
Interest income on overdue trade receivable BEEKESRELDBHHEY

from Hanergy Affiliates (note 6) WA, ?6) - (194,394)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of a subsidiary (note 31) HERBAR (M) /BRWZ31) (62,623) 11,499
Auditor’s remuneration BEMHE

Audit service BHRE 23,594 13,083

Others Hitr 7,673 3,175
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 16 B RERHENH16) 1,885 158,956
Depreciation of items of property, plant mx - BERSEEE

and equipment (note 10, 14) ZHEWE0 14) 40,827 156,867
Employee benefit expenses**: EEBRMRES

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e 2MRENHE 628,465 977,364

Employment termination benefits included in EERBREN

administrative expenses GrAfTBEY) 10,324 39,682
Pension schemes RIRE5E 31,567 59,714
Equity-settled share option expenses IR EE MR G BERS 31,358 19,282
Sub-total NGt 701,714 1,096,042
Research and development costs e 567,165 825,427
Foreign exchange losses, net* EHEL - FE 62,645 84,442
Impairment of goodwill HERE - 7.915,318
Impairment of property, plant and equipment NE - BERREREWE14)
(note 14) - 770,022
Impairment of intangible assets (note 16) BV AEREWZ16) - 969,727
Impairment of trade receivables* (note 18) ESRIERE (2 18) 18,211 202,817
Impairment of prepayments* BAFERE* 20,231 =
Impairment of other receivables* (note 20) HthETIERE * (1 20) - 247,454
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables* BoRWFRRERE (2 18)
(note 18) (28,830) =
Reversal of impairment of other receivables* Bt YR RERE * (fra20)
(note 20) (110,188) =
Wirite-down of inventories to net realisable value* FEMAZNERFE (H717)
(note 17) 142,921 218,265
Reversal of inventory provision* (note 17) FERERE (Mit17) (22,180) =
Write-off of leasehold improvement to profit or loss ~ EMEXEME R
included in administrative expenses SATHRER - 115,506
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and LENE « BE Rk
equipment* HE ZBR* 4,516 6,837
Minimum lease payments under operating leases: LERgE sEHE
Land and buildings T RET 184,714 320,747
Equipment M 24,444 29,431
Product warranty provision Emraki 37,188 =
@ These items are included in “other expenses” on the 2 ZEHE AR KB G ABRE R EAM
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss 2mEkzE %Z(EME%S‘ZJW
and other comprehensive income of the Group.

**  This item include the directors’ and chief executive's **  ZIERREASE E’J%%&IETTE&/\
remuneration and key management emolument of the EHFMEEBEBABMNE (£ 13) -

Group (note 13).



186

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

3t

INCOME TAX

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda and conducts
its primary business through its subsidiaries in the
PRC and other countries. The Company, under the
current laws of Bermuda, is not subject to tax on
income or capital gains. Hong Kong profits tax rate was
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) during the years reported. The
Company’s Hong Kong subsidiaries have both Hong
Kong-sourced and non-Hong Kong-sourced income.
The latter is not subject to Hong Kong profits tax and
the related expenses are non-tax-deductible. For the
Hong Kong-sourced income, no provision for Hong
Kong profits tax was made as such operations did not
generate any assessable profits arising from Hong Kong
during the year. Furthermore, there are no withholding
tax in Hong Kong on the remittance of dividends.

Effective from 1 January 2008, the PRC's statutory
corporate income tax (“CIT") rate is 25%. Certain of
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC were designated as
“High New Technology Enterprises” and were entitled
to a preferential CIT rate of 15%. The Company’'s other
PRC subsidiaries are subject to income tax at 25%
on their respective taxable income as calculated in
accordance with the CIT Law and its relevant regulations
except for Apollo Precision (Kunming) Yuanhong Limited
(“Apollo Kunming”). In 2013, Apollo Kunming received
written confirmations from the local tax bureau that
Apollo Kunming was taxed on a deemed profit method
based on the deemed profits at the 25% statutory tax
rate. The deemed profit was determined at 10% of the
sales of Apollo Kunming. The Company’s subsidiary
in Sweden is subject to income tax at a rate of 22%.
The Company’s subsidiary in the United Kingdom is
subject to income tax at a rate of 20%. The Company’s
subsidiaries in the United States are subject to income
tax at rates ranging from 41% to 44%. The Company’s
subsidiaries in Germany are subject to income tax at
a rate of 29%. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates. No provision
for income tax was made for the overseas subsidiaries
as there were no assessable profits during the current
and prior years.

RrBH
ARARNBEREFMKY - WEBES
BEREMBERHEARETEEER -
BEAREZRELAE  REREEM
FXAL 2 AR R B ARNS TS B s E AU
HH o NBEFH > BEEFEGHEXA
16.5% (ZZ—FHF : 16.6%) ° XA A
ZEEWNBARYHERE DB RIER
BEBZWA - 85 HAZNEBHE
i MABRERA X B TATRL - BREE
BZIWMAME © ARZEBRAFERE
BN EEETMERTEF - ML E
EBNETAE LB - 1o+ AN F]
IR RIE R AR B 2 BB A ©

“EENF-A-HEER 7 H
AECEMBRIEEMERDER
26% ° NEEE T EK B A RERE
RlEHEMmEE] BN ZE8EE
PSR E 15% » AR A2 Efbhrh B
BARARBERMAF/RERERARE
RABEREZB ZERBKRALZ 25% B
NAEH - ERHBERERMRE
Ram([R2EAAB DR RZFT—=
F ERAHNGREEZHHRBZEHE
R BRHABAERBIEERE 25% iR
A MR E MBTEBE 18284 7
RERAGZHE10%EE - ARRZ
B B Y B A R ZR % 22 % MU PRSI © A
N2 EBEHE A RIZAR 20% SRS
B o RRB 2 XBEMBRBERIE41%
EA44% FBRAEHR - ARBZEENE
NAIER29% BT - b7 /&
R A 2 B TR T 7N 5= B AR T HE W)
FREBETZCREFE o AREINITE
REYERAFESBEFEERFRER
oA - MO I AT IS A -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

IAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX (continued)

Under the prevailing CIT Law and the relevant
regulations, any dividends paid by the Company's
PRC subsidiaries from their earnings derived after 1
January 2008 to the Company’s Hong Kong subsidiary
are subject to a 5% or 10%, depending on the
applicability of the Sino-Hong Kong tax treaty, PRC
dividend withholding tax. For the Group, the historical
applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on retained earnings distributable
by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in

Fr8% (&)

RERTEEMBVERERBER
R-ZZFZENE-F—B& ARFEZH
BB ARARARARZEBENE AR
IR 2 EMBEERBNTEZRER
5% 3% 10% * 1 F 78 T Kt 72 P B AR
EEMRERBR - AAKEMS -
BEBEBRREXRS% - At - AEEA
RE_FETENF-A—RELEZENH
ZERTEXZZHBARATHIKZ
REEN P BB o

respect of their earnings generated from 1 January

2008.
2016 2015
TE-ARE il
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax: BERRIR -
— The PRC — h
Income tax expense for the year REFATEHHAY 423,138 217,717
Under provision in respect of BEFERENE
prior years 24 2,560
423,162 220,277
Deferred tax benefit — EER IR g ) —
The PRC (note 27) R (HE27) (16,381) (74,148)
Total tax charge for the year REER B H B 406,781 146,129
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NOTES

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable
to profit/(loss) before tax at the PRC statutory tax
rates which the Company’'s majority subsidiaries are
domiciled to the actual income tax expense is as

follows:

'FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 B =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

9. FiE®®

BHBE(AREREXE S
MATFEH) O EER KA EBRRAE
AR, (B8 ) Z B < BB
BHASEERMT -

(o) FNCIE

2016 2015
—RE —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) before tax HAnE A, (&18) 658,395 (12,087,413)
Tax at the PRC statutory tax rate B BUEFER R E 2 IR 164,599  (3,021,853)
Effect of differences in international B[R %8Il L& i 4 BE B i
and domestic preferential tax rates HMEEZERH 8 (98,454) (249,641)
Adjustments in respect of current tax @7k B BN EAFR 8 2 A%
of previous periods 24 2,560
Effect of the deemed profit method — 18{E& K552 524 1,827 5,771
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 10,647 18,882
Effect of super-deduction on PRC FRFB R ¥ B AR 2 2 A
research and development costs T (11,661) (19,743)
Deferred tax assets not recognised AERRE L ELERIBEEE X
for impairments and other HEMEREER
temporary difference 62,459 2,611,699
Tax losses not recognised ﬂiﬁEwZﬁEIEEﬂE 599,136 865,786
PRC dividend withholding tax Fh B FfT B A B AT 99 R Vi ) B
itk (8,194) (136,761)
Deferred tax assets written off WL EER B A E — 69,104
Utilisation of temporary differences BB ATEHIB T EER 2
not recognised in prior periods R (314,579) =
Others HAh 977 325
Income tax expense Frig i 406,781 146,129

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

10. A DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS 10.

HELD FOR SALE

The Company entered into a sales agreement with
a third party to sell the entire equity interests in
Jiangmen Qingyuan New Energy Power Investment
Limited (“Jiangmen Qingyuan”) on 15 October 2016
with a total consideration of HK$31,530,000. Up
to 31 December 2016, the Company has received
HK$20,120,000 as down payment. The disposal
of Jiangmen Qingyuan is due to be completed in
2017. As at 31 December 2016, the sale transaction
was still in progress and Jiangmen Qingyuan was
classified as a disposal group held for sale as at
the end of the reporting period. The information of
Jiangmen Qingyuan is included in the “Downstream”
segment for the year ended 31 December 20186.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of
Jiangmen Qingyuan classified as held for sale as at
31 December 2016 are as follows:

NETZA=+—BILFE)

PEAEEZHEES
AARRZE—RF+A+HREBEFE=
FEIMHE R - UWEE /IFﬂ/aﬁaéﬁ
BRESKRERRABNIMBER)E
A% #E - 48 {8 531,530,000 7T ° @%
—E—REF+-A=1+—8 ' AQAK
H1 20,120,000 B T AB MR - HE /IF'ﬂ
BR—BARZE—tFEK - R
—NF+-_A=1+—8 " Hj'%“%mﬁ

#1T IFTRERERSHARED B AR
BRFEZHEMRS - IFTERZEMR
BE_T—A"Ft-A=+—BHLHFE

IPNRYAR

R-BE—RF+-_A=+—"H28RK
BHE IFERZEZEMNEERE
(ECUNNE

HK$’000
FET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B Rkt 28,902
Trade receivables Z 5 e EIA 182
Other receivables o e W Sk IE 3,135
Deposits and prepayments %4 MIENFOE 1
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTETR 5
Assets classified as held for sale NEAGEZLHEHGEE 32,225
Liabilities BE
Trade and bills payables B 5 R EBENFIA (13,791)
Other payables and accruals H bR RIE N EETE A (59)
Liabilities directly associated with the MY AGEEEEREHU AR
assets classified as held for sale (13,850)
Net assets directly associated with the EAEAGEZHEMRASE
disposal group BEEBEBEzEETE 18,375
Exchange reserve bE 904
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

11.

12.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend to declare a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF
THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per
share amount is based on the profit/(loss) for the
year attributable to the owners of the parent, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
41,751,928,000 (2015: 41,718,070,000) in issue during
the year.

The Group had share options and subscription rights
outstanding which could potentially dilute basic
earnings/(loss) per share in the future but these
securities were excluded from the computation
of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2015 as their effects would have been
anti-dilutive. The calculation of the diluted earnings
per share amount in 2016 is based on the profit for
the year attributable to the owners of the parent
without any adjustment. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is
the number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year, as used in the calculation of basic earnings
per share plus the weighted average number of
ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise of subscription
rights into ordinary shares. No adjustment has been
made to the weighted average number of ordinary
shares as the outstanding options had an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amount
presented.

11.

12.

iR E

EZeTEIREHE— T—/_\¢+_
A=t —BLEFEZREEE(ZF—
FE)

SRARBEEAEBEEBREFR
(B#8)

BREAXRAN (BE)zZ2BIHBRIE
BARBEBEABRGEFEE®H(EE)
AEFEANBEBITEEBKZINEFEY
#(41,751,928,000 (= T — £ F :

41,718,070,000 f%) st E S -

RE B RTTERE B MR B Al e Y
RRNBREARF,(BR)BREE
HEXE BEHESHAERBEY

2. FAmMEtEHEz_—_ZT—hF+-A
=+ —HLEFENEREEHERITR
SFEER - RZE—RNEEREEET

MERIRESARER ARIEFER

MEt B (T EEARAR) - Bahkz nE
FAZERAETESRERBNNF

ANERTEERHEE RMERATHER
T’Eﬁﬁaﬁﬁ%ﬁéa?ﬁ%ﬁ BRTAEITZE
BRI RGEE - X L E m AN
R AFRE - Emlﬁ’jr‘ﬁiﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂ
BREUEZ2INERERBNSEE
REETE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% i 3= P &

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF
THE PARENT (continued)

When calculating the diluted earnings per share, an
estimated share price of 2016 was used which was
calculated by market value of 100% equity interest
of the Company (the “Market Value"”) divided by total
outstanding shares as at each valuation date. The
Market Value was appraised by an independent valuer
(the “Valuer"”) as the trading of the Company’s shares
had been suspended since 20 May 2015. The Valuer
adopted the market approach, which is basically a
comparison method which estimates market value
from analysing sales and financial data and ratios of
comparable public companies. The Market Value was
derived after a discount of lack of marketability

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
per share are based on:

12. BRRAFEEARGEESRER,
(B518) (%)

RAESREERAIE BEFRA-Z
—ANEZEFRE - HERARAF100%
BgzmE(TEDRASHERS
BITEINZRDBEEE - BRARF
BROBE-ZZE—AFHAA=-THE—EY
=EE  mEHR BB L GEEM((EE
BN ) ERTAS o [ER AT ISE - HE
AEAR—BLHEE BB ETAF
ZHEEM BB R E - HBETIEE
B MEDFARS TS RAENTRE
BT -

SREARBERT, (BB HRET
SR

2016 2015
=t PP TR
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET
Profit/(loss) attributable to the BIETESRELRRET,
owners of the parent, used in (BE) 2GR E#EEA

the basic earnings/(loss) per share FEEE R, (&)

calculation

251,620 (12,233,564)

Profit/(loss) for the purpose of diluted B{EztEEREERF],
earnings/(loss) per share calculation  (&518) Z & F, (E518) 251,620 (12,233,564)
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PSR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12. BRABBEARBLERER,
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF (E518) (&)
THE PARENT (continued)

Number of shares

B EE
2015
—T—RF
‘000
FAE
Shares gl
Weighted average number of ordinary F{EztEFIREREF],
shares in issue during the year (B18) 2 FAB BT LB
used in the basic earnings/(loss) ISk
per share calculation 41,751,928 41,718,070
Deemed exercise of subscription BRI TR R
rights 920,004 =
Weighted average number of ordinary F{EztEEREERF],
shares in issue during the year (B18) 2 FREBITEBR
used in diluted earnings/(loss) per hniEF 5 8
share calculation 42,671,932 41,718,070
HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED R EREEEE AR AR
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION AND KEY
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

13. EERTETHRAEHMEE
EEEAEME

AEEEEFZMERBELHRA - F

B R EMERIZE 383(1)(a) ~(b) ~(c) K (f) 16 -

AEAR(HBEESMEER)ROIF2
EREEMT

as follows:
2016 2015
SE-AF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Fees we 2,423 2,714
Other emoluments: His
Salaries, allowances and benefits in ~ ¥% R REWH
kind 10,430 11,720
Equity-settled share-based payments  LAREzS 45 & (D S 1+t 2,588 2,120
Contributions to retirement benefit RO FIET B R
schemes 37 72
13,055 13,912
Total B 15,478 16,626

The directors and chief executive represent the key
management personnel of the Company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z— R F+-_A=+—HI-FE)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION AND KEY
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (continued)

In prior years, certain Directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the share option scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 29(b) to
the financial statements.

(a) Executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors

13.

EERTETBAERHMRE
EEEAEME )

RBEFE FTEFIRFHAKE
ZIREREAR D B EIRE R B ERE
Bt E—FTHFBHRYBRKRME
29(b) °

(a) BITEERBUFYTES

Salaries, Contributions
allowances Equity-settled to retirement
and benefits share-based benefit
Fees in kind payments schemes Total
§e 2ER WEREEH RHRAE
g Al LUBL) 3 AF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
77 71 77 7z 77
2016 Z8-AF
Executive directors: UrES:
M. Yuan Yabin (] REHEL) 144 410 - - 614
Dr. Lam Yat Ming Eddie (i)~ #—"8f8Li/ 84 4,151 466 18 4,869
Mr. Wang Xiong i T 3 164 - 3 203
Mr. Si Haijian (i) ABELE 24 1,084 212 - 3440
Mr. Huang Songchun ENERE 234 780 - - 1014
Wir. Xu Xiaohua (v REEREN 143 449 - - 592
Mr. Zhang Bin (v el 59 442 - - 501
Mr. Li Hejun fvi] EELE W) 140 - - - 140
Mr. Frank Mingfang Dai (vii)  Frank Mingfang Dai % i) 140 1441 - 8 1,589
Dr. Feng Dianbo (i) BERELH 140 - - - 140
Mr. Chen Li fx) iyl 84 936 - 8 1,028
Mr. Liu Jianjun () BEELEN) 9 7 - - 274
Mr. Zhang Bo (v R i) 17 - - - 17
M. Lin Qi fxi MRSt i 4 336 - - 381
1847 10,430 2,588 37 14,902
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHES
directors:
Ms. Zhao Lan HELT 14 - - - 144
Mr. Wang Tongho IRg%EE 144 - - - 144
Professor Xu Zheng BIEAE 14 - - - 144
Dr. Wang Wenjing INGEEL 144 - - - 144
b76 - - - 576
Total emoluments “T- kR
for the year 2016 gE 2423 10,430 2588 37 15,478
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION AND KEY
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors (continued)

IAL STATEMENTS

i
=

HILEE)

13. EERTETHRAEHMEE
EEEAEME )

(a) BITESRBIFHTESRE)

Salaries, Contributions
allowances Equity-settled to retirement
and benefits share-based henefit
Fees in kind payments schemes Total
e 2YR WEREER ROMETE
ik Enilg Riastt 3 ait
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET AT T FAT
2015 Z8-1f
Executive directors: UTES !
Mr. Li Hejun (v FNELEM) 390 — — — 390
Mr. Frank Mingfang Dai (vii)  Frank Mingfang Dai % & v 390 4,000 - 18 4,408
Dr. Feng Dianbo (i BERELMH 390 — — — 390
Mr. Liu Min IREE 270 - - - 270
Mr. Chen Li (x) Bt 234 2,600 - 18 2,852
Dr. Lam Yat Ming Eddie (i)~ #—TBfEL ) 234 3750 116 18 4118
Mr. Li Guangmin FER%HE 210 1,348 - 18 1576
Mr. Huang Songchun EERE 8 2 = = 28
Mr. Si Haijan (i) Bl 5 7 - 2004 - 201
Mr. Zhang Bo (i TR 7 = = = 7
2,138 11,720 2120 7 16,050
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHAES:
directors:
Ms. Zhao Lan HELT 14 - - - 144
Mr. Wang Tongbo TREE 14 — — — 14
Professor Xu Zheng R 144 — — — 144
Dr. Wang Wenjing TEEt 144 — — — 144
b76 - - - 576
Total emoluments 51
for the year 2015 % 2,14 11,720 2120 72 16,626
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION AND KEY
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Mr. Yuan Yabin was appointed as an executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company with
effect from 20 May 2016.

Dr. Lam Yat Ming Eddie, an executive Director
of the Company, was appointed as the Vice
Chairman of the Company, with effect from 20
May 2016.

Mr. Wang Xiong was appointed as an executive
Director and the Vice Chairman of the Company
with effect from 1 November 2016.

Mr. Si Haijian, an executive director of the
Company, was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, with effect from 20
May 2016.

Mr. Xu Xiaohua was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 20
May 2016.

Mr. Zhang Bin was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 1
October 2016.

Mr. Li Hejun resigned as an executive Director
of the Company and the Chairman of the Board
with effect from 20 May 2016.

Mr. Frank Mingfang Dai resigned as an executive
Director, the Vice Chairman of the Company, and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with
effect from 20 May 2016.

Dr. Feng Dianbo resigned as an executive
Director and the Vice Chairman of the Company
with effect from 20 May 2016.

Mr. Chen Li resigned as an executive Director
and the Vice Chairman of the Company with
effect from 20 May 2016.

13. EERFETHRAEFMEE
EEBEAEME 2

(a)

BITEERBYFATES(E)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

ROWAEEEZEI/HNTES
RARRBERE BT —ARFhH
AZ+HEER-

ARAATEEH-KBLOE
ZERARAEER =T
—RNFREAZTHBER -

Tk EDEEEARARNA
TEERATH BT A
+— A BN -

ARRMTEZABRELDE
RERARBEFEHNITE B
T AFRAZTHBER -

BEELLEEEZTAEAQTN
BITEE AT ANFE0A
—t+BEBERR -

RIWELECDRRER/ARBH
TEE A-_T-—R"F+H-H
RRAER -

FHEREEBEAR AT
EENBEEIFE BTN
FRAA-THBEX -

Frank Mingfang Dai’t & E &
ERARNANITES - BIEREH#
BENTE  BHZZE—A<FAHAHA
Z+HBERK-

BERELEBFEARR AT
BEENEIERE BT -A"Fh
AZ+HEER-

BRAOFEEERERRRINBMITE
ENEIERE BZZE—XRFhOA
T HBER -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION AND KEY
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors (continued)

(xi) ~ Mr. Liu Jianjun was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 20
May 2016 and resigned with effect from 1
November 2016.

(xii)  Mr. Zhang Bo resigned as an executive Director
of the Company with effect from 15 July 2016.

(xiii) Mr. Lin Qi was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 17
July 2016 and resigned as an executive Director
of the Company with effect from 1 October
2016.

No emolument was paid by the Group to any
director as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office
during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
Nil).

There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).

13. EERFETBAEETFMKRE
EEBAEME &)

(a)

BOTESRBYFAITES(E)

xi) BIRFELELEEEZER/ERAN
WITEE AT —<FAHA
“tHEER  REBE A=
Z—RNF+—A—HRER-

(xi) RKELECBEIA/ANRANHIT
EE BT XFtA+ER
RRAERR -

(xiii) MEELEEBERERARBHH
TEE AT —RFLA+L
BiAERR - RERHEARFNH
TEEH-T—R"Ft+A A
BERL @

BE_ZT—R"E+-A=+—HBLt
FE  ASEBERTAESMN
M - ARSI EMAREB LR
MAREEERRB - SHIE SRR
ME(CT—0F - §)-

BE_ZT—R"E+-A=+—HL
FRIEFHEETREXREN
REBEMME s ( =T -5
F:E)

Five highest paid individuals (b) EEBREHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were RAEE AEBRAEZHZRSEHMA
the highest in the Group for the year included +TEE—R(CE—HF: WE)
one (2015: two) Director and chief executive EERFETHRAE  EB@EH
whose emoluments are included in the analysis REXDH - FARENER T MHH
presented above. The emoluments payable (ZE—RTF : =RH) AL 2B
to the remaining four (2015: three) individuals T
during the year are as follows:
2016 2015
=LAt — T — 7
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other emoluments FekEMME 10,057 7,223
Discretionary bonuses EIBIEAL 5,713 5,931
Equity-settled share-based payments  DAREzS 4% & B IR1D Sk +F 395 1,713
Contributions to retirement benefit ERERIFF 2R
schemes 155 93
Total k] 16,320 14,960
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 &;

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION AND KEY
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b)

IAL STATEMENTS

E-T—

NE+—_A=+—BLEFE)

Five highest paid individuals(continued)

No emolument was paid by the Group to
any top five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group,

or as compensation for loss of office during the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

The number of non-director and non-chief-

executive, highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is

as follows:

2E

(b)

13. EEREETBRAEHFHRE

BAEME®)

TEBREHFMAL(E)

BHE_Z—R"F+-A=+—HI
FE AEEHERETANARR
SEMA LTINS - ARSIRE
MAREESIRMAREBER
BM - ELBERMBE(CE R
FE) o

e M FATHEZFEERIEE
ZTBAER - =5 BiEE AZN
N

Number of employees

BEAH

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000

3,000,001/ TE
3,500,000 % 7T
3,500,001 BTE
4,000,000 % 7T
5,000,001 BtE
5,500,000 /87T
5,500,001 BLE
6,000,00075 7T

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

ERERREEEERA



B RE AR MY

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

IAL STATEMENTS

14. Y% - BMEKRRE

Leasehold
improvements,
fumiture,
fixtures
Land and Construction Plant and and Motor
buildings in progress machinery equipment vehicles Total
HENE
3 X
11hEET kRIE HEREE RER®S AE ait
s 000 HKs 000 HKs 000 HKs 000 ks 000 )
7T 747 FETL 77 7T 7T
31 December 2016 “8-AEtZAZT-R
At 1 January 2016 R-2-7E-A-H
Cost A 63,708 303,777 669,370 471561 23893 1533305
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  ZHHERE (68,708) (253,853) (551,013) (300,618) (16,406) (1,190,598)
Net carrying amount GEFE - 49924 108,357 176,939 7487 342,707
At 1 January 2016, net of accumulated RZT-73E-A-H RZ:
depreciation and impairment TERGE - 49,924 108,357 176,939 7487 342,707
Additions AE - 214,149 19,440 6,419 521 301,129
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 31) HE-FRBAR W) - - - (13) (374) (387)
Disposals ik - - (1,545) (16,964) - 18,509)
Transfer g - (127.482) 62,207 65,136 119 -
Other transfer EnER - (117) 48,801 - - 48,084
Depreciation provided during the year FRAERR - - (8,061) (30,615 (1,480) (40,156)
Fxchange realignment EjiAE - (3,152) 14,233) (9.027) (345) (26,757)
At 31 December 2016, net of accumulated ~ RZE-RE+=A=1-H-
depreciation and impairment MREAERAE - 193,322 214,986 191,875 5,928 606,111
At 31 December 2016; RIE-ETAZT-8:
Cost S 68,708 447,175 774,060 523,108 23,814 1,836,865
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  ZEHERE (68,708) (253,853) (559,074) (331,23) (17,886) (1,230,754)
Net carrying amount HEEE - 193322 214,986 191,875 5928 606,111
31 December 2015 “8-EFtZAZ-A
At 1 January 2015 S Sl
Cost A 68,763 323,961 442,959 180,497 14,310 1,030,490
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (15,186) 20,591) (156,795} (63427) {7.710) (263 709)
Net carrying amount HEEE 53,577 303,370 286,164 117,070 6,600 766,781
At 1 January 2015, net of accumulated RZZ-15-A-8 HRZ:
depreciation fE 53,577 303,370 286,164 17,070 6,600 766,781
Additions HE ‘ — 305,413 122,269 281,571 9873 719,126
Disposal of a subsidiary note 31) HE-BHBAR K1) - - (24,289) - - (24,209)
Disposals 5 - - 33,799) (8,330) (105) (42,234)
Transfer &g - (298,737) 158411 140,326 - -
Other transfer AfpiER - (12,008) - - - (12,008
Wiite off it = - - (115,506] - (115,506]
Depreciation provided during the year EmAERR (1,89) - (70,826) (80,475) 3,672 (156,867)
Impairment HiE (51,627) (233,269) (323,393) (156,716} [5,024) (770,022)
Exchange realignment Ei AR (55) (14,852) (6,181) (1,00) (185 (22,074
At 31 December 2015, netof accumulated ~ R-F-RET-A=1-H"
depreciation and impairment MEZiERAE - 49924 108,367 176,939 7487 342,707
At 31 December 2015: WoZ-AF+-A=1-R:
Cost A 68,708 303777 659,370 477,557 23,893 1,633,305
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  Z3HIERHE (68,708) (253,853) (651,013) (300,618) (16,406) (1,190,598
Net carrying amount BEFE = 49,924 108,357 176,939 7481 342,107
ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —E—REER
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IAL STATEMENTS
MR R T P

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

15. GOODWILL 15. &
The goodwill arose from the acquisition of the RIEZENFRBRESHAEE R
Manufacturing segment in 2009 and its net carrying ERLHIEEFEITWOT :

amount is analysed as follows:

HK$'000
FET
Cost at 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—A—BIRKAE 7,915,318
Impairment during the year REERE (7,915,318)
Cost and net carrying amount at RZZE—RAFF+ZA=+—AA R
31 December 2015 AR A —
At 31 December 2015: RZE—AF+ZA=+—8:
Cost [DE 7,915,318
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (7,915,318)
Net carrying amount AR A =
Cost at 1 January 2016, RZZE—RF—H B E -
net of accumulated impairment ks B2HRE —
Impairment during the year REFERE —
Cost and net carrying amount at RZE—RFETZA=T—HBREK
31 December 2016 BRESHE =
At 31 December 2016: RZE—RF+ZA=+—8:
Cost B AR 7,915,318
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (7,915,318)
Net carrying amount BREVFE —

200 HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED BREESREEEERAA
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IAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. B EE

Technology Customers’

know-how contracts Total
40T 2058 ZEEERE &5t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FEIT FEIT FEIT
31 December 2016 —E-REF
+=—B=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2016, net RZ-ZT—"F—H—H
of accumulated amortisation EEX$TE
and impairment PR Rt EE S RORE 16,597 — 16,597
Additions INE 1,711 — 1,711
Disposals e (3,036) — (3,036)
Amortisation provided F N
during the year (1,885) — (1,885)
Exchange realignment b (702) — (702)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=ZRA=1+—H 12,685 - 12,685
At 31 December 2016: RZZE—RF
+ZA=+—8":
Cost BN 1,619,803 374,613 1,994,416
Accumulated amortisation 2T MORE
and impairment (1,607,118) (374,613) (1,981,731)
Net carrying amount BREFE 12,685 — 12,685
31 December 2015 —ZE—EHF
+=—B=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2015, RZE—RF—HA—H
net of accumulated R ANME
amortisation HIBR REHEESE 1,181,777 — 1,181,777
Additions NE 5,728 — 5,728
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y BE— R E R A 6,949 — 6,949
Amortisation provided F R
during the year (158,956) = (158,956)
Impairment during the year & RRE (969,727) — (969,727)
Exchange realignment b H T (49,174) — (49,174)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF
+=—BA=+—8H 16,597 — 16,597
At 31 December 2015: RZE—RF
+=-A=+—A8:
Cost BN 1,621,128 374,613 1,995,741
Accumulated amortisation 2T MORE
and impairment (1,604,531) (374,613)  (1,979,144)
Net carrying amount BREFE 16,597 — 16,597

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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IAL STATEMENTS

E?Jﬁ%#lﬁ% Bﬁ‘I

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

17.

INVENTORIES 17. 78
2016 2015
=l = iF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
Raw materials R¥} 1,066,212 1,420,277
Photovoltaic modules SR 4R 15 573,162 854,761
Photovoltaic application products HIRERESR 515 3,751

Photovoltaic power generation 18T HE 2 HIREEIRE

projects to be sold 248,358 317,979
1,888,247 2,596,768
Less: impairment provision O OB (239,530) (238,478)
1,648,717 2,358,290

The cost of inventories sold for the year ended
31 December 2016 was HK$1,885,358,000 (2015:
HK$1,431,021,000). A provision for impairment of
inventories of HK$239,530,000 was made for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$238,478,000)
to write down the inventories to their net realisable
value. There was no interest expense arising from the
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings capitalised
in photovoltaic power generation stations for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$5,724,000 with
capitalised rate of 5.3%) (note 7).

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

 EZE—AF+ZA=+—HL#F
- FEMHE KK &1,885358,000
B L(Z T — A F ¢ 1,431,021,00078
L) BEZE—R"EF+=A=+—8
LHEE AMRBRTEEZEN2RFE 7
& R 1B B 18 /239,530,000 L (= &
— F4F : 238,478,0008 T ) c B E —
TE-RNE+-_A=+—BLEE ¥
ma N RBEEUG ERITREMER
EEZHNERLTERM(ZTE—REF
5,724,000 7T + EAME ¥ 5.3% ) (Fizk
7) e

ERBREEEEEARAR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE AR MY

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

ES =

NETZA=+HILEER)

18. BEZEWRKIA

2016 2015
b Bl — T HF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt F#ET FET
Trade receivables: B S W I
— Due from Hanergy Affiliates — RUCERERE B A F) (i) 3,913,807 2,596,781
— Due from third parties — EBRE=R (ii) 2,957,487 1,296,078
6,871,294 3,892,859
Less: Impairment of amounts due & - FEURE =738
from third parties A (57,930) (197,220)
6,813,364 3,695,639
Notes: Bt
(i)  Trade receivables from Hanergy Affiliates (i) FEWCEREEAANE
The balances are mainly related to contracts with EHRTERZEEHBEARZARA

Hanergy Affiliates, settled in accordance with the
terms of the respective contracts which are generally
from 3 to 10 days. The Group does not hold any

collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade

receivable balances. Based on the invoice date, the
ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables from

Hanergy Affiliates is as follows:

M RBEEEARZ

GREE - — R

ABE10H o AL B R 5t E FE WK
BRI ERRREMINRE
Efa e o AN S B R MOE BE B B 1Y B K
BREEZEASRZREDTAT

2016 2015

—E—REF —T—AF

HK$000 HK$°000

FET FAET

Within 3 months 3fEAR 1,394,950 247,705
3 to 6 months 3E61EA 54,146 236,740
6 months to 1 year 6EAZE1F 68,857 462,089
More than 1 year BB 1 F 2,395,854 1,650,247
3,913,807 2,596,781

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

Trade receivables from Hanergy Affiliates (continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables from
Hanergy Affiliates that are not individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

e s BE Bt BB

18. EZEWRIE (&)
Kiat - (&)

P& WOE e B I 2 R KR ()

A SRIA AP I AR A
18 1) $h =% % mmmazséz%%um

ZIRERDOHTIAT -

2016 2015

—EB—XF —ZT—hF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Neither past due nor impaired P 4 180 5 KORUE 1,394,950 7,751
Less than 3 months past due #8031 A - 239,954
3 to 6 months past due BEA3 = 618 A 54,146 639,534
6 months to 1 year past due BEGEAZE1F 68,857 1,709,542
More than 1 year past due BHERE 1 F 2,395,854 —
3,913,807 2,596,781

During this year, Hanergy Affiliates paid
HK$451,660,000 down payment of a construction
contract and repaid a total of HK$211,571,000 for the
previous construction contracts to the Group. The
Group issued certain payment request letters and legal
letters to Hanergy Affiliates requiring repayment of the
rest of the trade receivables and reserved rights to
take further legal actions against Hanergy Affiliates.

Trade receivables of HK$2,395,854,000 as at 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil) were past due for more
than 1 year. Trade receivables of HK$123,003,000
as at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$2,589,030,000)
were past due for less than 1 year. Subsequent to
31 December 2016 and up to 30 March 2017 (when
the financial statements were approved for issuance),
Hanergy Affiliates repaid HK$1,692,449,000 (translated
from RMB by using the exchange rate at the beginning
of March 2017) to the Group.

FR EEBBARAAKERE
£ & | X 14451,660,0007% 7t & 1
X I%M&ZE“AHEHQA
211,571,000 7T o A5 B [m))2 pEE B
NRIBEHE T EREHREME - 2K
Eiﬁﬁéﬂtf’i%ﬁ%f I8 IR R E
BEHE B N R REVE — PR BT 2
e

S

RZZE—R"F+=ZA=+—8 ' El
X J2,395,854,000/ (=T — R
FoE)DAHBE— ¢ N-E
—R"F+ZA=+—H ' BHEKK
18 123,003,000/ L(= T — & F :
2,589,030,0007% 7t ) E % H 2 R —
F -R_ZE—AR"F+-—A=+—H0%
rFrEE_T—+tHE=ZA=1+HHBR
REMETIEER)  EEBEQ R
| AN & E)5 8 1,692,449,000 7% Jt (3%
E—+F= AYIZERHARKH
H)o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(i)

Trade receivables from Hanergy Affiliates (continued)

Furthermore, pursuant to the relevant sales contracts,
the Group is entitled to claim Hanergy Affiliates
interest penalty on the overdue progress payments.
Interest penalty is calculated at 0.04% per day of the
overdue trade receivables. No interest penalty was
recognised due from Hanergy Affiliates for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$194,394,000).
The balance of interest penalty recorded in amount
due from Hanergy Holding that included in the other
receivables was HK$194,394,000 as at 31 December
2016 (2015: HK$194,394,000). Up to 30 March 2017
(when the financial statements were approved for
issuance), Hanergy Holding did not settle any of the
interest penalty of HK$194,394,000.

Trade receivables from third parties

a. Trade receivables from Shandong Macrolink

The balances are mainly related to contracts with
Shandong Macrolink, settled in accordance with
the terms of the contracts which is generally
from 3 to 7 days. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances.

Based on the invoice date, the ageing analysis of
the Group's net trade receivables from Shandong
Macrolink is as follows:

18. ESEWRIE (&)
Kiat - (&)

(i)

(if)

P& WOE e B I 2 R KR ()

Boh - BIEHBEHEEESR  A5EHEA
T Tk R HR 2 SR TE (AE REBE B A ) R
REB - S ENBHE S EKRKE
ZEH0M%TE - HEZT— X
F+-A=+—HILFE LERE
Yoz B ARl N BERITE(ZE
— A F 194,394,000 7L) c R=F
—NE+ZA=+—8 BUEEE
PR TEATER G M E B R EE (R A E Ath
JE W F T8 ) 5 194,394,000 (= Z
— 4 : 194,394,000 Tt ) - =
—E—tE=ZA=TH(PERERE
HEOEFIZEE B ) - EREE IR & R & 1
194,394,000 # L& B K EA B 5 o

FEWE=FE5HE

a. BRURMEHZEZHE

A& TRIA B I B L SR
BR - BRARREEE RS
BETR - AREAI AT HIE
& SR T B A T 4 2 Lt R 42
THERZY

BEZZEH  AEEEKLE
e
M :

BHHIBFRREKD

2016 2015

—EB—XF —ZT—hF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Within 3 months 3fEAA — =
3 to 6 months 3E61EA — =
6 months to 1 year 6IEAE14 1,599,964 995,194
More that 1 year HBiE1F 936,781 —
2,636,745 995,194
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

IAL STATEMENTS

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. B 5 BWRKE#)
Notes: (continued) HieE - (&)
(ii)  Trade receivables from third parties (continued) (i) EWE=FEZFEE)
Trade receivables from Shandong Macrolink a. ERFFERES5E(E)
(continued)
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables from UL R R 2 B S RB R
Shandong Macrolink that are not individually &£ gkt REHAE A D R E R
nor collectively considered to be impaired is as DT -
follows:
2016 2015
—RF —ZE—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET
Neither past due nor impaired 37 4% 380 B N R (B - =
Less than 3 months past due # AR A 31 A — —
3 to 6 months past due BEA3 = 618 A 980,186 332,697
6 months to 1 year past due mAGEAZE1F 619,778 662,597
More than 1 year past due BRI 1 936,781 —
2,536,745 995,194

During this year, Shandong Macrolink paid
HK$587,443,000 down payment of the
construction contract and repaid a total of
HK$59,032,000 to the Group. Subsequent to
31 December 2016 and up to 30 March 2017
(when the financial statements were approved
for issuance), Shandong Macrolink repaid
HK$734,685,000 (translated from RMB by using
the respective spot rates at the date of the
payments made) to the Group.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

EhE

RAFEE  IWRAEHHER
& Rm A& B 587,443,000
%ﬁ:"%ﬁﬁ%’&ﬁﬁ/—\#\
59,032,000 7T © IR =T — /X
F+=ZA=1+— HE{%&EI:
T—+FE=A=THEBRE
EAETEER) LR ER
) 7N 2 (8] {8 2 734,685,000 75 7T
(RNFBHzEERHEXR
ARBHBRHE) -
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NOTES

'FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 A B =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Trade receivables from third parties (continued)

Trade receivables from other third parties

The credit period is generally one month,

extending up to three months for major

customers. Based on the invoice date, the

ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables

from other third parties is as follows:

. ESERRIEE)

BWE=FESREE)

ERRME=LZEZHE

—RERERA—EA  EEXE
BREAZRE=-RBEAZERE
B RIERZ=RE  AE@EEK
HME=F 2 EHHRBZERD
WaF -

2016 2015

—E—XRF —E—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAET FET

Within 3 months 3EAR 66,549 22,556
3 to 6 months 3E6MEA 119,537 107,843
6 months to 1 year 6EA=1F 142,741 36,070
More than 1 year BiE 1 F 91,915 134,415
420,742 300,884

Less: Impairment R ORE (57,930) (197,220)
362,812 103,664

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables
from other third parties that are not individually
nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

KEHME=T 28 5 EEFKIR
(5 =% H 745 T2 R R A TR
B)ZREDMTAT

2016 2015

—E—-XE —E—AF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAET FET

Neither past due nor impaired 3 4% 380 HA s Rk (B 65,979 66,866
Less than 3 months past due BE LR 3E A 119,525 898
3 to 6 months past due BEASEAZ6EA 148,555 4,975
6 months to 1 year past due BEGEAR1HF 3,601 30,925
More than 1 year past due BHAEBA 1 F 25,152 —
362,812 103,664

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18.

Notes: (continued)
(ii)  Trade receivables from third parties (continued)

b. Trade receivables from other third parties
(continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

EZEWFEE#)
Kiat - (&)

(i) ERE=FEIREGE)
b. EURME=FHZEHZHEE)

N & B IE R E R w2 B a0
T

2016 2015

—E—REF —T—hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January n—A—H8 197,220 —
Impairment losses recognised B R EE 1R

(note 8) (K17t 8) 18,211 202,817

Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHE AR (125,150) —

Reversal of impairment (note 8) SRERE (H1:E8) (28,830) —

Exchange realignment DE S (3,521) (5,597)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 57,930 197,220

Included in the above provision for impairment
of trade receivables is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables of HK$57,930,000
(2015: HK$197,220,000) with a carrying amount
before provision of HK$57,930,000 (2015:
HK$197,220,000).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate
to customers that were in financial difficulties or
were in default in principal payments and none
of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a large number of diversified
customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

The directors of the Company considered that the fair
values of trade receivables are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because these amounts
have short maturity periods at their inception.

Fi B SR FIERERERE
B R 1B B 5 FE W 5k I8 1 &
57,930,000 (= ZE — A F :
197,220,000/ 70 ) * AR R A
B /Y BR @ & A 57,930,000 78 7T
(ZZ — A F : 197,220,000/
JL) °

18 B3R B 2 55 8 Y R R B T B B
BRI ER A RENETSH
7 BIEEE RER R FOET
AT iemE -

37 45 780 B Sl (B 2 JE IR IE BE K
EZTCERFPER  WEOIHYL
R RFCEE ©

BB HE R (E < R Y IR B %
HEIUEFP AR HERNAEE
ZRBR - BBERER AR
RAEERAR BN ERERETE
REREE  YRBEXRDA TR
e E - BUEAL % A RETT
IR -

H 7 FE M SRR B R 8RR ET N AR B B
B MARAEZTRLSZERRAZR
FEEEFEMELIBEEAEER -



NOTES

19. GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM

CONTRACT CUSTOMERS

The Group's gross amount due from customers for
contract work was related to contracts with Hanergy
Affiliates and Shandong Macrolink and construction of
solar power stations for certain small to medium-sized
enterprises (“SME"). The movement of gross amount
due from contract customers is as follows:

'FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 A B =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

19. ERERIEFAE

AEBRKREREFEEMERBE R
BIMILERFERURSE THIEE
(PP DERAGREERZARE
7o BIREREFARBEABMOT

2016 2015
—E-AF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET

At 1 January n—HA—H 2,930,836 3,278,508
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BEEAAGRKANE#E
profits less recognised losses R AR E iR E B 3,280,988 2,196,443
Progress billings HEERENRIE (4,196,857)  (2,092,041)
Exchange realignment PE 3 SR B (467,562) (452,074)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 1,547,405 2,930,836

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s gross amount
due from Hanergy Affiliates and Shandong Macrolink
for contract work were HK$745,928,000 (2015:
HK$2,031,902,000) and HK$796,204,000 (2015:
HK$898,934,000) respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

RZE—R"F+ZA=+—80" ' K&
EEBOR LR B A R R ILRITER 2
& [A T 12 4 58 5 7l /745,928,000 %
T(ZZ — A% :2,031,902,0005% 7T )
796,204,000 jo(= T — & F :
898,934,000/ 7T ) °
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IAL STATEMENTS

E?Jﬁ%#lﬁ% Bﬁ‘I

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 &Z —ZT—

20. OTHER RECEIVABLES

NE+—_A=+—BLEFE)

20. HEtEWFRIE

2016 2015
—E-XF T—hHEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other receivables: Hoh e Y 5RIE

— Due from the ultimate holding — FEHSZEi”W /NG|
company 194,820 194,820
— Due from Hanergy Affiliates — R E A A 2,621 6,015
— Due from third parties — EBWE=F 529,032 555,253
726,473 756,088
Less: Impairment O BB (22,923) (237,099)
703,550 518,989

The movements in provision for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

Hitb RUCR R E R ERZ BT ¢

2016 2015

it BV T T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January m—H—H 237,099 —

Impairment losses recognised (note 8) ERRBEBE(H7F8) — 247,454

Reversal during the year (note 8) FREE(HES) (110,188) =

Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RREAR (94,416) =

Exchange realignment b (9,572) (10,355)

At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 22,923 237,099
HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED R EREEEE AR AR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

20. OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. HtFEWFIE (#&)
The balances of other receivables due from the Hih RN R LIE IR RIFKIBLE 5% 0 =215
ultimate holding company represented the interest éHI&?&EﬁAIEE’\Ji@/HH%ﬂE ki)
penalty on the overdue progress payments of the FEI8FTHEE - WRIEABEHEESR - $%

contract work. As disclosed in note 18, pursuant to
the relevant sales contracts, the Group is entitled

BB A ERIERZREE B A )
BRIE - RN_E—REF+_A=+—

to claim Hanergy Affiliates interest penalty on the B e W 4R 12 % A B B M R UGk IR &
overdue progress payments. Interest penalty of oo B FE E1 B 194,394,0008 T(— =
HK$194,394,000 at a rate of 0.04% per day of the —AF : 194,394,000 7T) - m;*ziﬂﬁ;@
overdue trade receivables was included in other Z o RIWFIEREH0.04% BXFHE

receivables due from the ultimate holding company as
at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$194,394,000). Up to
30 March 2017 (the date of approval of the financial
statements), the ultimate holding company did not
settle any of the interest penalty of HK$194,394,000.

Included in the above provision for impairment
of other receivables is a provision for individually
impaired receivables of HK$22,923,000 (2015:
HK$237,099,000) with a carrying amount before
provision of HK$22,923,000 (2015: HK$237,099,000).

The individually impaired other receivables relate to
debtors that were in financial difficulties or were
in default in principal payments and none of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.

Except for those other receivables that are already
impaired and the interest penalty due from the
ultimate holding company, the financial assets
included in the above balance are related to
receivables for which there was no recent history of

default and with no fixed term of repayment.

The directors of the Company considered that the fair
values of other receivables are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because these amounts
have short maturity periods at their inception.

%zi_%é—ti:ﬂ:JrEl(ﬁt/ﬁEﬂ%
WMERER) AL RKRERAE WKL
<1 194,394,000 & 7T &1 B H AU (EARI 205

_b 2t b R R T R (B B A 4 B M R

(B FE YRR IRV HH Y B 8 22,923,000 78

JE(=ZF —F4F : 237,099,000/ 7T )

RARE AT A AR E{E 4 22,923,000 7T
— R : 237,099,000 7T) °

{51 768, 5 5L i B L0 5K T 5 o i B K OR) 86
SHERAERENEHAEH - BB
= PR EWFIEN A T U E -

B E TR B BY H fth FE U SR IR K B R 4R
ZRABINE RSN 0 Ll SRR B IR
F1 %5 B B BRI S 5T B3 HE R 40 8% 0 B WK
AR WEEEEEFHR -

BP0 EL At B W R TR B R R R AT IR AR A A
A MARREERRALFREZIA
FERHFAETESAZER -
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21. BILLS RECEIVABLE

At 31 December 2016, certain subsidiaries of the
Group endorsed certain bills receivable accepted by
banks in Mainland China to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the trade payables due to such
suppliers with a carrying amount in aggregate of
RMB41,170,000 (equivalent to HK$46,025,000).
Included in these bills receivables, RMB37,360,000
(equivalent to HK$41,766,000) of the bills receivables
have been derecognised (the "“Derecognised Bills”).
The Derecognised Bills had a maturity of five to
six months at the end of the reporting period. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills
have a right of recourse against the Group if the
PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”).
In the opinion of the directors, the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards
relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it
has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the
Derecognised Bills and the associated trade payables.
The maximum exposure to loss from the Group's
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and
the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying amounts.
In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the
Group's Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Bills are not significant.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
has not recognised any gain or loss on the date of
transfer of the Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses
were recognised from the Continuing Involvement,
both during the year or cumulatively.

As part of its normal business, certain subsidiaries
of the Group discounted certain bills receivable to
bank. The Group did not discount any bill receivables
to the bank for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: HK$107,904,000). In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards relating to the bills receivable
discounted to bank. Accordingly, it has derecognised
the full carrying amounts of the bills receivable that
discounted to bank. The maximum exposure to loss
from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
discounted bills and the undiscounted cash flows to
repurchase these discounted bills is equal to their
carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the
fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement
in the discounted bills are not significant. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no
discounted charges (2015: HK$4,000,000) recognised
since there was no discounting of bills receivables.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

21.

FE =
e X SR

R—ZE—AE+=-_A=+—H0 ' &&
BETHBRARAIMEE THE®RESE
AR ITEMNE TEKEE - E
NERZEHEENE S EMNRIE
BEE4AEAAREA41,170,000 T (HE
R 46,025,000 T ) ° 3% 5 =& E WK
HES - A AR37,360,0007T(EE
41,766,000/ 70 ) 2 ZHEEIKRGIEE T
RIEFER (TR IEEREE]) - RBEH
K BEEUHBRNZERAZ=/NEA R
H - RIBFFBEIZEE - WPBEZRTE
4 BEECHBRNER Z2FF ARG
HAEBEMERE([FEL2H]) - EF
RE AEEBEEBREEUEERNZE
B z@EAE s R & E R HEETUH
HREIBEEZNEZEE 2 2HEAER
EEEZEMNIE AEEFELXHEE
BUBRERNZIE L ERZECBUHER
NEBE 2 ABRBEREELEE &
ARBRHEENREETRE -EFR4 - K
SEFELHEIERRANER ZAF
ERIZ I NE

BE_ZT-—RF+-_A=+—HILF
B AEERERCEUREANZEEE
B SRR - RAFEABE
FAFFE 2 AR K RETHEREM B

EBHEEFEEEN—2D  AEEET
MEB AR AFEITEIES TRIKRER - K
EEPNEHEE—"E—RE+-A=1+—8
I\EFEIEAS G T L R1T 2 (TR R E
W skIgEEIR (== — R4 : 107,904,000
BIL) c BERA AEEEHEKE
BA BB KD R & B RE RS ER
17 BUERIEHERE MIEITRAEE 2 &
WEE 2 HEREE  AEEEERE
CDHBEEELEOCMIBEE 2 AR
BERELEEBZERARBRIEENERE
HE - EFERA AEEZELHEB
BEBRZAFET ALK - HE_Z—X

HEKEZE  TERARBRAS(Z
T —F 4 : 4,000,0007T) °
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IAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

22. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

22. BERFEANFIE

2016 2015

—E AT i

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

HaE FET FET

Deposits i 47,768 47,729
Prepayments paid to: BENFUTALZ

TR FRIE -

— Hanergy Affiliates — EREE B AR (i) 405,991 663,943

— Third parties —%=h 981,683 982,661

1,387,674 1,646,604

Less: impairment JB A (44,039) (6,225)

1,391,403 1,688,108

Included in the above assets, HK$1,100,740,000
(2015: HK$356,868,000) of the prepayments has
an ageing over 1 year, whereas all the remaining
deposits and prepayments have an ageing less than 1

year.

Except for those prepayments already impaired,
assets included in the above balance are related
to prepayments for certain uncompleted purchase
contracts which the Group is currently kept

ZEAREITEE

communicating with the suppliers for settlement of

these contracts.
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L EER B S —IEA1,100,740,000
#BL(=—Z — A4 : 356,868,000 JC )
WBE1FHEMNRE  ESRFfAEeR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

22. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)

Note:

(i)

The balances mainly represented the prepayments for
the purchase of photovoltaic (“PV"”) modules under
the master agreement signed with Hanergy Holding
on 11 April 2012. The master agreement is effective
for three years from 1 January 2012 to 31 December
2014. During 2013, the Company’'s subsidiaries
entered into several photovoltaic module purchase
subcontracts (“Subcontracts”) with Hanergy Affiliates,
nominees of Hanergy Holding, to purchase PV modules
with a total capacity of 677.9 MW for construction
of the downstream photovoltaic power generation
projects. According to the terms of the Subcontracts,
approximately 50% of the total contract amounts
have been paid by the Company’s subsidiaries on the
placement of the orders in 2013. As of 31 December
2013, a total of 58.5 MW PV modules have been
delivered by Hanergy Affiliates.

The delay of delivery of the PV modules was mainly
due to the production arrangement by Hanergy
Affiliates, which has caused the delay in the
construction of the photovoltaic power generation
projects by the Group. Accordingly, the Group reached
mutual agreement with Hanergy Affiliates to return
the prepayments of HK$1,262,629,000 before 31
December 2014 in relation to a total capacity of 459.4
MW PV modules and terminate these Subcontracts
simultaneously.

During 2014, the Company's subsidiaries also entered
into several new PV module purchase subcontracts
with Hanergy Affiliates to purchase PV modules
with a total capacity of 558 MW for construction
of the downstream photovoltaic power generation
projects. According to the terms of the Subcontracts,
approximately 50% of the total contract amounts
have been paid by the Company’s subsidiaries on the
placement of the orders in 2014.

A total of 28.8 MW PV modules have been delivered
by Hanergy Affiliates in 2014. As of 31 December
2014, the total capacity of 689.2 MW PV modules
have not been delivered by Hanergy Affiliates.

20.

BERFENREE)

Hat

(i)

HEHRIERER=Z——FMA+—H
BRI ERE B E  BEAK
RTAEKRDEF IS ZBAHE -
BHENR—_TE——F—A—HEZZ
—OFE+=—A=+—HHMEKR - ©
—T—=F ARRIZKBAREE
BEEE B AT EREIERZRIEA 0 ]
2B AN Rt N =R AN
W&l REZTHEXREZEEBE
ANMEERE B 677.9MW 2 IR - 1R
BH B EGER - ARRZHBAR
ERZE—=F FEERIHER
BMETEHB0%  c R-_TB—=F+_A
=+—H ZEBEBEARERNER
A58 BMW Z AR ©

IE 18 A H AR A1 = 2R A2 BE B
BRAAZAETHBHAEERERX
REEEBEBMERME - At - &
CECDHEEABBARERE S W
AR =_ZE—HmNF+=—A=+—8
AR B TE {5 FRER 4B EE B A 459.4AMW By
AR FERA R K18 1,262,629,000 7
TC ¢ A R AR 1 b S BT B ek o

ZE—OF  ARAElZ B A FEE
G NI VA B R v |
GEENBHE UBELERLS
558MW I IRAR 14 - RIS’ Tt
REEEE - REZSHNBIHEZIE
FARARZHBARIER =-Z—NO
FREERINFERESELE0% °

R-ZE—MER  EZREBEBAARDR
fFERE££28.8MW Z S IRAB 1 1 =
T—NFE+—A=+—H  ZEHB
A B M AR R EBE689.2MW Z St KR
o
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

22. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)

Note: (continued)

(i)

(continued)

The Company and Hanergy Holding entered into
a PV module supply agreement on 30 April 2015
for purchase of PV modules for the year ended 31
December 2015.

On 20 January 2015, the Company entered into a
supplemental agreement to the 150 MW PV modules
supply contract signed on 23 December 2013 with
Hanergy Holding on the settlement of the prepayments
made in 2013 by offsetting this with the payables of
delivered PV modules under the 150MW PV modules
supply contract, and the original total capacity of 150
MW was reduced to 80.9MW.

During 2015, the Company’'s subsidiaries entered
into several new Subcontracts with Hanergy Affiliates
under the PV modules supply agreement to purchase
PV modules with a total capacity of 57.7 MW for
construction of the downstream photovoltaic power
generation projects. According to the terms of the
Subcontracts, approximately 50% of the total contract
sum have been paid by the Company’s subsidiaries on
the placement of the orders in 2015.

A total of 315 MW PV modules have been delivered
by Hanergy Affiliates in the year 2015. As of 31
December 2015, a total capacity of 362.8 MW
PV modules have not been delivered by Hanergy
Affiliates.

During 2016, the Company signed certain new
purchase orders with Hanergy Affiliates for a total
capacity of 1.2 MW PV modules. A total capacity
of 136.0 MW PV modules have been delivered by
Hanergy Affiliates in 2016. As at 31 December 2016, a
total capacity of 228.0 MW PV modules have not been
delivered by Hanergy Affiliates.

BERFENREE)

Hiet : (&

(i)

()

R-Z-—AFMA=1+H AAFHE
ERERRREBEE—E—AF+ A
=t BUEFEBERAMFTIL
KM RE 17 o o

RZZTE—AF—HA=+H ' KAQF
MEERAERN-_Z—=4+_7
—+=H3FT3ZH 150MW YA 28 14 £ e
ERFNERBE  BER=ZT—=
FEVEH R TERZRIE LA 150MW SR 4B 14
HEE R TE R RA R EMK
B RAETESE 150MW IR E FERE
7 80.9MW

R-ZE—RF  ARFAMBEARXIR
RO IRAB M B i ELZ BE B B 2 7
RN Z M FTHTE s - BB RERE
RE7IMWE S R B ER
TN NEEBIER - RIBZZWN B
BZIER ARABZHMBARER —
T-AFTEIERNERSED
50% °

REZT—AF  ZEHBARIERN
EfHEIIBMW2Z K REH - RZF
—hE+-RA=+—8 E&EBEA
Al AR ERES ££362.8MW 2 1R
ERE

RZF—XF AR A EEEH B
RRAGINETHHBITE BER
EfRABI1I2MWZ X KEMH - RZF
—AF o OEEBBARERMERS
136.0MW Z Y IRMBH « R=—ZT—RF
+-A=1+—8 Z&EBMBAF LK
ZATEEBEA £ 228.0MW 2 S R4 -

X
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NOTES
B RE R AR

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

RESTRICTED CASH

=—F

"FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

NETZA=+ HILEER)

23. gﬁ&iﬁﬁ%ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬁ

2016 2015

t- Bl T [

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Cash and bank balances e MRTTET 248,674 447,826
Restricted cash ZRHIE e 38,057 218,509
Less: Restricted cash o ZREES (38,057) (218,509)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBCEEY 248,674 447,826

The breakdown of cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash by denominated currency as at 31

December 2016 is as follow:

RZZT—X"F+ZA=+—08 " &iE
BN 2R B EBYRZRE
REeEZAEIT :

2016 2015
=l — < iF
(HK$ equivalent) HK$’000 HK$'000
(FBERETT) FET FET
Cash and bank balances ARE| S E 2
denominated in: BE RIRITHETF
RMB AR 123,895 188,977
Usb =TT 104,112 142,732
HKD BT 12,292 70,642
EUR Br7& 5,238 33,262
GBP HEE 917 5,403
Others Hib 2,220 6,810
Total 4% 248,674 447,826
Restricted cash denominated in: ATHEEFEZXBEHIRE
RMB AR 23,859 191,187
Usb =TT 14,198 27,322
Total 4R=E 38,057 218,509

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 3 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

)

24,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents and the restricted cash of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to HK$147,754,000
(2015: HK$380,164,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks that are authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
to three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and restricted cash are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

23. RERBEESEYRZRHR

cAC )

RBEBRR AEBUAARB BB
LR RBASEFEEYERIRHNE
#147,754,000% (= T — A F:
380,164,000 7T) - AR BH K
BMAEMER - Ah - BRIBPEAH
INEE RGO R EEETERTE  A5E
B B R R T INE 2275 2 8R1T
AR HBRABEMEY o

RITRERET B RITERNERFE
¥ BEREVN S - 2 HE BTE R AR
H—HE=EALTE  RTEAEEZA
RIS HBRME - WIREEHEMER
BEREIAME - RITEFAZRHIRS
FRRNEERFEEIRAERILE R
T °

24. BEZREEENRE

2016 2015
S al — = &F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade and bills payables due to: BRFATALTZES R
SREMFHE
— Related parties — BB AT 409,469 235,223
— Third parties —EH=%0 886,161 875,604
1,295,630 1,110,827
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)  24.

Based on the invoice date, the ageing analysis of the
Group’s trade and bills payables is as follows:

ESREBENSFRIEE)
BERZAH AEEE S RIEEN

0 — 30 days 0—30 H
31 — 60 days 31— 60 H
61 — 90 days 61— 90 H
Over 90 days 90 HM

I Z R DT ¢
2016 2015
ZE—ARF kg
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FETT
372,940 222,423
53,963 94,328
73,741 177,637
794,986 616,439

1,295,630 1,110,827

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and the FERE 5 RIEIW A B - — =B HER
credit terms are normally 60 days. /A60H °
25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. Hit BN RIAREE A
2016 2015
L T —0fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 FHET FET
Deposits b e 6,238 5,000
Other payables due to: FERS T AT AT 2 EHAtb
JEAS KA -
— The ultimate holding company  — FARIERL A 7] (i) 3,931 417
— The immediate holding — BEEERAF
company (ii) 16,853 16,853
— Hanergy Affiliates — ERBBE AT (iii) 81,765 78,156
— Third parties —$=5 984,685 704,244
Sub-total NEF 1,087,234 799,670
Advances from customers BRI (iv) 698,705 535,661
Accruals fEZtE H (v) 289,564 266,592
Provision for warranties RERE (vi) 26,762 —

2,108,503 1,606,923
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B A SRR MY R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Payables to the ultimate holding company represent
the advances from Hanergy Holding to the Group
for the daily operation purpose. The balances are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Payables to the immediate holding company represent
the advances from Hanergy Investment to the Group
for the daily operation purpose. The balances are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The balance included the advances of HK$39,705,000
(2015: HK$59,149,000) from Hanergy Affiliates to
the Group for the daily operation purpose, and the
balance of HK$42,060,000 (2015: HK$19,007,000)
payable to Sichuan Hanergy Photovoltaic Limited
(“Sichuan Hanergy”), Hanergy Holding's affiliate,
relating to rental of a production line, office premises,
factory premises and staff dormitory, and the usage
of relevant equipment, material and facilities, etc.
The above balances are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The balance included the advances of HK$326,717,000
(2015: HK$269,283,000) from distributors to the Group
to buy the household rooftop power stations and
photovoltaic application products.

The balance included an amount of HK$43,930,000
(2015: HK$22,228,000) which represented the
maximum expense which the Group would be charged
on certain current lawsuits.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

IAL STATEMENTS

25. HitENFIER BT &M @)

Hiat

() R BEEIRA R 2 ROREE AR
BB HEER AN T AKE 2 AR
Ho REEBAREN  £ERNE
KIS -

(i) EEEER AR Z5KIEEHanergy
Investment gt B & &8 B 09 T A&
B2HEMNRE ZEEBRAERT
REBRNERFFENR

(i) HHBEEEBMBEARNAEEER
5 T A & B 2 T8+ 5078 39,705,000
% m(= & — & £ :59,149,000%
) R EREER MRS
T RSP N 8 T8 % LA R AERR
8~ MR R R S AE R AR 2 T
ARMIEEXRER DA DINE
Bt 1) R 2 #45X 42,060,000 BT (=&
—F 4 : 19,007,000 7T) o Fult &gk
REEA - RERNELEER °

(iv) 2 587 M 7K & B 78 1 2 326,717,000
B L(=Z T — A F : 269,283,000
TL)  LEBEFPRRIEE R HARE
mZ A e

(v) HEREEAEERRMEAFARE

EEY 2 &= ©%543,930,000/8 7T
“Z—F :22,228,000/87T) °
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IAL STATEMENTS
Eﬂ%#ﬁ%@ B &t

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. HitENREBERETER 2
(continued)
Notes: (continued) HieE - (&)
(vi)  Provision for warranties (i) REEE
Product
warranties
EmRE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2016 RZT—A~"F—HA—H —
Provided during the year FRR M 37,188
Amounts utilised during the year FREFEASRE (9,544)
Exchange realignment PE I % (882)
At 31 December 2016 R-BE—RE+-_A=+—H 26,762
Portion classified as current liabilities HAERBBESS 26,762
Non-current portion ERBN DD -

The Group provides three to ten years warranties to
its customers on certain of its photovoltaic modules,
inverter and rooftop power stations, under which
faulty products are repaired or replaced. The amount
of the provision for the warranties is estimated based
on sales volumes and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed
on an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying
amounts of other payables and accruals are
considered to be a reasonable approximation of their
fair values. Save for those disclosed above, other
payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are
normally has no fixed term of settlement.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

REFEGETHRAM - ERBRE
BEREHRHE=Z=+FRE Bt E
MANARE A PR E o RE
BEzeBDREERBEEER
REKFZRBEHBELE - Bt EET)
EHRT - WEEE B MEK -

PRESEARE  FitEMmENREAER
B ERZEAERGESEATEZA
BB - B DTSN - E AR R
REABRRTHE  LEBETHES
fR -
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Eﬂ%#ﬁ% Bﬁ‘I

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. $R{T R EH Ak B2 &%k

BORROWINGS
31 December 2016 31 December 2015

ZE-AETZRZT-R S el

Effective Effective

interest interest

rate (%) Maturity — HKS'000 rate l% Maturity — HK$000

Notes RS L -
Kt (%) U4 741 (%) 348 FET
Current; 8 .
Bank overdrats — unsecured HER — EAR - On demand - — On demand 156
) RRER EEER

Bank loans — quaranteed and secured /783 — EAARER (o 8511 017 55,897 85 2016 59,682
Bank loans — secured FE — AR (b) - - - 124 016 1483
Interestbearing other borrowings Rl
Related parties — unsecured ey — &R 56 017 20 56 2016 209
Related parties — unsecured iy — BER 3 017 1,551 = = =
A Third party — unsecured £ — &R 5 W7 55883 - - -
A Third party — unsecured £ — &4 2 017 42
Current portion of longiterm borrowings & & &3 &R
Bank loans — guaranteed B - DER (c) 5% above PBOC 017 5,031 5% above PBOC 2016 10,743

benchmark Iendm% rate benchmark lendin g
ATEEEHE LE NTEERRHE L
5% 5%

Bank loans — quaranteed and secured /75 — EEBRER - - 25% above PROC 2016 4573

benchmerk lending rate

) NTEERAE ¥ 25%
Related parties — unsecured BEn-ais 3 w7 739 3 e 73
Related parties — unsecured Bin-g6R 3 07 26769 = = =
Tota ait 465,880 279,385

Non-current; 8

Bank loans — quaranteed Rl — Bk (o B%above PROC 20182009 107,768 B above PBOC 20172009 112,154

benchmark Iendm%rate benchmark lending rate

NTREEZH X JZ/% NTEEE %;

0

Bank loans — quarenteed and secured ~ §/7ET — BEARER - -

25% above PBOC ~ 2017-2025 35,294
benchmark lending rate

MTERESHE L

2%
Interest-earing other borrowings HRAES

Related parties — unsecured By — 2R 3 W18 14607 3 08 137,889
Relaed partes — unsecured BB —2oA - - - 3 0 w04
A Third party — quaranteed F27 - BER (o PBOC benchmark 222 33300 PBOC henchmark 02 368089

, lending rete Iendmg rate

MNIEEEGHZ NTERERHE

584,755 903,573
Total Gl 1,050,635 1,182,958
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IAL STATEMENTS
BATS 3R R M -

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. ST R EMKM B & (2)

BORROWINGS (continued)

2016 2015
—B-RF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
Analysed into: V=
Bank loans and overdrafts ERTEERES
repayable:
Within one year or on demand —FRRIREKERER 60,928 199,789
In the second year E-FR 5,590 12,831
In the third to fifth years, E=ZERFN(EEMEREEA)
inclusive 14,533 25,662
Beyond five years BBAF 87,645 108,955
168,696 347,237
Other borrowings repayable: Hfth FEHE X :
Within one year —FRN 404,952 79,596
In the second year F_FERN 141,607 260,147
In the third to fifth years, F-ZFERFN(BEMEBEEAN)
inclusive — 137,889
Beyond five years BAAF 335,380 358,089
881,939 835,721
Total &t 1,050,635 1,182,958
HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED B EREEEEER AT



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 3 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

26.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The loan matured on 30 June 2016. Guarantee from
Hanergy Holding did not release upon maturity. The
borrower, Apollo Precision (Fujian) Ltd, a subsidiary
of the Company, did not repay the loan as contracted
on 30 June 2016. An interest penalty thus incurred
and was calculated at an annual rate of 30% above
the contracted interest rate. On 2 September 2016,
RMB42,000,000 (be equivalent to HK$46,954,000) of
the aforementioned loan was renewed at an annual
rate of 8.5% with maturity to September 2017 and
guaranteed by Hanergy Holding. The remaining balance
of RMB8,000,000 (be equivalent to HK$8,943,000)
was still unpaid bearing the interest penalty as at 31
December 2016.

The bank borrowings are secured by the pledged
deposit of HK$112,173,000 (be equivalent to
RMB100,340,000) held by Apollo Precision (Fujian) Ltd
("Fujian Apollo”), a subsidiary of the Company.

The bank borrowings and other borrowings are
guaranteed by Hanergy Holding.

The bank borrowings are guaranteed by Hanergy
Holding, Hanergy (Guangdong) New Energy Investment
Co., Ltd, (a subsidiary of the Company) and Mr.
Li Hejun (ex-Chairman of the Company). The bank
borrowings are secured by:

(i) All of the accounts receivable from FAW-
Volkswagen 10MW photovoltaic electricity
generation project;

(i) All the Hanergy (Foshan) New Energy Investment
Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of the Company)’'s stock
rights and other derived rights held by Hanergy
(Guangdong) New Energy Investment Co., Ltd.

All guarantee and security of the borrowings were
released when the borrower, Foshan Clean Energy
New Energy Co., Ltd. was sold by the Company in

October 2016.

NETZA=+HILEER)

HiaE -

(a)

26. RITREAMHEERE)

TR - RZE—X"FAA=1+8"
BRI ERABGIE T REHR DA (K
/Wzm% T)Iﬂhziﬁm BE
b S = i Eh:zi@m”
5)][130%2@?‘ —v—n+ °© EA_g_/\
FARAZRH LEZFHEARE
42,000,000 7T (% {8 46,954,000 78 7T )
AERRQE%EFTEER -T—+F
JLREIER - WA EREIERRER - Hif
A R ¥8,000,0007t(5 88,943,000
BI)DAEE RZZ—XREFE+=A
_+ El/,\gKgﬁing °

fET"MEiTAEEZJS jZWEQﬂ%E%Q
ETREAER AR ([EENAR]DF
B2 BEEIPFER112,173,000% T (&
E AR 100,340,000 7T ) AT 48 o

4\

HRIT 5 50 B H At A8 SR E R R
PEix -

RITENE RERIER - AR A2 M
BRAREREEFEREEBRERR
A A R AKX B B E N A S AR
HIER o ZIRTTHEF A AT PR

(i)  FIAE—AKXKZRIOMW K KEE
I8 B 2 EUGRIE

(i) PIAGLBRIMEREERER
RE(ARBEZMBRA)Z

Rt 28 N B RO BEHTRE IR T
REGRARFA 2 HMOTERE

Z5 o
mm

ZEERZEBERRERERAR
AE_T-R"FTHREBRTHL
BIRFTEEREBIREFR AR -
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PSR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

ES

AL STATEMENTS

RNETZA=+—BILFE)

27. DEFERRED TAX 27. IREHIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets FRNELEHEABREEZEBNOT -
during the year are as follows:
Unrealised
Recognition ~profit or loss
of differences ~ on intra-group Fair value
on revenue of transfer adjustment Other
construction ~ of assetsor ~on business  Withholding temporary
contracts transactions  combination Tax Accruals differences Total
LIS H
BIER  EIREZ EEGMz
ARWAZE  AEBEE  LUEEE 2 EHER  EpEREE aif
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT 7AT FAT
1 January 2015 “%-15-f-R 3914 7% L9e  (540089) 1254 N4 U
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the ~ FARNEAREMZTARER
statement of profitor loss and other 3t/ (H1ik) ZENEHE
comprehensive income during the ~~ (##9)
year (note 9) (12,403 (738) 21,906 136,761 (40,890) (30,488 74148
Exchange realignment EfE 134 - - (5,723) (374) = (5,963)
At 31 December 2015 and R-E-RE-A=1-AR
1 January 2016 “5-3E--H (8,355 = = (409,051) = = (417,400)
Deferred ta credited to profitor loss ~ EARERTA 2 ELHE
during the year (note 9 (hi9) 8,187 = = 8,194 = = 16,381
Exchange realignment Ejige 168 - - (363 - - (195]
At 31 December 2016 KRB 1ZA=1-H - - = (401,20 = - (401,220
HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED R EREEEE AR AR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 27. EEFIE &)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of
the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial
reporting purposes:

REJZBENME BETECHREEE
RBBERMBARKAEHE - AT R
RHBE2ERENME  AEERELTHE
RBERZ O

2016 2015
- LA T — A F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEITL
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised R4R& RN RIER
in the consolidated statement of FIRLERIAB G
financial position (401,220) (417,406)

The Group has tax losses of HK$5,953,729,000 (2015:
HK$3,964,138,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose, subject to the rules of the tax
jurisdictions in which the Group operates. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
HK$5,953,729,000 (2015: HK$3,964,138,000) as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

Included in the unrecognised tax losses,
HK$5,953,729,000 (2015: HK$3,964,138,000) will
expire at various dates from 2017 to 2022, if unused.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised on
the Group's deductible temporary differences of
HK$10,315,948,000 as of 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$11,175,847,000) as it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised in
the foreseeable future.

AN &R B 2 7715 518 5,953,729,000 7 JT

—F— R4 :3,964,138,00078 7T ) A
AR BAE & FTE R % Rl AR 2 25 8
ZHEBET - AUEEELEBIEZARZ
RRERTRA - ARZEEEHEE
B—BEBZNBAREL WS
7RI BB FE AR Bl s A AT PR R 35 AR 75
E518 - 3P £ $E 7% 5,953,729,000 7 7T
— T —F 4 :3,964,138,000/8 7T ) tE
RIEERIAE E ©

AREBRBR 2B EEBFR B
5,953,729,000/% n(= & — A F -
3,964,138,000 8 70) BAKREN A + BIAGH
T FEE - —FEW e

HR R AR BRI AT REH ER R
FMUBAEREZSE  YERAEENZ
T-XNE+-_A=+—BzZAHFHE
BF %= %810,315,948,000/8 L (—E—H
4 :11,175,847,000% 7t ) ¥ R IE {E i
BEE -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. BRA
(a) Shares (a) BB
2016 2015
- Bl T [
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: VAR ¢
64,000,000,000 (2015: 64,000,000,000 A%
64,000,000,000) ordinary shares (ZZE—H%F:
of HK$0.0025 each 64,000,000,000 %) &
[& & 0.0025 8L 2 &
AR 160,000 160,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETREE -
41,859,051,000 (2015: 41,859,051,000 %
41,747,101,000) ordinary shares (ZBE—RF:
of HK$0.0025 each 41,747,101,000 %)
FARMEE 0.0025 57T
2 BB 104,647 104,367

226
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AL STATEMENTS
501 55 i 2 P

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 28. BRA&(4#)
(a) Shares (continued) (a) BRB(E)
A summary of the transactions during the year FAZRSHEEWNT :
is as follow:
Number of Share
shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
BRTRGHE BRIRE R EER ag
'000 shares HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET FET FET
At 31 December 2014 and RE-ME+-A=+-AR
1 January 2015 “5-1%-f-H 41,633,609 104,084 11,417,583 11,521,667
Repurchase of own shares BEATRH (33,724) (84) (243,063 (243,147)

Exercise of share options (note 29) fIfeEmE Hit29)

— Share options granted to the — R AEEERREREL
consultants and the management BREW 2 290)
of the Group (note 29(b)) 11,970 30 13,230 13,260
— Other Options |1 (note 29(c)() — BRI (H7 2900)0) 86,779 216 14,023 14,439
— Other Options |1l (note 29(c)(ii) — EMERREN (H2290)) 48,467 121 11,995 12,116
147,216 367 39,448 39,815
Transfer from share option reserve ERRERERR
(note 30(iv) (Wit 300v) = = 3,696 3,696
Sub-total NG 147,216 367 43,144 43,511
At 31 December 2015 RZE-R%+-A=t-H 41,747,101 104,367 11,217,664 11,322,031

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 B NEER 227



228

PSR MR

L STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

28. BRA(#)

Shares (continued) (a) BRB(E)
Number of Share
shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
EELEE BRIRA RiyaEE 4%
000 shares HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% AT AT AT
At 31 December 2015 and R-E-15+-A=1-BR
1 January 2016 “%-#-f-H 41,747,101 104,367 11,217,664 11,322,031
Exercise of share options (note 29) EBRE29)
— Share options granted to the — RIREEBRREREL
consultants and the management BRE W 290))
of the Group (note 29(b)) 41,800 105 6,851 6,956
— Other Option Il (note 29(c(i) — HAERIEN (2 290)) 70,120 175 11,493 11,668
— Other Option Il (note 29(c)(i) — EWERE I (K 290)) 30 = 7 7
111,950 280 18,351 18,631
Transfer from share option reserve EREERERR
(note 30iv)) (B 300) - - 8,606 8,606
Sub-total gt 111,950 280 26,957 21,037
At 31 December 2016 RZF—ETZA=1-R 41,859,051 104,647 11,244,621 11,349,268
HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED R EREEEE AR AR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

Subscription rights

On 20 May 2010, Fujian Apollo, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
Hanergy Holding entered into a sales contract
("2010 Sales Contract”) pursuant to which Fujian
Apollo agreed to sell, and Hanergy Holding
agreed to purchase the turnkey equipment, tools
and machinery of solar photovoltaic modules
production system with annual production
capacity of 3,000 MW to be delivered in three
batches for a total contract sum of US$2.55
billion. On the same date, the Company
entered into a subscription agreement (“2010
Subscription Agreement”) with Hanergy Holding.
According to the 2010 Subscription Agreement,
subject to the fulfilment or waiver of the
conditions set out in the 2010 Subscription
Agreement, Hanergy Holding is entitled to
subscribe for an aggregate of 4,911,528,960
shares of the Company, in three tranches,
namely the first batch of 1,964,611,584 shares,
the second batch of 1,473,458,688 shares
and the third batch of 1,473,458,688 shares.
The subscription price is HK$0.239 per share.
Pursuant to the supplemental agreement
entered into on 18 September 2011, the
exercise price for the second batch and the third
batch of the 2010 Subscription Agreement was
revised to HK$0.12 per share and HK$0.1 per
share, respectively. The exercise period of the
2010 Subscription Agreement was in following
manner:

28. RA& (&)

(b)

RIEE

R-ZEBE—ZTFRA_F+H - &
(A RElzEE2ENBRR)
HZREIERFTVHEHEAR(ZZ
—ZTFHEEESR]) F Bt B
MEERELEMEEIZERERE
BAFEBERS3,000MW Z K
PR X REGEERRZBER
> TARKSE  #5=H#R(T
BEREHEE265EBET > KA
B - AR A EZ AT IRET R E
HZ(ZZ—ZTFREHE] - R
BT -—ZFREHE £=F
— T FERE R PTE AR ERK K
EEHG  ZEEEEBRBES IR
B84 #£4,911,528,960 B A A A f%
1+ BNEE—Ht1,964,611,684 %
55 —#t1,473,458,688 % I 55 = #it
1,473,458,688% - RIEEAEK
0.23987L - RER=ZFT——F N1
R+ NBRIZ 2 @7z =5 —
TEREWBIF_MURE=M
TEED B RER0.128 T
FERONBIL s —E—ZFRE
a2 ITEAIT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b) Subscription rights (continued)

Exercise periods

28. BRA (%)
(b) REBREE
Number of
rights
1T1EHA REEHA

On the third business day after the
payment by Hanergy Holding in
respect of the 2010 Sales Contract
received by Fujian Apollo to be not
less than HK$3.3 billion

On the third business day after i) the
payment by Hanergy Holding in
respect of the 2010 Sales Contract
received by Fujian Apollo to be not
less than HK$5 billion and ii) the
down payment of not less than 8%
of the consideration of the second
batch production lines in respect of
the 2010 Sales Contract, or upon
Hanergy Holding having an irrevocable
undertaking to pay within 24 months
from the date to complete such batch

On the third business day after i) the
payment by Hanergy Holding in
respect of the 2010 Sales Contract
received by Fujian Apollo to be not
less than HK$6 billion and ii) the
down payment of not less than 8%
of the consideration of the third
batch production lines in respect of
the 2010 Sales Contract, or upon
Hanergy Holding having an irrevocable
undertaking to pay within 24 months
from the date to complete such batch

BEAGKBE IR — T —
TEHESRXN PR3
BETRFE=ELXA

1,964,611,584
i) B W EE IR A B =

T -TFHESRI NI IR

5084 Ri)pE=E—F
FHEGRINTLREH

EEBRRES% ZHEIEATE

NES » S ZE AR T AT

5] b G 18 P sz B SE K B AR R

24 A A& RIBERE

=EE%ER

1,473,458,688
) B REEEIEIR I ==
—ZEEHESRZNTIR

60EETL: Rl —F
FHESRINTPRE=SH
HERARE’% 2R IEIEATE

NE® « SEBLIERT AT

5] i 7 55 18 TR RZ L 52K B R #E

24 B A AN ZAKIBIES

= Bl =]

1,473,458,688

4,911,528,960




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

Subscription rights (continued)

On 18 September 2011,
Hanergy Holding entered into a sales contract

Fujian Apollo and

(“2011 Sales Contract”) in relation to, among
others, the sale of the turnkey equipment, tools
and machinery of solar PV modules production
system with annual production capacity of 7,000
MW to be delivered in three batches and the
provisions of the technical and engineering
support, training services and the grant of a
software licence in relation to the equipments
by Fujian Apollo to Hanergy Holding, for an
aggregate consideration of US$5.95 billion.
On the same date, the Company entered into
a subscription agreement (“2011 Subscription
Agreement”) with Hanergy Holding. According
to the 2011 Subscription Agreement, subject
to the fulfilment or waiver of the conditions
set out in the 2011 Subscription Agreement,
Hanergy Holding is entitled to subscribe for, in
three tranches, an aggregate of 18,000,000,000
shares of the Company at the subscription price
of HK$0.1 per share. The exercise period of the
2011 Subscription Agreement was in following
manner:

NETZA=+HILEER)

28. RA& (&)
(b) REEHE(E)
R-ZZB——FNA+TN\B - BEH
[ BRG] L HE AR ([ =F
——FHEAR])  REAR(H

BIE)HE FEBERR7,000
MW 2 KBZRER KRB EERH
CEELRE TARKSE #5=
B - LA RABESARG MIZREIE AR
REEARBE R R IREZER
% - B R R B R
BRERBI5EEIT - KRAEAH -

RN B) B2 RE A I BT 3 AR B 1 =

([ZZE——FREWHE] - BE
—T—FRERE FT——
FREHZEFTHIGFEM K ER

R EREREESSHRESH

18 000,000,000 & A& 2~ A fg 17
REBAESROIABT —_FB——
REHZEEFIE2ITHEHAT :
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 28. BRA (%)
(b) Subscription rights (continued) (b) REBREE
Number of
rights
Exercise periods 1T{EHA REEHA
Within one year after the cumulative BEMAGWE =T ——F 55

consideration in respect of the
2011 Sales Contract received by
Fujian Apollo to be not less than
HK$1,800,000,000

EERZEFTRERTLR
1,800,000,000 % T2 —F W

6,000,000,000

Within one year after the cumulative BEAGWE — T —— &5

consideration in respect of the
2011 Sales Contract received by
Fujian Apollo to be not less than
HK$3,600,000,000

EARZEFHRETLR
3,600,000,000 /87012 —F K

6,000,000,000

Within one year after the cumulative BEAGWE —F——FH

consideration in respect of the
2011 Sales Contract received by
Fujian Apollo to be not less than
HK$6,300,000,000

EERZEFTHRETLR
6,300,000,000 /87012 —F K

6,000,000,000

18,000,000,000

On 28 September 2011, the Company and
Hanergy Holding entered into a subscription
agreement (“Incentive Agreement”), pursuant to
which Hanergy Holding is entitled to subscribe
for 3 billion shares of the Company at the
subscription price of HK$0.10 per share, upon
the fulfilment of the conditions precedent
under the Incentive Agreement, among others,
the completion of subscription for all three
batches of the 2011 Subscription Agreement
by 31 October 2013. On 31 October 2013, the
Company and Hanergy Holding entered into
supplemental agreement to extend the expiry
date from 31 October 2013 to 31 October 2014.

RZZE—FNA=ZTNB ' AR
A ELE A R AR T 7 R 17k ([ 428D
WaEl) - Bt - FEEEIHEZ LR
(AP aiER—_2—=F1+A
=t+—HAIER =T ——FREW
BZETAZBLRE)ERE B
ER AR ER0.108 T 2 RE
EREBIOERARARMD - R
T—=F+A=+—8  ARFHE
ERETEIRET R T ek ¢ LAHS B ED
BE=-T—=F+A=1+—HBE&#%
EZT—MNFEF+HA=+—H-



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE—=

28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

Subscription rights (continued)

On 28 December 2012, the ordinary resolution
approving the Whitewash Waiver was duly
passed by the independent shareholders of the
Company. From that date, all the pre-conditions
of the 2010 Subscription Agreement and 2011
Subscription Agreement have been substantially
met except the obtaining by the Company of
the written consent from all the bondholders
of the convertible bonds issued in 2009
("Convertible Bonds") to waive any adjustment
to the conversion price pursuant to the
provisions of the Convertible Bonds caused by
the transactions contemplated under the 2010
Subscription Agreement and 2011 Subscription
Agreement (“Convertible Bondholders’ Waiver”).

On 27 February 2013, pursuant to the obtaining
of the Convertible Bondholders’ Waiver and
the cumulative payment received by Fujian
Apollo over HK$3.3 billion and HK$1.8 billion
in respect of the 2010 Sales Contract and
the 2011 Sales Contract, respectively, the
Company completed the issue and allotment of
the first tranche subscription of 1,964,611,584
shares of the 2010 Subscription Agreement
("2010 First Subscription”) and the first
tranche subscription of 6,000,000,000 shares
of the 2011 Subscription Agreement (“2011
First Subscription”) to Hanergy Investment, a
company wholly-owned by Hanergy Holding, at
the subscription price of HK$0.239 per share
and HK$0.1 per share, respectively.

On 24 September 2013, pursuant to the
obtaining of the Convertible Bondholders’ Waiver
and the cumulative payment received by Fujian
Apollo over HK$3.6 billion in respect of the
2011 Sales Contract, the second batch of the
6,000,000,000 shares of the 2011 Subscription
Agreement (the “2011 Second Subscription”)
were issued and allotted to Hanergy Investment,
at the subscription price of HK$0.1 per share.

“ARETHA=+ HLEFE)

28. RA& (&)

(b)

RRE(E)

RZZE——F+=—A=+/\8 ' #it
R E T RRBEREERR
AIBV R IENBE - AE AR -
—?—%E%%%ﬁ&:?——i
REEWZ B ERGHE RS E
LW HEARNBRM T NFEE
TzamRESF(ATBRES )
FEEHFFEARSEARRE @ #
REBE T ZFREHERZ
T ——FREHBRET IR HE
BURIR Al IR ARE FH 2 16 308 HHE
YEH Z ERFAEERR N[ AR E S
BHEARR]) -

E/\\_E—*i_ﬁ_‘f‘tﬁ 1B &

BABRBRESFEE AR N
&w@ﬁﬂﬁmﬁ_f TEHEES
BER-ZE——FHESR DK
BRI tﬂ331u/a713&181
BT ANRABITK D IR AREBE
5%0.239% L KT K0.1BILE
BREIER 2 B ¥R < A" Hanergy
Investment # 17 & Bl 2% 25 — #L 7R
§81,964,611,684 ([ ==& —
TFEE-ERABEE])RE—M
28 6,000,000,000 AZ &5 ([ =
—— FE-HRBEBEIHAE]) o

R-FE-—=FAA_+TWHA R
ERSARARESFEA#RE
NEBEHAGR T ——FHE

A RWEI B2 AR LR36ED
T —E——FREWMEZIEZ

#£6,000,000,000 f% f% 2 B 2 R
BESRKRONBLETRERET
Hanergy Investment ([ ZZ——

FE_ARBFR]) -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

28. BRA(#)

Subscription rights (continued) (b) RER(E)
On 2 September 2014, pursuant to the obtaining RZE—NUFNLAZH  BERE
of the Convertible Bondholders’ Waiver and the ATMEEFFEARE ML
cumulative payment received by Fujian Apollo RBEAGM - ——FHES
over HK$6.3 billion in respect of the 2011 Sales B E 2 25 RIABBEIE i’é
Contract, the third batch of the 6,000,000,000 T ZE——FREHMETE
shares of the 2011 Subscription Agreement #t6,000,000,000 f& A% 14 ([ = ‘—;’f
(the “2011 Third Subscription”) were issued ——FEZBERBEZ=E|BER
and allotted to Hanergy Investment, at the BESRKR1BTEIT KR T2
subscription price of HK$0.1 per share. Upon BEIRE - ek — T — —FREWH
the completion for all three batches of the BRI =HE - BEHETZ
2011 Subscription Agreement, 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 & A% 19 B 12 RIEE
shares of the Incentive Agreement were issued 0.1 BTE1T MR TR
and allotted to Hanergy Investment, at the & o
subscription price of HK$0.1 per share
The following table summarises the subscription TRELLFE NETT 2 RIBRER
right transactions during the years:
Weighted
Subscription average
rights exercise
outstanding price
RTE mE¥H
REE THEE
‘000 HK$
Fir BT
Outstanding at 31 December 2014 —METZA=T—-BkK
and 1 January 2015 T-RE—A—BHKTE 2,946,917 0.11
Issue of subscription right T“\iﬁﬁ'] REETE = =
Exercised BT = =
Outstanding at 31 December 2015 %_§—£¢+_ﬂ:+—5&
and 1 January 2016 ZE-RF-B—HEKTHE 2,946,917 0.11
Issue of subscription right KILnRERE = —
Exercised BT = =
Outstanding at 31 December 2016 A\—Z—RE+-f=+—HHERTE 2,946,917 0.11

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

29. SHARE OPTIONS

(a)

Share option scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 August
2007,
scheme (the

the Company adopted a share option
“Scheme”) relating to the grant
of share options to directors, employees and
other participants (the “Grantee"”) including
consultants, advisers, suppliers and customers

of the Group.

The directors may specify the minimum period,
if any, for which an option must be held or
the performance targets, if any, that must be
achieved by the Grantee before the option can

be exercised.

Share options may be granted without any initial
payment and at an exercise price (subject to
adjustments as provided therein) equal to the
highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares;
(i) the closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of the grant of the share option; and (iii) the
average of the closing prices per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of the grant of the share option.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company shall not
exceed 10% of the share capital of the Company
in issue on 28 August 2007, the date of adoption
of the Scheme, unless a refresh approval of the
shareholders is obtained.

29. BBRRAE
(a) HERRESE
BER-—TE+tENA=-+/\AR
BB REE - ARAIRKN—IEE

PerEst 8I([ %8 D mAKEZ
5= EEREMZ2EE(AR
Al BREER - BRA - HED
REF)EHBAAE -

BRI E R R EITE R
ARA 2 RERB(INE ) FEREA
WREBZRIRBEZE(E) °

E%H&T»?E*Tﬁ»jiﬁ&ﬂ%ﬂiﬁ =Tiil
B (TEE(ARERREZT
AHFB)BER I =FH 2&K=
ERODZEE: ()R E

Hx%fﬂjMEIEHﬁ“\FﬁtEI#&{E?E
Ptz SRR T E 5 K (i) B 7R
EERERNE B AEE XA
REE R BT B $RE & il 2 A%
HWTE o

E1TEREZET 8 RA A FERE
b AR AT g TR 2 2 38
IRFEMAIBE T 2RI =B R T
SHRBRAARR-_ZZEZTLEN\A
Z+N\B(BEMZTE 2 BE) 2
BEBEITHRAZ10% @ HERERK
B2 FEATHEAERR I o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(a)

Share option scheme (continued)

Pursuant to the special general meeting held
on 11 June 2010, the resolution approving the
renewal of the 10% of the general limit was
passed by the shareholders and the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
share capital of the Company in issue on 11
June 2010. The total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 461,224,947
(representing 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of passing the
resolution to refresh the 10% limit).

The maximum number of the shares (issued and
to be issued) in respect of which share options
may be granted under the Scheme to any one
Grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the share capital of the Company in issue
on the last date of such 12-month period unless
approval of the shareholders of the Company
has been obtained in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

The Scheme was approved by the shareholders
of the Company on 28 August 2007 and has a
life of 10 years until 27 August 2017.

NETZA=+ HILEER)

29. BRE#)

(a)

BREEE(E)

BER-ZE—ZFF A +—B8T
ZBRERENARE - HEEF10%
—RE_EMR 2 R R IERR R - T
EITERIRZ T 8 R AR R HE
R E S TRE 22 HE
fREMAIgE T 2 RN E=EE
\ﬁ&@$gﬂm_§—giﬂ
AT—HBZBEETRAZ10% °
AR R 2T 8I T 2 R B R
461,224,947 I (5 78 A & 73 3 38
EH10% ERZ2RZRERAZE
BEITRA10%) ©

FMEAR] 12 (& B B3 AR 45 7% =t &1 3%
TR —BAR A BBREEFT IS R
ZBRHhE=EE (BT RIGT®
TT)$E‘§E5@$A AIREZ 12 1@ A 85

MxE—BZBEETREAZ1% -
MR EMARREREARR & RE
Z BUEBRAN ©

ZABIER—ETLFNAZTN
BEAXRRARRRILE  RE0
F-HEE_Z—tFN\AZTLH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

Share options granted to the consultants and
the management of the Group

The following share based payment arrangements
were outstanding during the year:

29.

BREZ)
BIAEEBEEAREERE BRE

PATN BARUAD A BT 2 (R BE R

AR ARITEE

2016 2015
—E-XRE —Z-RfF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price VI LoIQ  exercise price Number
per share of options per share of options
e st
THTEE BREZE 917 E B EE R
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT Fi7 BT FR
At 1 January R—A—H 2.0605 151,855 0.8912 134,900
Granted during the year FARE - - 5.5181 42,200
Exercised during the year ~ FR{TE 0.1664 (41,800) 1.1078 (11,970)
Lapsed during the year FRKM 1.5203 (36,100) 2.0639 (11,945)
Expired during the year FREE 3.2577 (6,875) 1.7160 (1,330)
Outstanding at 31 December R+= A
=+—H
AT 3.4088 67,080 2.0605 151,855
Exercisable at 31 December A+ —=A
=t+-A
A T176E 3.3050 7,940 0.5213 73,955

As the trading of the Company's shares had
been suspended since 20 May 2015, the
weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during
the the year could not be determined (2015:
HK$4.43).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 67,080,000 share options outstanding under
the aforesaid options as listed in the table
above. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 67,080,000 additional ordinary shares of
the Company and additional share capital of
HK$167,700 (before issue expenses).

HMRARRRMNE-ZE—AERA
Z+HEUR—EWEEEE - T
EEEFRNETEBRERITER
Bz MEFHRE(ZSE—RHF
4.437%7T) °

RERE R - AR RREZ LiliE
% # /5 67,080,000 {7 i A% 4 4 5~
171F - MEEITE N RITERER
o BRBARBIRARAEE
15 %3£1767,080,000 & 24X A 7] # 1%
LA - WHIEARAR167,7008 7T
(RIBREITRZ) ©
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

Share options granted to the consultants and
the management of the Group (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the
share options outstanding as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Number of options

IAL STATEMENTS

29. BIRHE#®)

(b) RFFEEEEEZBREE)

RIBE AR RITE 2 BIAEZTT
EERTERDOT

Exercise price*

Exercise period

EREZA e figid: ]
Granted to 2015 HK$ per share
BF —ZT-A1f SRET

‘000

&
Management of the ~ A% - 65,800 0.1664 16 December 2011 to
Group | (i) EEE| () 15 December 2016
“Z——F+-R+/HZE
2 R"Et+ZATHRH
Management of the ~ A%E 35,040 45,720 1.716 27 October 2014 to
Group Il (i) EEEI (i) 31 October 2019
“E-RE+AZTLAE
ZE-NETA=T-H
Management of the A& 16,020 16,735 3.61 30 January 2015 to
Group |11 iii) EREI (i) 29 January 2020
—“2-8%-A=1H%
ZEZFF-A-TNA
Management of the A& 16,020 23,600 6.91 16 April 2015 to
Group IV (iv) EEEN (i) 15 April 2020
_-=_£¢EH+/\_\E|1

67,080 151,855
i The exercise price of the share options is * PEARAE 2 TR BRI R AL AR B 1T 2K

subject to adjustment in the case of rights on
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b) Share options granted to the consultants and
the management of the Group (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

On 16 December 2011, the Company granted
100,000,000 share options to the management
of the Group for nil consideration at an exercise
price of HK$0.1664 per share. The exercise
periods of the share options granted to the
management of the Group are as follows:

IAL STATEMENTS

29. B @)
(b) BFF-EEMERREMRE L)

RZT——F+=A+<H ' &
A A AZRERE H 100,000,000
MERETASEERRE - 171%
BEAETR0.1664E L ° & T A
SEEEE 2 EREZTHREAN
T

Number of options

Exercise periods 1T1EHE BREHE
‘000
F17

16 December 2011 to 15 December 2016 —Z——%+=-F+/,xBE
—ZT—XF+=-A+HH 10,000

16 December 2012 to 15 December 2016 —Z——F+=-F+/,xHE
—ZT—XF+=-A+=HH 10,000

16 December 2013 to 15 December 2016 —ZT—=F+—"H+,xBE
—T—XF+=-A+=®AH 10,000

16 December 2014 to 15 December 2016 ~ —Z—ME+—F+,xBE
—E—RE+TZATEAE 10,000

16 December 2015 to 15 December 2016 —Z—AF+=-H+BE
—T—XF+=-A+=HAH 60,000
100,000

On 27 October 2014, the Company announced to
grant 68,300,000 share options to the employees
of the Group for HK$1 as consideration by each
of the Grantees at an exercise price of HK$1.716
per share under the Scheme approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 28 August
2007(note 29(a)). As at 31 December 2014,
63,100,000 share options were validly accepted.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

RZZE—NWF+A=+tH"
ARABRBEARABRRA =T
SLENA T NB#EZZ
iE MAEEEEAMEL
68,300,0001% & iz 1 - R(E &
BARAN BT TEEAS
A% 1.7167% T(Mt 7£29(a)) B
—E-—pmE+-_/A=+—8"
63,100,000 {7 fE A48 A B AN ©

A
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

IAL STATEMENTS

29. BIRHE#®)

Share options granted to the consultants and (b) BRFIAEEEEB2BREE)
the management of the Group (continued)
Notes: (continued) Htat - (#&)
(i)  (continued) i (&)
The exercise periods of the share options BRYAEBESE ZBREZITE
granted to the employees of the Group are as R
follows:
Number of options
Exercise periods Cagcd BREHE
‘000
F7
27 October 2014 to 31 October 2015 —WEFAZ+ERE-ZT-AFTA=1+—H 6,310
1 November 2015 to 31 October 2016 T AF+—-A—-BE=F—"E+A=1+—H 6,310
1 November 2016 to 31 October 2017 —E-"Ft+—A-BE-_F—+t&+A=t—-H 6,310
1 November 2017 to 31 October 2018 —E—+F+—fA—-HE_Z-\F+A=1+—H 6,310
1 November 2018 to 31 October 2019 —T-NE+—A-HEZZ-NFE+A=+—H 37,860
63,100

(iii)

On 30 January 2015, the Company announced to
grant 19,300,000 share options to the employees
of the Group for HK$1 as consideration by each
of the Grantees at an exercise price of HK$3.61
per share under the Scheme approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 28 August
2007 (note 29(a)). As at 31 December 2015,
17,800,000 share options were validly accepted.

The exercise periods of the share options granted
to the empolyees of the Group are as follows:

(iif)

RZZE—RAF—A=+H &2
AIRBARARREN=-ZZLF
NAZ+N\B#tfEZZE - @\
AEEE B A 19,300,000
MERE REAFMLARKA
18 TEERERI6TE
(M sE29(a) s R=ZZFE—HF
+=A=+—H 17,800,000
FENR T A A o

BYAEEEE ZBREZITE
A0 ¢

Number of options

Exercise periods Cagid BREHE
‘000

F

30 January 2015 to 29 January 2016 :ﬁ—ﬁi—ﬂi‘lﬂﬁ_?—ﬁi—ﬂ:ﬂlﬁ 1,780
30 January 2016 to 29 January 2017 —~"F-R=+HE-T—+tF-A=-tAhA 1,780
30 January 2017 to 29 January 2018 —+t&-A=+AZ=Z-\§—A=TAhA 1,780
30 January 2018 to 29 January 2019 —\&—R=+RAZ=F-N&—A=thH 1,780
30 January 2019 to 29 January 2020 T ﬁﬁ A=TBE=Z=ZF—-A=1+NA 10,680
17,800

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 &;

IAL STATEMENTS

ES =

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b) Share options granted to the consultants and (b)

the management of the Group (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

NETZA=+HILEER)

29. B @)
BIAEEEEEZBRE L)

On 16 April 2015, the Company announced to

grant 25,200,000 share options to the employees

of the Group for HK$1 as consideration by each

of the Grantees at an exercise price of HK$6.91

per share under the Scheme approved by the

shareholders of the Company on 28 August
2007 (note 29(a)). As at 31 December 2015,
24,400,000 share options were validly accepted.

The exercise periods of the share options granted

to the employees of the Group are as follows:

Exercise periods

Wit (&)

(iv)

RZE—RFMA+/A AR
AIARIRA A B IR R
NAZ+NB#EZZE [
AEE R B A% 25,200,000
MERE REAEMLARA
187 17118 56.917%5 (ki
£29() c RZZT—RF+=A
=+—H - 24,400,000 17 i& A4

WARIZR -

BETAKEEB ZBREZTRE

BT :

— ==

Number of options

BRERE

‘000
i

4

16 April 2015 to 15 April 2016
16 April 2016 to 15 April 2017
16 April 2017 to 15 April 2018
16 April 2018 to 15 April 2019
16 April 2019 to 15 April 2020

“T-REMA+ARE=T
T2 RENATARE=R
—E—+FMATAAE=F
—E-)\FEA+AAE=F
“E-NENATARE_Z-_ZEMNA+HA

—AFEMATEA
—tFMA+TEA
—N\FEA+ER
—NEDATHA

2,440
2,440
2,440
2,440
14,640

24,400

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Other share options

Beside the abovementioned share-based options

issued, the Company granted the following share

options as financial instruments to the grantees.

i)

Other Options Il

On 18 September 2011, the Company
entered into an option agreement (“2011
Option Agreement”) with Hanergy
Holding, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to grant the options
(“Other Options Il") to Hanergy Holding (or
its designated individuals or entities). The
options issued to Hanergy Holding were
mainly to ensure its signature and smooth
execution of the 2011 Sales Contract.

On 16 December 2011, after fulfiiment of
the conditions precedent to each of the
2011 Option Agreements, the Company
had granted the Other Options Il to
Hanergy Option Limited (Hanergy Holding's
designated entity). The Other Options Il
were not granted under the Scheme.

The Other Options |l entitled Hanergy
Option Limited to subscribe for an
aggregate of 1.3 billion shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$0.1664
per share. They will lapse upon the fifth
anniversary of the date of grant.

29. BRE#)
Hibgs e

RIF LB BT 2 AR BERRE
Pt - ARRAARRARHATE
BRAEERERMIA -

(c)

i)

AtEREI

R-F——FNLATNE "
AN A EER BE AR AR RT S B AR
BHE(—FT——FERE
Wal) - B - ARAE K
1 3[R = Al RE A (Bl &L 45
EZALTHER)REER
R(TEMBEREND - &7
TEEREBRZEREIERS
BRERENEFNZRL-F
——FHERR -

RZE——F+=ZA+ A
H REKRK-_ZT——FER
EHZES B 2 ERIEHE
ZN/A BB A Hanergy Option
Limited CREEZEBR 2 IEE B
)R M EMBEARRE - Hib
FENRHE || 0 JE B IR AR AT &8 3%
o

H b B2 A% #E 11 B ¥ Hanergy
Option Limited # | 7] £ 17
FEZR0.1664 B TREE
H13ERARBKRD - B
PR BEREF KRR o
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c) Other share options (continued)

i)

Other Options Il (continued)

For the Other Options Il granted on 16
December 2011, the exercise periods are

AL STATEMENTS

29. BIR#E#®)

(c) HAtBBRHEGE)

i) BERENE)

R-ZZE——F+=-A+<H
Bz EmERREN 217

as follows: HI R -

Number of
options
Exercise periods TR BREHE
‘000
F&

16 December 2011 to 15 December 2016 —Z——F+=-H+ HZE
—Z—R"Ft+ZA+HH 610,000

16 December 2012 to 15 December 2016 —ZE——F+=-H+ BZE
—E-RF¥tZHAtAR 310,000

16 December 2013 to 15 December 2016 —Z—=F+_-FF+,XHZE
—Z—xFt+-A+AH 310,000

16 December 2014 to 15 December 2016 —Z—ME+-A+BHZE
—T—RF+=-A+HAAH 10,000

16 December 2015 to 15 December 2016 —ZE—HE+=-A+BZE
—E-RF+ZATHA 60,000
1,300,000

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —TREFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c) Other share options (continued)

i)

Other Options Il (continued)

The following table summarises the
movements of the Other Options Il during

29. BBl E®)

(c) HAtmBEREE)

i)

HtfB Rl (&)

T IR 1 B A 110 9
Pz 88 -

the year:
2016 2015
“E-RE —E-1f
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number exercise price Number
per share of options per share of options
SHRmE BiknE
THTHE BREHA THITER BREHE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
AT & AT T
At 1 January ®“—A—-AH 0.1664 70,122 0.1664 156,901
Granted during the year ~ ER&KH - —
Exercised during the year ER{T{E 0.1664 (70,120) 0.1664 (86,779)
Expired during the year ~ FRER 0.1664 (2) -
At 31 December RtZA=1+—H - - 0.1664 70,122
Exercisable at W+=A=t-H
31 December A F176 - - 0.1664 70,122

As the trading of the Company's shares
had been suspended since 20 May 2015,
the weighted average share price at the
date of exercise for share options exercised
during the year could not be determined
(2015: HK$4.07).

HRARRRHBE=T—H
FRA-tEUR—HERE
FEE M ITHEEFAR
TEBRAERITEB B Z N
BEHEOREBE(ZZT—AF:
4.07787C) °
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(c) Other share options (continued)
i) Other Options Il (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of
the Other Options Il outstanding as at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

Number of options

29. B @)
(c) HAmEMR (&)
i) RMERENE)

R34 B3R R 1T 682 Ho A
8 AR 11 2 77 15 (B J% 17 155 29
W

BREHE
31 December
+=A=+—H
Exercise price*
TREE*
HK$ per share Exercise period
ZET 1TEH
— 122 0.1664 16 December 2013 to 15 December 2016

— 10,000 0.1664

— 60,000 0.1664

— 70,122

The exercise price of the share options is
subject to adjustment in the case of rights
on bonus issues, or other similar changes
in the Company’s share capital.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

ZE-=F+A+AAEZZT—RF
+=—A+HHAH

16 December 2014 to 15 December 2016

ZENFE+ZA+ARBEZE-RF
+ZA+HhaAH

16 December 2015 to 15 December 2016

—E-RAFE+ATRBEZT—RF
+ZHA+HhaAH

* o BREZTEAIRAK
BT ARRRAHBRE
AR BB (E G o

T RNFFER
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Other share options (continued)

ii)

Other Options Il

On 6 September 2012, the Company
and Hanergy Holding entered into an
option agreement, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to grant
Hanergy Holding (or such person(s) at its
direction) options (the “Other Options
[11") to subscribe for an aggregate of
600,000,000 shares of the Company at the
exercise price of HK$0.25 per share. Since
the Hanergy Options, which were acting
as an incentive of contribution to a smooth
execution of the 2010 Sales Contract,
have lapsed in 2011, the Company and
Hanergy Holding entered into this option
agreement to grant options as incentive for
the smooth execution and expediting the
transactions contemplated under the 2010
Sales Contract.

On 31 December 2012, after the fulfilment
of the conditions precedent to the option
agreement, the Company had granted the
Other Options Ill to Hanergy Investment
(Hanergy Holding's designated entity). The
Other Options Il were not granted under
the Scheme. They will lapse upon the fifth
anniversary of the date of grant.

29. BRE#)
HA R ()

(c)

ii)

Btz 21

RZZE—Z—FNANH &
A B B RE 1 IR BT 3 B AR A
W& - Bt ARREBK
frib (R B AR A I% (S E AT
ERZBBAL)R L ERE
(TEMEERRREN) - RS
025 BT 2TFEEREE
600,000,000 f& & A 7] B
17 o RRZEEERE(EAY
IEF|SEL —F—FFHES
F/EH BRI Z BB ER =
——F R WARQ R EE
BE PR AR AT ST Ut BB AR 1 A%
DARR I B IR M 1/ B ) 25 57
MINRBE - TFiHE
ERBETIR S ZHE -

R-B——&E+=-A=+—
H EXEREBREZE
RIEH®ZR RRAE R
Hanergy Investment (£ &
ZRRIETE < B B B At R
BRAE N1 o Eoqth B AR #E 111 32 JE
BIEZEr &R L - Wi %
B EA R B FE R
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Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

ii)

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 29. B E)
(c) Other share options (continued) (c) HfbEBREE)
Other Options Ill (continued) i) BEERETEI (&)
For the Other Options Il granted to R-ZE——F+—_A=+—
Hanergy Investment Limited on 31 H¥ F Hanergy Investment
December 2012, the exercise periods are Limited ZHEMEREIIZ
as follows: TEHALR
Number of options
Exercisable period 1TfEH BREZE
‘000
Fhg
31 December 2012 to 30 December 2017 —ZE——F+-A=+—H=%
—E—tF+ZA=TH 300,000
31 December 2013 to 30 December 2017 —ZE—=%+-A=+—HBZ%
—E—+H+ZA=+H 150,000
31 December 2014 to 30 December 2017 Z—ZE—WNF+-_A=+—H=Z
—E—tF+=ZA=+H 150,000
600,000

The following table summarises the
movement of the Other Options III during

T 2% A 8 B 11 1 25
oFL 1K

the year:
2016 2015
“E-RE “T-RF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price N[V EIE  exercise price Number
per share of options per share of options
R Sk
THIEE fBRESE 917 E Bl E
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT Fi BT FR
At 1 January ®—A—H 0.25 286,655 0.25 335,122
Granted during the year FRFH - =
Exercised during the — FR{T{E
year 0.25 (30) 0.25 (48,467)
Expired during the year EREH - -
Outstanding at W+=A
31 December =+—H
RAITE 0.25 286,625 0.25 286,655
Exercisable at 31 R+=A
December =+—H
] 1718 0.25 286,625 0.25 286,655
As the trading of the Company's shares HRARBIRNOBE =T —h
had been suspended since 20 May 2015, FREA-THUKR—BE®E
the weighted average share price at the FEE WTEEBEEFAR
date of exercise for share options exercised T AR BE RN 1T B B 2 AN
during the year could not be determined EEHYRE(ZZE—RF
(2015: HK$6.05). 6.057%87T) °
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c) Other share options (continued)

ii)

Other Options Il (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of
the Other Options Il outstanding as at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

Number of options

29. BRE#)
(c) HtEREE)
i) BEERETEI (E)

RBEHRERITEZEAM
BRI ZITEERITES
wmr

BRERE
31 December
+=A=+-8
2015 Exercise price*
—T—AF TREE*
‘000  HK$ per share Exercise period
F17 BT TR
- — 0.25 31 December 2012 to 30 December 2017
—E——H+-A=+—HEZT—+tF
+=A=+H
136,625 136,655 0.25 31 December 2013 to 30 December 2017
—F-=4t+-A=t-HE-F—+%
+=—A=+H
150,000 150,000 0.25 31 December 2014 to 30 December 2017
—NE+_A=+—HEZZT—+tF
‘f‘—ﬂ =+H
286,625 286,655

The exercise price of the share options is
subject to adjustment in the case of rights
on bonus issues, or other similar changes
in the Company’s share capital.

At 31 December 2016,
the above outstanding share options,

included in

24,874,300 were options transferred
from Hanergy Investment to the Group's
employees.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

* BEREZITEHARAK
BETRARRBRAHERE
AR BB (E R -

RZTE-—RE+ZA=+—
B« bl RIT6E 2 BB AE
B 524,874,30015 Tt
Hanergy Investment® T 7k
SEEE ZBEREE -

ERBREEEEEARAR
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29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c) Other share options (continued)

IAL STATEMENTS

NETZA=+HILEER)

29. BRE 2
(c) HubEREE)
BmEKREE (&)

HHLRER 2 A Th R =
B SR B A e A T
Bl R T At -

ii)  Other Options Il (continued) if)
The fair values of the options were
estimated at their grant dates using
the binomial model with the following
assumptions:
Stock price as at grant date (HK$) BRHERAZBREGET)
Exercise price (HK$) IFEE(ST)
Earliest exercise date =PI A
Maximum option life in years ERESRFH
Volatility KR
Risk free rate A B b 2
Dividend yield % S el R
Trigger price multiple R ERE
Exit rate BB L =

The stock price for grant dates after 20
May 2015 was calculated by market value
of 100% equity interest of the Company
(the “Market Value”) divided by total
outstanding shares as at each valuation
date. The Market Value was appraised
by an independent valuer (the “Valuer”)
as the trading of the Company’'s shares
had been suspended since 20 May 2015.
The Valuer adopted the market approach,
which is basically a comparison method
which estimates market value from
analysing sales and financial data and
ratios of comparable public companies. The
Market Value was derived after a discount

of lack of marketability.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

A

0.18~6.90*
0.25

20 April 2015 to
15 July 2017
—T-RF
mA=+HZ
—E—+F
+A+HA

1.10~2.66
44.61%~62.48%
0.07%~0.73%
0%

1x

0%

W= —hERA=+H
2B BEL B HNRKRE -
THIEAR A E]100% A% #E 2
ME(TEDBRRASHE
B BTN Z IR fh 8K
STE o BRARFRMDE
—ET-hFRAAZTHE
—EEREE mEHA—
B ER ([ ERD )
VERTAl o (& (B ADER 49 11 35
% HEARER—RBUR
% BB A AL
A B 2 56 BB 1S 8%
KRR fhEtHiSEE -
ME Ty EF AR Z T 5% 7 8
M RILERTE ©

NEFER
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c) Other share options (continued)

29. BIRHE#®)

(c)

ii)  Other Options Il (continued)

The expected volatility was based on the
historical volatility of the Company’s stock
prices over a period that is commensurate

with the expected life of the options.

The fair value of the options transferred
was assessed to be HK$6,285,000.
Equity-settled share option expenses of
HK$2,619,000 were charged to profit
or loss during the current year (2015:

HK$2,004,000).

The following table summarises the movements
of Other Options Il and Other Options Il during

Hi g RE ()

i) RfERETE I (E)

T8 HA R 1R R K 1 H R L H A
BHERE - A RRE

BB RIF

FrffEEEREREZ R
F {E /46,285,000 JT e
EEAFEEMNEE+R AR
2,619,000/ (= T — R
4 12,004,000 T ) bAHE 25

BEZ B -

SRR At AR 11 R A P AR

BNRNFRZES

the year:
Weighted
Share average
options exercise
outstanding price
RATHE InfEEH
B TEE
‘000 HK$
F17 BT
Outstanding at RZE—FE+=ZA=+—H
31 December 2014 and r=ZE—RHF—HA—H
1 January 2015 W ARITHE 492,023 0,2233
Exercised BT (135,246) 0.1964
Expired = & m — _
Outstanding at R-ZZE—AF+-_A=+—H
31 December 2015 and E=—F—7RF—H—H
1 January 2016 B ARATIE 356,777 0.2336
Exercised BATE (70,150) 0.1664
Expired 2 fEw (2) 0.1664
Outstanding at R-ZE—X"F+-_A=+—8H
31 December 2016 W ARTTE 286,625 0.25

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

ERBREEEEEARAR
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE—=

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Other share options (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 286,625,000 share options outstanding
under the above option. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 286,625,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$717,000 (before issue expenses).

30. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current year are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 117 and 118 of the consolidated financial
statements.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents an
amount equivalent to the par value of the
ordinary shares cancelled as a result of the
share repurchase.

Reserve funds

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC, a portion of the profits of the
Company’'s subsidiaries in the PRC has been
transferred to the reserve funds which are
restricted to use to offset against accumulated
losses or to increase capital. As at 31 December
2016, approximately HK$135,089,000 (2015:
HK$121,066,000) has been recognised to the
reserve funds.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus arose from the capital
reorganisation and common control business
combinations in prior years.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair
value of share options granted which are yet
to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements. The amount will be transferred
either to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or retained profits
should the related options expire or lapse.

“ARETHA=+ HLEFE)

29. BRE 2

(c)

HiuiB AR (&)

RIBEER - AR BRE Lt 2 88
A% 4E 45 286,625,000 15 B8 A% 42 i 7k
1T > (WEME T M AR 1T AR
BoORBARGIHEGRALEE
18%%47 286,625,000 P& 2N A FET 1
WAL - WEEAR A 717,00075 7T
(RIMBREEITAT) o

30. f#f&

REBRAFEZFHEeELREEZDH
REAMBRRE1NTARFE118EZ
REEREEE -

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

EXEE#E

BEXRBLRf#FRERE
Bl iE < & BREE -

RERD B

#EE
RIEFR BEARRDED XOER - AR A
2 B B X B 2 BB 0 g M 2 S

ZARFIARZFHES  UEKHER
SHEBEEIEMER - R_ZT—R&F
+=HA=+—8H * 4135,089,000
BIL(ZZF— A F 121,066,000
BIL)ERFEBESHHER -

EARG

BEHBHRVELENBEFEZER
ERRARESZ XBE6

BRERE

EREREREERLERTEZ
%%%2@$@'&@éﬁﬁﬁ%
MieE2.4 BN S 2 2R
HE— R - Z& BN EREER
TEETERERESRMRER - =
B R R RRAE sk A Ak B e R
BiEmal o
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

31. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
2016

On 25 October 2016, Hanergy Thin Film Solar
Investment (Beijing) Limited, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sales and purchase agreement with Beijing Heng
Run Xiang Da Investment Limited, to sell all the
equity interests of Qinghai Hanergy Thin Film Solar

"FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. HE—BEHELQH

—E-RE

RZEBE—NE+HA-+HB  ZEEE
AGREFREUER)BRRARN(ARRZ
ME2EWNBAR) B2t REBFEER
BERARGIVEERZ ' WLESFHE
BREERAGRERESRAR([FFE
B8 ) 2 iiE - EEAARE 200,0007T °

Investment Limited (“Qinghai Hanergy"”) with a selling

price of RMB200,000.

The following table summarises the carrying value

TERBATSEEEEFENLEE R

of net assets of Qinghai Hanergy as at the date of ZERMEE :
disposal:
HK$'000
FBT
Net assets disposal of: I EEEFE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeEEY 5,899
Property, plant and equipment (Note 14) M~ BB R (I 14) 387
Other receivables H At fE UL SRR 11,189
Other payables and accruals E At 5 FRIE KBS B (79,869)
(62,394)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HB AR Z kS 62,623
229
Satisfied by cash LAIR & &1 229

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary

is as follows:

RHE—RMNBARME  RekRe
HZEMFRBZAONET

HK$'000

FEIT

Cash consideration RENRE 229

Cash and bank balances disposed of HEZREMRITET (5,899)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in FEE—FHRBARME

respect of the disposal of a subsidiary HeRBeEEW 2 FRT (5,670)

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

ERBREEEEEARAR
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

31. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 31. HE—BHBE AR )

2015 —E-hHfF

On 16 April 2015, HGSG-NA Land Power 1, LLC RZZE—RAFWMA+/B ' ARFZH
(“HGSG"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of E2E WM EB AR HGSG-NA Land Power
the Company, entered into a sales and purchase 1, LLC([HGSG)J) & &€ East to West
agreement with East to West Solar LLC (“ETWS"), Solar LLC (TETWS 1)L B & sk - A
to sell the TMW AC ground solar plant in the form of €& MLH Phase 3, LLC([MLH ) &2
sales of all the equity interests of the MLH Phase 3, w2 2= (BB & 1,650,000 7T )
LLC (“MLH") with a selling price of US$1.65 million & TMW M (R E U (B 5 R EEE
(part of which was used for the repayment of the MLH Zst BERIT R EMEE) -

interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of MLH)

The following table summarises the carrying value of TREMAMLHALE B2 EEZER
net assets of MLH as at the date of disposal: H1E :
HK$°000
TET
Net assets disposed of: FrtE&ESE :
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) VI - BB RS (A E 14) 24,289
Other payables and accruals H b A FE K FERTE A (2,485)
Interest bearing bank and other borrowings 1T R EH AL SR (8,006)
13,798
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary S B A R EE (11,499)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAFEGTEZ I #AEEFEERE 2,299
Satisfied by cash LAZR & % £+ 4,784
Waiver of other receivables from the subsidiary HEME R FIEZ G
disposed of H b sk I8 (2,485)
2,299
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash BERAHE—HNBARIZE S RESSE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary BYIERAZDITAT -

is as follows:

HK$'000

FET

Cash consideration HeRE 4,784

Cash and bank balances disposed of & 2R & MIRTT4E —
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in FRHE—FRBARZ

respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ReRREZFEBWFRA 4,784
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Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

32. OPERATING COMMITMENTS 32. RERIE
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) REHERIE
As lessee ERABA

The Group leases a number of properties,
warehouses and equipment under operating
leases, with leases negotiated for an initial
period of three months to five years, with an
option to renew the lease and renegotiate the
terms at the expiry dates or at dates as mutually
agreed between the Group and the respective
landlords. None of the leases include contingent
rental.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:

AEERELKEZHEERETY
¥ RELFE HEVZAH=
BEAZREF - AEERBENEME
AgASEEEEAETEIREL
REMENEMERGSK - ZFHE
BT ERAEE -

NZE—RF+-_A=+—H =K
SEBRBETAIHEELEHE 2 KK
R LA N T 5 HR Em

2016 2015
TE AT i
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Within one year —FRN 95,680 99,397
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_-_Z=RF(BHEEEMFE) 203,325 182,816
Over five years FFERE 176,801 35,588
475,806 317,801
(b) Other Commitments (b) HfbEiE

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total
other commitments of HK$634,595,000 (2015:
HK$726,871,000) under the non-cancellable
contracts of the photovoltaic power generation
station building projects.

RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H K
EEEREBEREXKBELIER
TAIBEA Rz EMAERE A
634,595,000 7L(=F — A F -
726,871,000/87T) °
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

33. BEAREAIE

2016 2015
AL T hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Acquisition of items of property, Hﬂlﬁ%i@% éjﬁ.ﬁ}%

plant and equipment NR#EER

— Contracted, but not provided for — BEIAEREME 113,154 520,734
— Authorised, but not contracted for — EEIEERETA _ _
113,154 520,734

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the transactions and balances

detailed elsewhere in these consolidated

financial statements, the Group had the

following material transactions with related

parties during the year.

34. BEBALIRS
(a) BAUZHAHERE MBS
BT R P RESIN  REBRE
PRI A TEITUTEARLS o

2016 2015
- BVAC- Sl T — F
Notes IZLEH0] HK$'000
Kzt FET FET
Manufacturing of turnkey B LR
production lines (i) 903,659 65,769
Rental expense e (ii) 4,521 6,832
Equipment lease expense FEHER (iii) 16,5626 17,694
Equipment lease income BAEEERA (iv) — 8,324
Technology usage fee expense FAigE A ERY (v) 1,315 12,470
Purchase/prepayments for FERE X RAHZRE
purchase of photovoltaic TR FRIE
modules (vi) 371,732 207,706
Sales of spare parts SHE T4 (vii) 2,160 1,292
Operational support expense EBEYRRAX (viii) - 2,847
Operational support income BB (ix) — 14,764
Sales of flexible photovoltaic SHE SRR
modules and cells KE (x) 29 7,329
Trial run service B E AR 75 (xi) - 20,5673
Purchase of IT-hardware and KB E ARG
machinery Kes (xii) - 6,336
Charter flights fee B#E R (xiii) — 2,617
Import commission fee EORES (xiv) 1,448 143
Office service income MAERRBEUA (xv) 6,286 =
Interest expenses FEZ (xvi) 14,521 13,895
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(a)  (continued)
Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The revenue from the sales of equipment and
turnkey production lines was receivable from
Hanergy Affiliates. The sales were made in
accordance with the terms as stipulated in the
relevant sales contracts.

Rental of office premises, factory premises and
a staff dormitory by Fujian Apollo, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, from
Sichuan Hanergy, Hanergy Holding's affiliate
in 2015 and 2016, and lease of office space
by Solibro Hi-Tech GmbH (“SHT"),
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, from
Solibro GmbH (“Solibro”), Hanergy Holding's
affiliate in 2015.

an indirect

Equipment lease expense represents the rental
of a production line by Fujian Apollo from
Sichuan Hanergy.

Equipment lease income represents the lease
of certain tools and system for the production
of CIGS photovoltaic modules owned by SHT to
Solibro in 2015.

The usage of relevant equipment, material and
facilities by Fujian Apollo from Sichuan Hanergy
to carry out research on thin-film solar energy
technology development.

Photovoltaic modules was purchased from
Hanergy Holding, Solibro (from 1 January 2015
to 25 November 2015) and Hanergy Global
Investment and Sales Pte. Ltd ("“Hanergy
Global Investment And Sales") for the Group's
Downstream business. For details of the
agreement, please refer to note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

34.

BEEA TR B (%)

(a)

(%)

Hret

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

EhE

BEREREEEERIKAT
RN B ER B AT - B TR
15180 94 % & 2T 99 2 1R
7

AAmZzEEE2ENBARBE
HBR_E—AER=ZT—F
MEREIE R 2 Bt /B A A8 | sE
MARAEH  IREMKET
BE - URAQAHEEEEN
& A B Solibro Hi-Tech GmbH
([SHTH) R =FT — R F M= 8¢
PER% 2 Bt B A &) Solibro GmbH
(Solibro]) A A # A=/ 2

REBHEEFRIEREASRM)
ERRAR-REERZES -

REHERAER=_Z—RFH
Solibrof & SHTF)’T%EZE:F
TERRGKUEECIGS HIKAE
%o

e ARG E A )| E R 2 AR RER
B MR R - AETTERK
BEZ BAMTFI B RS o

MAEE 2 THEBKEZERE
£ B% - Solibro(ZZ — A F —
A—BE=—ZF—1%+— A
— + & B ) &Hanergy Global
Investment and Sales Pte. Ltd
(Hanergy Global Investment
And Sales AN IRAEMH - B
EPRACE =t N Fo Nl
TEIRFMITE 22

FREEREERAA
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(x)

(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Sales of spare parts of turnkey equipment, tools
and machinery of solar photovoltaic modules
production systems by Fujian Apollo to the
Hanergy Affiliates at prices arrived at agreed
terms.

Certain operational support in IT services,
laboratory and lab equipment use and testing,
sales support, telecommunication services, payroll
services and other support services provided
to SHT and Solibro Research AB (“SRAB"),
both indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, by Solibro, Hanergy Holding's affiliate
in 2015.

Certain operational support to Solibro for IT
services and production quality enhancement
support, product management services and
troubleshooting services provided by SHT in
2015.

Sales of flexible photovoltaic modules and
cells by the Company’'s indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, MiaSolé Hi-Tech Corp. (“MHT") to
certain subsidiaries of Hanergy Holding.

Service for manufacturing test runs provided to
SHT by Solibro, Hanergy Holding's affiliate in
2015.

Sales of IT-hardware and machinery to SHT and
SRAB by Solibro, Hanergy Holding's affiliate in
2015.

Charter flights and related services provided
by Hanergy Civil Aviation Company Limited
(“Hanergy Aviation”), Hanergy Holding's affiliate,
to Beijing Hanergy Solar Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Hanergy"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Service for importing provided to Beijing Hanergy
New Energy Investment Co., Ltd. by Beijing
Rongtai Energy Investment Co., Ltd., Hanergy
Holding's affiliate.

General administration and office service
provided by MHT to MiaSolé, Hanergy Holding's
affiliate.

Other interest bearing borrowings provided by
Hanergy Global Investment And Sales, Hanergy
Holding America Inc., Hanergy Investment and
Hanergy Holding (HK) Ltd, Hanergy Holding's
affiliates.
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(xv) MHT A MiaSolé (£ f 2 i% =~ Bt
BAa)REZ —MITBEHRA
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(xvi) Hanergy Global Investment And
Sales Hanergy Holding America
Inc.,Hanergy Investment }&
Hanergy Holding (HK) Ltd (GZ#g
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b)  Other transactions with related parties:
2016

Other than disclosed above, there was no other
transactions with related parties during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

2015

On 25 January 2015, Fujian Apollo, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, as buyer
entered into an agreement with Beijing Hanergy
Chuangyu Technology Limited, a subsidiary of
Hanergy Holding, as seller for the acquisition
of two intangible assets at a consideration of
RMB500,000 in cash.

(c) Details of compensation of key management
personnel of the Group are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)
and (b) above also constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 A B =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35. £@ T ERER
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of FEeMTAENERAMEBRZSRSHARE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting BT
period are as follows:
Financial assets SREE
2016 —E-RE
Loans and
receivables Total
BRK
e &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Trade receivables E 5 EWRIE 6,813,364 6,813,364
Gross amount due from contract ERERE P45
customers 1,547,405 1,547,405

Financial assets included in other A EBEEMERGIE X

receivables and deposits Ee
Bills receivable R EE
Restricted cash ZRHIRE
Cash and cash equivalents He kR eEEY

751,318 751,318
11,850 11,850
38,057 38,057

248,674 248,674

9,410,668 9,410,668

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

T RNFFER
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B RE R AR

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35. EMIT ERER (&)
CATEGORY (continued)
Financial liabilities = =R
2016 —E-KREF
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
Ze@ma s a5
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade and bills payables B 5 REEENRIE 1,295,630 1,295,630
Financial liabilities included in other & B & (&8 ¥EE M FE R 1E &
payables and accruals JEETE A 1,372,985 1,372,985
Interest-bearing bank and other $R1T R B AT B AR
borrowings 1,050,635 1,050,635
Other non-current liability HEaIEREalE 4,262 4,262
3,723,512 3,723,512

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED EREREEREER A
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35. €M T ERER (&)
CATEGORY (continued)
Financial assets SRMEE
2015 —E—HF
Loans and
receivables Total
BER R
FEU IR &5
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables B S RIE 3,695,639 3,695,639
Gross amount due from contract A RXF45E
customers 2,930,836 2,930,836
Financial assets included in other SRIBEEREEMEWTIER
receivables and deposits birecia 566,718 566,718
Bills receivable FE U ZE 2,805 2,805
Restricted cash Z R H3E e 218,509 218,509
Cash and cash equivalents He KB EEY 447,826 447,826
7,862,333 7,862,333
ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —ERNEFR
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35. R T BRER (@)
CATEGORY (continued)
Financial liabilities cRAaE
2015 —E—REFE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
R SH K AN
ZEMARE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade and bills payables B REBEMNFIEA 1,110,827 1,110,827
Financial liabilities included in other & RbE &R FEE M ENFIE K
payables and accruals JEETE A 1,057,469 1,057,469
Interest-bearing bank and other $R1T R B AT B AR
borrowings 1,182,958 1,182,958
Other non-current liability HinIEmeaE 2,675 2,675
8,358,929 3,353,929

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its
use of financial instruments in its ordinary course
of operations and in its investment activities. The
financial risks include market risk (including foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the
Group’s headquarters, in close co-operation with the
board of directors. The overall objectives in managing
financial risks focus on securing the Group’s short to
medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure
to financial markets.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in
the trading of financial instruments for speculative
purposes. The Group’s senior management works
under the policies approved by the board of directors.
It identifies ways to access financial markets and
monitors the Group's financial risk exposures. Regular
reports are provided to the board of directors.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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B 35 R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

RNETZA=+—BILFE)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. BKREMREEEEREEK &)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk SN R B
(i) Transactions in foreign currencies and the (i) IEXZRAEEZEREZEKE
Group’s risk management policies
The Group has transactional currency exposures. ZIS’E BASRFHEEERE Eig
Such exposures arise from sales or purchases ARBE&EEEMNAEDEE]
by operating units in currencies other than L}\Q\\ZTMLHZE\E o Z'»‘E.ZU
the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 67 % —FHF 69%)HHE
67% (2015: 69%) of the Group's sales were LA%%]%?&%@ME’]W@EEMLAWE’J
denominated in currencies other than the E®5IE -
functional currencies of the operating units
making the sale.
The Group reviews its foreign currency exposure ARE BITF B ET N R - SFIA
regularly. No hedging or other alternatives have I T R e Bt e HE o
been implemented during the year.
The policies to manage foreign currency risk INERREIEB RN BESRF—B
have been followed by the Group since prior BAEESH BERRZATTZE
years and are considered to be effective. R o
(i)  Summary of exposure (ii) EEEHE
Foreign currency denominated financial assets ONEEHEZ S MEE R ABIRK
and liabilities, translated into Hong Kong dollars MEXRRE SETT ¢
at the closing rates, are as follows:
2016 2015
ZE-NE “Z-hfF
Us$ RMB EUR SGD US$ RMB EUR SGD
ESAN: B #iEs T AR% BT HsT
ORI C X T X0 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET  TET  TFAT FET R N
Trade receivables BHEYIE 6,239,410 - - - 3,386,061 3617 38,069 -
Gross amount due from  EWAREF
contract customers ag 1,547,405 - - — 2,930,836 — — -
Cash and bank balances ~ BE&RETEE 72,313 - 1848 - 73223 — 898 -
Trade and other payables 25 R E thef
A (846)  (6,493) (26) - (198) - (30) -
Interest-bearing bank and ~ $F17 R E M &
other borrowings CEN - - - (1,610) (124,635) — — (1,643
Gross exposure arising ~ CEASMIA
from recognised EE7ER
financial instruments k] 7,858,282 (6,493) 1,822 (1,610) 6,265,287 3,617 38937 (1,643)
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B 3 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

(iii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity at
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably

NETZA=+—BILFE)

36. BKEKREEBEEREEK &)

IhEE LB (4F)
(iii) EE 5 W

TR RS BRIMNE (HREEE
BRUZIEERRINES 58

possible change in the exchange rates of foreign
currencies other than the functional currencies
of the relevant operating units. The rates are
used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s best assessment of
the change in foreign currency exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk at the end
of the reporting period has been performed
based on the assumed percentage changes in
foreign currency exchange rates taking place
at the beginning of the financial year and the
assumption that such changes held constant
throughout the year. All other variables are held
constant.

Appreciation/(depreciation) in US$ against RMB

ARED 7 Y - LEROEE
&32 A B P00 2 SN BB Fi D
ZHE W AEB B EEET
BEB Y BT -

R B - AEEAEHINER,

G 2 BB E AT TR RSN T ok
BED mwmﬁimﬁzlﬁﬂ
BB B A B A PO RS B T 4T o
FiaEmERERETE -

ETHRARKET B, (821E)

Profit/(loss) for the year ZAN4F & & F, /(&

and retained profits B RBF R

2016 2015
—EB—RF —T—FRF
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET F&T
+5% (-5%) +5% (-5%)
F+5% (#%5%) F5% (Bk5%)
150,157  (150,157) 315,634  (315,634)

265



266

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z— R F+-_A=+—HI-FE)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)
(iii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Appreciation/(depreciation) in RMB against HK$

36.

BEEREEEERBEE#)

SN RLBR (F)
(iii) BBEED K (&)
ABR# ETHE A (B2E)

2016 2015
—E—RF —T—AF
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TFET
+5% (-5%) +5% (-5%)
#5% (B 5%) F+5% (B 5%)
Profit/(loss) for the REZHF,
year and retained (Es18) RB1F
profits i £l (124) 124 179 (179)
Appreciation/(depreciation) in EUR against HK$ BT S BT E (2 ()
2016 2015
ZE-ARF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FEITL FET
+5% (-5%) +5% (-5%)
#5% (B 5%) F5% (B5%)
Profit/(loss) for the RERZmA,/
year and retained (BBR)RBF
profits i 35 (35) 1,923 (1,923)
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

(i)

(ii)

Exposures to interest rate risk and the
Group’s risk management policies

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Floating interest rate instruments will
result in the Group facing cash flow interest rate
risk. As at 31 December 2016, approximately
HK$602,456,000 (2015: HK$662,105,000) of
the Group's interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings bore interest at fixed rate.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of
the Group's profit for the year and equity to a
possible change in interest rates of +/-50 basis
points (2015: +/-50 basis points), with effect
from the beginning of the year. The calculation
is based on the Group’s amount of floating rate
borrowings during the year. All other variables
are held constant.

36. &

NETZA=+HILEER)

B e IR B £

ERBKR &)

R =@

(i)

(ii)

2016

HK$000
FET
+b0 basis

points
+50 &2

Profit/(loss) for the REZHF,
year and retained (BB RB1F
profits i )

(856)

—E—RE

FIEmE b AERFFE 20 EE
B

FERBEEMTAZ AFESR
©nE RS RS m IR
BoRR - FBAETAEES

EEEGERERENEAR - R
—E-XE+ZA=+—H8"' 48
602,456,000 T(=Z & — A F ¢
662,105,000 70 ) 2 A& B R1T
R E AP B S RIRE EMEE R ©

MBE DT

THREBMEFYE  AEE A

FRERARERLE A EAEHIR

+/B0EE(ZE—HF : +/-50FE

EEB 2 HRE - BEER TN

$E@EA¢WZ/¥@JW AERBE
o FTE E MBS MIFTE o

2015

—ZE—hfF
HK$'000 HK$°'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT FETT
SN EEIF  +50 basis -50 basis
points points points
-50 EL & +50 E 2 -50 £ B
856 (2,005) 2,005

The assumed changes in interest rates
are considered to be reasonable based on
observation of current market conditions and
represent the management’'s assessment of
reasonable change in interest rates over the
period until the end of the next reporting period.

MERZBREHHEBRRATHR

BRRAEZEY UYATEEY

E%:%Tﬂi&iﬂﬂiﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁz/é
IEEEE) 2 S
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

(i)

(ii)

Summary of exposures

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group. The Group's exposure to credit risk
mainly arises from granting credit to customers
in the ordinary course of its operations and its
investing activities.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial
assets, which mainly comprise cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, bills receivable,
trade and other receivables, gross amount due
from contract customers and deposits and
prepayments arises from the default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade and other receivables is disclosed in
notes 18 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Risk management objectives and policies

The Group's policy is to deal only with
creditworthy counterparties. Credit terms
are granted to new customers after a
creditworthiness assessment. WWhen considered
appropriate, customers may be requested to
provide proof as to their financial position.

Customers who are not considered creditworthy
are required to pay in advance or on delivery
of goods. Payment records of customers are
closely monitored. Overdue balances and
significant trade receivables are highlighted. The
directors will determine the appropriate recovery
actions. It is not the Group’s policy to request
collateral from its customers.

36.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ2—F— R "F+_-_A=+—HILFE)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

The credit risk for liquid funds is considered
negligible as the counterparties are reputable
banks.

The credit policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered
to have been effective in limiting the Group's
exposure to credit risk to a reasonable level.

Concentration of credit risk

Included in trade receivables was HK$3,913,807,000
(2015: HK$2,596,781,000) due from customers
under common control with Hanergy Holding,
which represented approximately 57% (2015:
70%)
customers at the end of the reporting period.

of total account receivables from

Included in trade receivables was HK$2,536,745,000
(2015: HK$995,194,000) due from Shandong
Macrolink, which represented approximately
37% (2015: 27%) of total trade receivables from
customers at the end of the reporting period.

The directors of the Company believe that
impairment allowance is adequate in respect of
such balance as the customer had a good track
record of settlements during the current year
and prior years.

36.

BREREEEERBE &)

EERB(E)
(i) EBREZEFERKZE(E)

(iii)

BRE T BEBRFZRIT  BOR
BHES ZEERBRIKBAEM o

FEEHREBTFHFE —ERAE
BEnR  BWRAETZ2BR  BAR
EEAEZEERBRRESESIENK
EFD

FEREBEES

H 5 JE U 5% 78.3,913,807,00078
(= F — A F : 2,596,781,000/5
TL) BIEEE P (FRIZEIE IR LR
TH)RIA - (A REHARERE
FERREELNT% (—T—AF :
70%) °

Z 5 ie W 3718 B 3E 2,536,745,000
B m(ZF — A F : 995,194,000
VBT ) FEUS L BT EE R 2 BRI 0 A
EREBRRZEFE ZEWGRIEE
K37 % (ZF—RHF : 27%) °

ARREFHRE  AREERAF
REFHRER RIFEELE - #5L
REBBAHRCRERERR
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Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MKEBEEBZERBER#)

270

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables, and
also in respect of its cash flow management. The
Group's objective is to maintain an appropriate level
of liquid assets and committed lines of funding to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term.

Analysed below is the remaining contractual maturity
for the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period. When the creditor has a choice
of when the liability is settled, the liability is included
on the basis of the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. Where the settlement of the
liability is in instalments, each instalment is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Group is committed

to pay.

The contractual maturity analysis below is based on
the contractual undiscounted payments as at the end
of the reporting period:

RBESE R

mBEERRTENEEREETE R
BEMNBAETZARARH AKEEE
BEIENFBEAREREREEER
HARRBDECRAR - AKEZBEER
MTEECRBEE KT RAHRESR
B UENEEEREMZRBEESS

gaéo

AT RRASERRERARZFITES
MEBEZHNBHEEIEA - BEDHRAN
SEAWERNRZZRAHFTA - H#
ERATEZESEFAGRZAYN - ERE
A B A5 RSB aEER
SEAEGENRZ PR -

RTaRIAIMIHBRBEEERSEHR
ZERARMBNRIEL -

2016
On  Less than 6 to 12 1to5 Over

demand 6 months months years 5 years Total
RERE  DR6EA 6Z12f8A 1856  BBSE ait
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEr FEr TEr TEr TEn TEr
Trade and bills payables B RERENTE 350,542 639,469 305,619 - — 1,295,630

Other payables and accruals E e (T 5UA R fERT
EH 1,372,985 - - - - 1,372,985

Interest-bearing bank and other ~ $17 R At & fE5x
borrowings - 414,363 59,867 173,676 458,507 1,106,413
Other non-current liability EERBas 783 - - 3,479 - 4,262
1,724,310 1,053,832 365,486 177,155 458507 3,779,290
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. BKREMREEEEREEK &)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESREM(E)
2015 S — R4
On  Less than 6to 12 Ttob Over
demand 6 months months years 5 years Total
REXE JR6EA 6212 (HA 1£5%F  H@@#6E ait
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AT AT FAT AT TAT TAT
Trade and bills payables B RERENTE — 879569 139,982 91,276 - 1,110827
Other payables and accruals H AR IR R IERT
ER 1,057,469 — — - — 1,057,469
Interest-bearing bank and other  $17 R At S &5k
borrowings — 210,767 105,157 564,318 540,408 1,420,650
Finance Lease payables FENRERETE — 4,651 4,651 30,003 — 39,305
1,057,469 1,094,987 249,790 685,597 540,408 3,628,251
Capital management BEREE

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

AEEZIEEARERBRREREE
BAREIFERE  UHESRBREELRL
O PXBEXBLEERABRRE
8-

AR EEIR R A AR LB R
DRIEBEEZ BRI BRIELAE - A
ARNARANRE  AREITEEE
*HFREZBEEHE  AREREE
A BTHRE « AREREE AN
Wz ERRERRS  RBE-F
—AEt=A=+-AR-2-1F
tZASt—BLEE  ARBEARE
BRI BEEFBERD -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the adjusted capital plus
net debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, trade and bills payables, finance
lease payables and other payables and accruals, less
cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital includes
equity attributable to owners of the parent. The
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

MEEREERRREE#E)

BEREE(E)

AEBENBERBGEL RAVERFHE
BRUARRABREAMERFE)ETE
Ko B FEBERITREMME EE
K BHRRBEMNKE  BNREHR
EFBEAREMENRBERESER
(R LALEEY) - KAEER
BRESAABEANREES - RBREH
RZEXRBBELLERMT

2016 2015
TE-AF [
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FBT

Interest-bearing bank and other SRT R E AT B AR (AT 26)

borrowings (note 26) 1,050,635 1,182,958
Trade and bills payables (note 24) B REBRENFIAN L 24) 1,295,630 1,110,827
Other payables and accruals H A e R IE R EET B A

(note 25) (K15t 25) 2,108,503 1,606,923
Finance lease payables FERBEREFHIE — 36,916
Less: Cash and cash equivalents - HeRBEEEEY

(note 23) (K15t 23) (248,674) (447,826)
Net debt B F58 4,206,094 3,489,798
Equity attributable to the owners R FEER AR

of the parent

7,340,419 7,446,993

Adjusted capital ERBEE R 7,340,419 7,446,993
Adjusted capital and net debt KRBERRERFE 11,546,513 10,936,791
Gearing ratio BEARBELE 36.43% 31.91%

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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IAL STATEMENTS

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 37. EMIBEZAFERAFESR

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, trade and bills receivables, financial
assets included in other receivables, deposits and
prepayments, trade and bills payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and
the current-portion of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of finance lease payables, the non-
current portion of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities, and are approximate to
their carrying amount.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(i)  Amount due from Hanergy Holding to the

Group

With respect to the overdue trade receivables
and interest penalty owed by Hanergy Holding
and its subsidiaries to the Group, as disclosed
in the Company’'s announcement dated 27
July 2016, the Group has been negotiating
with Hanergy Holding and its subsidiaries (the
“Hanergy Holding Group"”) for the repayment
arrangements. As at 31 December 2016, the
total amount of trade receivables (due and not
yet due) owed by Hanergy Holding and/or its
subsidiaries to the Group, the gross amount
due from the contract with Hanergy Affiliates,
other receivables and interest penalty due from
Hanergy Affiliates (“Secured Indebtedness”)
amounted to approximately HK$4,857,176,000.

As at the date of these financial statements, Mr.
Li Hejun, Hanergy Holding and its subsidiaries,
have made the following arrangement for the

Secured Indebtedness:

° On 10 March 2017, Hanergy Holding
and its subsidiaries made the repayment
of RMB1,500,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,692,449,000, based
on the exchange rate at the beginning of

March 2017) to the Group.

° After deducting the repayment of
RMB1,500,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,692,449,000) from
Hanergy Holding and its subsidiaries
to the Group, the amount of Secured
Indebtedness was reduced from
approximately HK$4,857,176,000 to
approximately HK$3,164,727,000
("Remaining Secured Indebtedness”).

38. MEMKER

(i)

REME R 2 BUY R

HOARRE —E—R"FLtHAZ T+t
B RAMFT#HE - B ER TR
Ko E Bt &8 A B e R 2 FE R IE |
S8 AEE-—FHZERZERRK
HIfBArl(EEEREE LD
HNERLHE - RZTE—AREFE+=
A=+—8 ZEZBRE/HHE
MBARYAER L HMRESE
WIE 58 (B BB A2 B koK 2
B BUCEEEHMBE AR 2 & R4
BE - E{th JEWGRIE R FE UOZ BE B
RAIZEB(RERER DA
4,857,176,000 8T °

BENSUWHRROERES - F
MBRLE  ERERIEMBL
A HXEFREBDKELD TR
73

o ERIZEREKEMBAR R
—E—+E=F+HYARE
EEET AR®15ET(E

= A #%1,692,449,0007%8

T EBEZE—tF=ZRAYIZ

ERBE) -

| Ho

J WEIZEREE R R H B A A
HAEBEREZARKIGE
7T (FH & 7 49 1,692,449,000
BT XEREBSER
i 494,857,176,000 7 JT ik
4 % 493,164,727,0007% T
([FpZERER]) ©
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— R E+_A=+—HILFE)

38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(i)  Amount due from Hanergy Holding to the

Group (continued)

On 20 March 2017, Mr. Li Hejun (the
“Guarantor”) entered into a deed of
guarantee (the “Deed of Guarantee”)
with the Company, pursuant to which
the Guarantor agreed to provide personal
guarantee in favour of the Company in
respect of the Secured Indebtedness
owed to the Group. The Guarantor
undertook to procure Hanergy Holding and
its subsidiaries to repay the Remaining
Secured Indebtedness owed to the Group
within 24 months after the resumption
of trading in the shares of the Company
(“Resumption of Trading”) in accordance
with the following timetable:

(i)  within 12 months after Resumption
of Trading, repay 20% of Remaining
Secured Indebtedness;

(i) within 18 months after Resumption
of Trading, repay 30% of Remaining
Secured Indebtedness; and

(i) within 24 months after Resumption

of Trading, repay 50% of Remaining
Secured Indebtedness.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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38. REWMEEHE#)

(i) AEEEEEZRZERFERE)

e R-E—+tH=A=tH-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ—F—"F+-_A=+—HIFE)

38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Amount due from Hanergy Holding to the
Group (continued)

On 20 March 2017, Hanergy Option
Limited (the “Chargor”, a company owned
by Mr. Li Hejun) and the Company (as
beneficiary) entered into a deed of share
charge (the “Share Charge"”), pursuant to
which the Chargor agreed to mortgage and
pledge, by way of first fixed charge, the
1,367,000,000 ordinary shares in the issued
share capital of the Company held by the
Chargor to the Company (the “Charged
Shares”), as a continuous security for the
due and punctual payments, performance
and discharge of all present and future
obligations and liabilities of the Hanergy
Holding Group to the Company, and
the observance by the Guarantor of all
other obligations indicated in the Deed
of Guarantee. Upon the occurrence of
any events of default (such as, all the
responsible individuals are unable to
pay any sums mentioned in the deed of
guarantee, the Guarantor is unable to fully
and timely perform or fulfill any obligations
or undertakings under the Deed of
Guarantee), the Share Charge shall become
immediately enforceable. That is, the
Company may enforce the Charged Shares,
by any suitable means, in whole or in part,
and sell or otherwise dispose of all or part
of the security assets, without prior notice
to the Chargor or authorisation by any court
or person, at such time, in such manner,
on such terms as it thinks fit.

Amount due from Shandong Macrolink

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables
from Shandong Macrolink amounted to
HK$2,536,745,000, which were all past due.
During the period from January to March 2017,
Shandong Macrolink repaid RMB649,980,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$734,685,000,
based on the respective spot rates at the dates
of the payments made).

38. MEHRBREE (&)

(i) AEEEEEZRZERFERE)

J RZZE—tF=H=+H"
Hanergy Option Limited
([ERF] ZOELEH
B2ZRA)BEERAGUER
XEF)IILRGOERRZEL
(TR fp K1) RERS
BERARR B ETRAR
#91,367,000,000 f% & 8 %
(EEARN]) - AE—E
FEANTR - BERALER
TARA - AERESBAM -
AT R i R % Be 2 IR 5 ()
RNRAFIFTE BRI RAR KA E
BREFMERABRAE
TEEREL S AR E AT
RO AE A - INRFAEKR
EEHWlmmEEREAR
REXNERZONEROE
fAIFIE - BIRARBETER
AR b B 1T S B ST HE IR 2 4Y
TETAE R A B k& #
Z) - RPEF K ATIAS L3
77 IR A R A AEME B
AR BITERROOE
Hek#Hr EREBEELEBA
AT KRB F EIMERDE
PRk A TEENBERLT - A
ERBREENER - 7R
1R HESAEM S R E
Bk R EE o
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BHARWRIE - R — L F—
BZE= AHME LERIEHEE
A R #649,980,000 7T (18 & 1 49
734,685,000 % 7T © ISR B H 2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 3 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—

NETZA=+HILEER)

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION o

OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial
position of the Company at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

R A B BARR R

e HR B A A B B AR OR R E R
b1 N

2016 2015
—E2-AF el
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L/JE lf‘?ibg%& f% 748 3,555
Investments in subsidiaries KERH B A 6,473,988 6,958,447
Total non-current assets FERBEERET 6,474,736 6,962,002
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 1,268 1,267
Due from subsidiaries AN 32 23
Deposits and prepayments }Eé‘:\&?ﬁﬁm 9,630 5,005
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 4,075 53,351
Total current assets mENEEATE 15,005 59,646
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Due to subsidiaries FELST BT B~ ] 229,372 235,262
Other payables and accruals H e RIE N ERTE A 23,798 27,273
Tax payable PR IR 2,300 2,300
Total current liabilities mE) B EEE 255,470 264,835
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEFEE (240,465) (205,189)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABRARBERS
LIABILITIES 6,234,271 6,756,813
Net assets BEFE 6,234,271 6,756,813
EQUITY R
Issued capital B BT 104,647 104,367
Reserves (note) () 6,129,624 6,652,446
Total equity T 6,234,271 6,756,813
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZF—

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

40.

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

IAL STATEMENTS

NETZA=+ HILEER)

39. AARHMBKEARRT 2

Note: W -
A Summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RATIEEOEENT :
Share Capital Share
premium  redemption  Contributed option  Accumulated
account reserve surplus reserve losses Total
%
R EER BERE B4RE  BRERG ZitER @it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
&7 FiET FET FET FET &7
1 January 2015 “Z-1%-f-A 11,417,583 7,600 33,132 19,839 (778,114) 10,700,040
Exercise of share options ifeE e 43,144 = - (3,696 - 39,448
Share option expenses BRERES - = = 19,282 = 19,282
Repurchase of own shares BEAZRA (243,063) 84 — - - (242,979)
Transaction with owners HEEAZRS (199,919) 84 - 15,586 - (184,249)
Total comprehensive loss TEEREBERE
for the year — — — = (3,863,345)  (3,863,34b)
At 31 December 2015 and RZZT-1F
1 January 2016 TZR=+-RAk
“E-R"E-F-H 11,217,664 7,684 33,132 35,425 (4,641,459) 6,652,446
Exercise of share options ifem e 26,957 - - (8,606) - 18,351
Share option expense BRERT - - - 31,358 - 31,358
Transaction with owners BREAIRS 26,957 - - 22,752 — 49,709
Total comprehensive loss rEEZEFELE
for the year — — — — (672,531) (572,531)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-5%
+ZA=t-H 11,244,621 7,684 33,132 58,177 (5,213,990) 6,129,624

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

40. HEAEMB®REK

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on

30 March 2017.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

MHEBRER_FT—EtF=A=THE
ExgiERIRETE -
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities FX&HFIANEE:BE R ERBERE 2 248 -
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted BEREBEME @ NFHEEC T3 2B 5H
from the published financial statements is set out below. x o

RESULTS ¥E

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
“E——fF —T-=F —ZT-NF —T-HF eI
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 BELEH
FAT FAT FAT FAT FET

CONTINUING OPERATION BELEEY

REVENUE WA 2,756,463 3,283,791 9,615,028 2,814,668 4,483,130
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX Banakl/ (B18) 1,666,158 2,277,313 4,186,692 (12,087,413) 658,395
Income tax expense FriEBiBAx (349,976)  (259,289)  (983,074)  (146,129)  (406,781)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR  AFEiF/(B18) 1,316,182 2,018,024 3,203,618 (12,233,542) 251,614

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable A REA AEEREE

to the owners of the parent w7/ (B18) 1,316,182 2,018,024 3,203,696 (12,233,564) 251,620
(Loss)/profit for the year RS
attributable to non-controlling EIEAREE
interests (B18),/ %7 — — (78) 22 (6)
ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —TREFR
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERRAME

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

ZE-—F ZE2-=F ZZT—NF —T-1F I
Notes  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 BzLEXLofi]
Kz FET T FET FET FET

Goodwill Bl

Intangible assets BREE

Property, plant and VEN T E T
equipment

Available-for-sale investment AJ{HE&/RE
Deposits paid for acquisition WENE - BE

of items of property, FEEE 2B
plant and equipment Ze
Deferred tax assets ELEHBEE
Other non-current assets HinEmeEE
Net current assets MBEETE
Deferred tax liabilities EETEARE

Other non-current liabilities ~ Ef3ERENE &

15 7,915,318 7,915,318 7,915,318 = -
16 551,091 1,211,056 1,181,777 16,597 12,685
14
133,848 320,054 766,781 342,707 606,111
85,800 85,800 = = -

2,376 493 32 30 28

27 44,286 23,420 76,404 = -
= = 4,072 251,130 139,563

3,230,256 6,699,248 12,014,399 8,189,561 7,572,872

27 (250,875) (324,501) (561,995) (417,406) (401,220)
— (89,682) (911,150)  (935,017) (589,017)

Total equity B

11,712,100 15,841,306 20,485,638 7,447,602 7,341,022

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED EREREEREER A
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